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Highlights

Financial performance measures

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2021 (FY21) March 2020 {FY20) Change

Total revenue 4 £91.4m £87.5m 4%
Recurring monthly revenue (RMR) £81.9m £77.6m 6%
Recurring revenue percentage 90% 89% 1%
Adjusted EBITDA! £24.6m £20.6m 19%
Adjusted operating profit! £15.2m £10.6m 43%
Reported operating profit/{loss) £13.0m . £(8.7)m n/a
Adjusted cash generated from cﬁperations1 £26.5m £19.6m 35%
Reported cash generated from @perations £17.6m £18.8m (6%)
Net debt £(15.6)m £(34.5)m (55%)
Adjusted net cash/(debt)? £1.0m £(13.3)m n/a
Adjusted basic earnings per share?! 7.23p 4.76p 52%
share (7.14)p n/a

Reported basic profit/(loss) per
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. For an explanation of the alternativ
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Chairman’s Statement

| am very pleased to introduce the Annual Report and Accounts for the Redcentric plc (“Redcentric” or “Company”) group of companies (the
“Group”) for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 (“FY21").

OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Chief Executive’s review highlights considerable progress across all areas of the business in what has been a very eventful and unprecedented
year. | am delighted to say that despite the pandemic, the business has made substantial progress in internal integration and optimisation,
continuing to improve its talent base, increasing its focus on customer satisfaction and, above all, delivering on our financial targets.

The b ’siness has returned to growth with headline revenues increasing by 4.5%|year on year, and recurring revenues growing by 5.5%, a
result which is especially pleasing given the backdrop of COVID-19. The increase|in revenue and the completion of efficiency programmes
have tagether contributed to a moré substantial increase in profits and margins, with adjusted EBITDA growing by 19.3% to £24.6m, representing
a top ’-ector decile adjusted EBITDA margin of 26.9%. Strong cash conversion, which is a constant feature of the business, has enabled the
Company to fully repay its revolving credit facility and led to a reduction in net debt of £19m and a year-end cash balance of £5.3m. | am
particularly proud that these excellent results are in line with the expectations that were set prior to the outbreak of COVID-19.

As well as achieving significant progress in financial and operational performance, this year marked a huge step forward for the Company with
the cohclusion of the FCA’s investigation into historical financial misstatements |(“FCA Investigation”) and the completion of the resulting
restitution scheme.

With the excellent financial performance, completion of historic acquisition integration programmes, and the removal of the FCA overhang, the

Company is now ideally placed to embark on the next stage of its development and the strategy outlined in our interim results. In the current
financial year we expect to start to grow the business by making acquisitions for both scale and capability.

DIVIDEND AND SHARE BUYBACK . o

Further to the business’ good trading performance and strong cash generation, and the closure of the Restitution Scheme, the Board has decided
to reinstate a progressive dividend policy. The Board is therefore recommending to shareholders the payment of a final dividend of 2.4p per
share which, if approved at the Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”), will be paid on 17 September 2021 to shareholders on the register
at the close of business on 6 August 2021.

As stated in November 2020,"t‘hé‘ Board will retain the option to selectively purchase shares on the open Lr‘ﬁz;rket as and when it believes it is
appropriate. e T

R~ vt -

BOARD CHANGES AND PEOPLE

I would like to give special thanks to the management team and employees for their hard work and dedication to progress the Company’s
performance during this difficult year. The transition to remote working was-excellent, with employees continuing to provide a high level of
service across-the customer base and reacting positively to customer needs, by offering additional services as required to adapt to the pandemic
or allowing payment plans for ongoing services. In turn, | am delighted that we chose not to take advantage of the government’s furlough scheme
or any other pandemic related government relief. ' ) ’
David Senior joined the PLC Board as Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) on 3 April 2020 replacing Dean Barber who resigned on the same date. David
has had an excellent first year as CFO and has made a significant contribution to the success of the Company in this financial year.

On 28 April 2021 Steve Vaughan, Non-Executive Director, resigned from the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and in July 2021
we announced the appointment of Helena Feltham to the Board. Helena brings a wealth of HR and people experience and will significantly
strengthen the Board and the remuneration committee.

With historical issues fully resolved, the Company on a firm financial footing and embarking on its acquisition strategy, | believe that the Company
would benefit from a chairperson with industry specific experience. With these results, | therefore announce my intention to stand down from
the Board as soon as a suitable successor is appointed. | have very much enjoyed my time at the Company and am very proud of the team’s
achievements during my tenure. i am pleased to be leaving the business in a much improved and healthy position.

| would like to thank the Board for its éupport, hard work and dedication during this challenging year and during my tenure-as chairman.



OUTLOOK

The transformation of the business over the last two financial year and these excellent results mean that the Company is now well positioned to
establish itself as a market leader of IT managed services. The business’ strong financial performance, integrated network and single operating
platform put the Company in an excellent position to deliver its strategic objectives, including the completion of appropriate acquisitions of scale
and capability. ’ . :

lan Johnson
Chairman
15 July 2021




Chief Executive’s Review

Overview

The last financial year to 31 March 2021 was a period of very significant progress for Redcentric, despite the unique and many challenges
presented by the COVID-19 pandemic. The business has had its best year yet in terms of financial performance with revenues growing organically
by 4.5% and adjusted EBITDA margins increasing by 3.3% to 26.9%, resulting in a 19.3% increase in adjusted EBITDA to £24.6m. Cash generation
continued to be excellent with adjusted net debt reducing by £19.0m, delivering an adjusted net cash position at the year-end before leases.

We reacted quickly to the COVID-19 pandemic and deployed most of our employees to remote working almost immediately following the
outbreak. This was achieved with a minimal amount of disruption and our high levels of customer service were maintained throughout. We are
pleased that we did not furlough any of our employees at any point during the pandemic, unlike many of our industry peers.

In June 2020, the Company announced that it had reached a settlement with the FCA in respect of historical accounting misstatements. As part
of this settlement the Company launched a restitution scheme to compensate any net purchases of shares between 9 November 2015 (when
the September 2015 interim results were released) and 6 November 2016 (when the discovery of the accounting misstatements was announced
to the market) (the “Restitution Scheme”).

The Restitution Scheme closed on 31 October 2020, with 82% of all potential claims settled through cash payments of £6.6m and the issue of
1.3m new shares.

The closure of the FCA Investigation and Rectitution Scheme represented a pivotal event for the Company allowing management attention to be
solely devoted to running the business. It also reopens FCA regulated sectors into which the business’ products can now be sold.

During the year, the company disposed of a emall part of the business that serviced four EDF nuclear power stations for a consideration of
£5.75m. This single contract pre-existed from thejCalyx acquisition and its disposal significs another step forward in focussing the business on its
core strengths and activities.

~Thesignificant.achievements.above_coupled.with.the.completion. of.the.mtegr.anon.pr:o;ects and.the.launch of.a.new ERR system.means.that. the,___.____

" business is very well positioned for both organic and inorganic growth. Given our strong balance sheet and unique position in the UK listed
: -*marwt as a quoted managed services provider of scale, we expact to make targeted acquisitions moving forward as we continue to expand our e
‘customer reach and our product and solution portfolio to address the continued expansion in the cloud services market.

Business Performance

REVENUES

Revenues for the year are up 4.5% on last yéar with recurring revenues accounting for 90% of total revenues and increasing by 5.5% on the
financial year ending 31 March 2020 {“FY20”). Despite a strong overall performance the business has been impacted by delays to customers
decision making since the breakout of COVID-19. At the start of tha pandomlc, we experienced an immediate impact on our sales pipeline with
customers putting many large IT projects on hold. This position has persisted throughout the financial year but during the first half of the financial
year we were extremely successful in replacing these opportunities with solutions that addressed the new COVID-19 environment, these include:

e A new secure remote access platform which was built from scratch within three weeks and was rapidly filled by customers requiring
secure access to their mission critical systems.

*  Anew Call2Teams product was introduced enabling our customers’ workforce to make calls from Microsoft Teams but routed through
our Broadsoft IP telephony platform. :

e  Demand for additional bandwidth and HSCN connectivity was also high during this period.



In the second half of the financial year, we experienced less demand for these types of products and services and the second and third lockdown
periods created further uncertainty and delays into the market. As the country continues to make good progress on its return to normality, we
are slowly starting to see confidence build back up within the sector and are witnessing increased interaction with our existing and potential
customers. Given typical prospect to revenue timescales we expect this to generate improvements in the second half of FY22.

FY21 was an encouraging year for new logos with more new names signed up in the last twelve months than in the previous three years. Sales
to these customers were small initially but history shows that smaller orders generally develop into significant custom relationships over the long
term.

SALES, SOLUTIONS AND CUSTOMERS

As we start to see an increase in activity within our pipeline we are actively expanding and strengthening our sales team which will also enable us to exploit
opportunities previously closed to us because of the FCA investigation. Three new positions in commercial new business have been created and key roles
in public sector new business and accourI\t management have been replaced. With proven and experienced individuals recruited, we expect to see a
positive impact on the sales pipeline by H2 FY22.

i > . - |

During the period we have also been bUsyideveloping new products and solutions with ten new products being added to ourjportfolio. These products are
spread across the solution towers and address gaps within our current product whilst also satisfying customers’ increasing demand for more intelligent
solutions and offerings. ! ’
In April we launched a new secure remote access platform specifically designed for compliant access to governed networks such as the HSCN with
integrated multi factor authentication. In addition to this we increased the capability in our Secure SO WAN offering with both 5G capable cellular
connectivity (for primary and secondary gonnectivity) and a customer management portal offering multi and co-managed |policy delivery from a central
location allowing automated, zero touch build capability and building towards an end to end, zero trust, security fabric roadmap.

Call2Teams, delivered in Summer FY21, affers customers a cost effective PSTN break out service from Microsoft Teams with added call recording, call
routing and call reporting and providing a cost-effective afternative to Microsoft’s in-built calling plans. Expanding and evolvinLg our voice capability we also
launched a highly flexible and scalable omni channel contact centre solution for companies of all sizes offering increased productivity, closer customer
contact and improved service levels. !

OPERATIONS

During H1 FY21 the network and data centre efficiency programme was completed, achieving final annualised cost savings of approximately £4 million,
. significantly ahead of the Company’s expectations of £2.8 million when the programme was launched. As part of this exercise, three third party data centres
o dinlondon have been vacated, three network platforms have been merged it ane and our eatice tail ciccuit estate has been validated All thiswasdone
- without incident and with minimal disruption to customers. o

During the year the delivery function has been overhauled with a new position of Delivery Director created. This new hire was filled by an external candidate -
who has restructured the team bringing in two very high-quality recruits as his direct reports. A second wave of restructuring has resulted in 50% of the
delivery team being replaced and all project staff being bought onshore. The team are currently working on implementing a new workflow software
programme which will yield further benefits in FY22. :

ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PLANNING (“ERP"})

The imblerhentation of the finance and operations module of Microsoft Dynamics 365 {“D365”) on 5 October 2020 was a major accomplishment for the
business, this module integrates seamlessly with the CRM module launched during the last financial year and provides the business with an end-to-end
ERP system that replaces five legacy systems.

We are starting to see some of the many benefits that this system facilitates, functionally, we are seeing dramatically improved management information,
which is consistent throughout the organisation and more practically, our cash collection has improved as we are able toissue invoices quicker and, in some
cases, receive payment before invoices were issued on the old systems.

Refinements to the system and the processes that surround it are ongoing and we expect to see further productivity and efficiency benefits during FY22.
Additionally, we expect to be able to improve our customers’ experience through leveraging functionality within D365 and implementing significantly
improved customer portals, which will enable customers to access account information and order standard products and services through a single pane of
glass.



HR

During the period employee engagement has increased materially and the employee surveys provide clear evidence of the very significant improvement
in this area. Our employees’ mental health and welfare has been a crucial area of focus for the company. Multiple initiatives have been launched throughout
the period to ensure our employees feel valued, appreciated, and remain an integral part of the business despite being |solated from colleagues. The
company did not take part in the furlough scheme and all employees remained in full time employment.

Along with this great work the HR team also standardised all employment contracts, replacing numerous legacy contracts with one single contract. Work
is currently underway to replace five legacy HR systems (Holidays, payroll, sickness, expenses, travel) with one fully integrated system. This will go live in
stages over the next six months and will yield further efficiencies and improved management information.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The company remains cognisant of its responsibilities to protect the environment and has taken actions during FY21 to reduce its carbon footprint. During
the year we undertook significant investment in new equipment to reduce power consumption ih our data centre facilities. Since the installation of new
chiller units |ntv the Harrogate data centre we have seen consumption reduce by 6.5% ;

We continue ta evaluate technologies that will reduce our carbon emissions further and are currently in the process of installing unused preowned air
handling units into our Harrogate data centre, which is expected to reduce energy consumption associated with data centre chilling by ¢.5%.

N

CASH FLOWS

Strong cash flows continue to be a consistent feature of the business. During the year and despite growth in the business a positive working capital
movement of £1.9m was achieved which helped to generate an adjusted operating cash flow of £26.5m. The share placing made as part of the restitution
scheme generated cash of £5.8m which was offset by cash outflows in association with the scheme of £7.4m. During the year, the company repaid its
revolving credit facilities in full and ended the financial year in positive bank debt position, reducing total net debt by £19.0m in the period.

Whilst the company initially took advantage of the government’s VAT deferral scheme, this was repaid in full by 30 September 2020, and no further
government schemes have been utilised in the period.

SALE OF NON-CORE BUSINESS UNIT

On 31 March 2021, the Company reacned agreement with Thales UK Limited to sell the assets and knowhow required for the provision of maintenance
services to four EDF nuclear power stations. Redcentric previously provided maintenance services direct to EDF under a ten-year contract (the "Contract”)
which expired on 31 March 2021. In the year to 31 March 2021, the Contract contributed £1m to revenue and £0.7m to EBITDA and operating cash fiow.

o Ao~

Under the terms of the agreement, Thaleswill pay Redcentric a fixed consideration of £5.75m, payable in two instalments: £3:5m has been received on 30
April 2021 and £2.25m will be received on 30 September 2021. As part of the sale the five employees that previously‘\?/?irked on the Contract were
transferred to Thales.

Summary and Outlook

We have had an extremely productive year with many historical issues addressed a return to revenue growth and the business now delivering sector
leading EBITDA less capex margins. With no net bank debt, an efficient operating model, a new ERP system and fully integrated network and platforms,
we are now ideally placed to pursue the next stage of the Company’s development.

The results for FY21 are especially impressive given the backdrop of the COVID-19 pandemic and the fact that they are in line with the market expectations
that were in place pre the outbreak of COVID-19. The many challenges associated with the pandemic were overcome, with customer service unaffected
no employees furloughed and without taking advantage of any other government support schemes.

Throughout the Covid-19 pandemic we have experienced customer delays regarding decisions on large-scale IT projects. The delays experienced
throughout FY21 have continued into FY22 and hence we expect revenues and EBITDA in H1 FY22 to be broadly flat with modest growth returning in the

“second half of FY22 once the country returns to @ more normalised position.

Acquisition opportunities for both scale and capability are a key part of our strategy, and we anticipate completing at least one acquisition during
this financial year. ’



At the start of the new financial year, we have made significant investment to assist in the organic and inorganic growth of the business. Three new sales
‘heads have been recruited in preparation for the return of large-scale project opportunities. In addition, we have recently appointed Oakley Advisory
Limited as the Company’s financial.adviser and created a new senior position of Head of Corporate Development. Both appointments significantly
strengthen our skills, and the additional resource makes us well placed to deliver the inorganic growth part of our strategy.

The integration and cfficiency work carricd out over the last two financial years provides an cxccllent platform and template for the integration of future
acquisitions. Any scale acquisition would involve the merging of physical nctworks, the merging of network and opcrational platforms and a consolidation
of data centre space. Our historical success in these areas therefore provides confidence in our ability to successfully integrate future acquisitions whilst
deriving significant synergies. )

Our strong profitability and cash flows, underpinned by 90% recurring revenues, ‘enable us to maintain a progreséive dividend policy whilst also pursuing
our acquisition strategy.

We look forward to building on a very successful year with both optimism and corfidence.

Petet Brotherton
Chief Executive Officer
15 July 2021
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Financial Review
Financial performance measures

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2021 March 2020

(FY21) (FY20) Change
Total revenue ' £91.4m £87.5m 4%
Recurring monthly revenue (RMR) £81.9m £77.6m 6%
Recurring revenue percentage 90% 89% 1%
Adjusted EBITDA? ’ ' £24.6m : £20.6m 19%
Adjusted operating profit! £15.2m £10.6m 43%
Reported operating profit/(loss) : £13.0m £(8.7)m n/a
Adjusted cash generated from operations? ) ‘ £26.5m £19.6m 35% i
Reported cash generated from operations £17.6m £18.8m (6%) ]
Net debt £(15.6)m £(34.5)m {55%)
Adjusted net cash/(debt) ! £1.0m £(13.3)m n/a
Adjusted basic earnings per share! 7.23p 4.76p 52%
Reported basic profit/(loss) per share . 6.01p (7.14)p n/a

! For an explanation of the alternative performance measures uged in this report, please refer to page 14.

Overview

The business has performed extremely well during the year with all key financial performance measures moving in the right direction. With the business
returning to revenue growth and the full effect of the efficiency programmes flowing through, both adjusted EBITDA and cash generation|have been
outstanding.

In addition to strong trading performance this year's accounts have beenimpacted by threc non trading factors that have a material impact en the financial
statements: )

1. The sale of a non-core business unit was completed on 31 March 2021 for a fixed consideration of £5.75m, payable in two instalments: £3.5m
- on 30 April 2021 and £2:25m on 30 September 2021. This contract provided maintenance services to four EDF nuclear power stations and in

~ - FY21, this contract contributed £1m to revenue and £0.72m to EBITDA and generated £0.68m of operating cash flow. A<part of the <ale the five
= employees that previously worked on the Contract were transferred to Thales. Goodwill of £1.2m was disposed of.

The scttlement reached with the FCA resulted in the Restitution SchcchI;cing impleracnted with an estimatcd cost of £11.4m provided
forin FY20. Total restitution payments of £8.4m were made, being satisfied by the issue of 1.3m new shares at a market value of £1.7m
and cash payments of £6.7m. To part fund the restitution scheme and the associated £0.8m of advisory fees, £5.8m was raised from
shareholders in July 2020 through an issue of 5.3m new ordinary shares.

3. On 27 August 2020: a modification to the London site lease was agreed with the landlord, incorporating a one-way break clause at March 2030,
with the lease expiry date remaining unchanged at March 2040. The inclusion of this clause triggers a revision to the lease liability and right of
use asset under IFRS 16. O 1 Januaiy 2021, a one-way bieak clause in the Cambridge site lease was ot activated thereby extending the lease
expiry date 1o August 2023. The impact of these modificalions on the financial stalemerits is to reduce both the lease liability and right of use
asset by £3.8m and £4.2m respectively, a £0.2m increase in the dilapidation provision and a £0.6m exceptional charge in the period.

The key financial highlights are as follows:

e  Total revenue increased by 4.5% to £91.4m (FY20: £87.5m). Recurring monthly revenue grew by 5.5% to £81.9m (FY20: £77.6m), representing
90% (FY20: 89%) of the total revenue.

e The Group reported profit before taxation of £11.5m in FY21 (FY20: loss of £10.6m). Adjusted EBITDA increased by £4m (19.3%) to £24.6m and
adjusted operating profit increased by £4.6m to £15.2m, reflecting increased revenue and continued improvement to gross profit margin.’

e Net debt at 31 March 2020 was £15.6m, including £15.1m of IFRS16 lease liabilities that were previousfy classified as operating leases under
IAS17 and £1.5m of supplier loans.



Revenue
Revenue for the year ended 31 March 2021 was generated wholly from the UK and is analysed as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Recurring revenue 81,897 77,617
Product revenue 5,072 5,215
Services revenue 4,430 4,653

Total revenue 91,399

Revenue is analysed into the following caiegories:

e Recurring monthly revenue hasjncrelased to £81.9m (FY20: £77.6m), delivered by a combination of successful H
Network (HSCN) connectivity implementations, and the installation of COVID-19 related services, which tend to :

to installation time lag.

87,485

alth and Social Care
ave a shorter order

e Non-recurring product revenue, whi¢h was lower at £5.1m (FY20: £5.2m), has been more volatile since the annquncement of Brexit

and more latterly COVID-19, both of which are causing customers to reconsider the timing of largescale IT invest

ment decisions.

e Non-recurring services revenue was lower at £4.4m (FY20: £4.7m) due to delay in IT projects and site-access challenges due to COVID-

19.

Gross profit

Gross profit increased by 5.0% (£2.8m) reflecting the Group’s increased revenue and an improvement in gross margin to

63.4% (FY20: 63.1%).

Of the £2.8m gross profit increase, £2.5m was|achieved through revenue growth with the remaining £0.3m due to gross margin improvement.
Of the 0.3% gross margin improvement, 1.3% is driven by the network restructuring programme which offsets 0.5% reduction due to the loss of

high margin Crown Hosting contracts and 0.5% reduction due to slightly lower margins on services installed and

Adjusted operating costs

churn on renewals.

The Group’s édjusted operating costs (operating expenditure excluding depreciation, amortisation, exceptional items and share-based payments)

are set out in the table below:

. . Year ended Year ended .
= s 31 March 31 March =
. 2021 2020 Change
£000 £000 £000  Change%
UK staff costs 19,700 19,738 (38) 0%
Office and data centre costs 3,789 4,393 (604) (14%)
Network and equipment costs : 6,940 6,680 260 4%
Other sales, general and administration eosts . ’ .- 1,428 - 1,887 (459) (24%)
Offshore costs 1,502 1,886 (384) (20%)
Total adjusted operating costs - .33,359 34,584 (1,225) (4%)
Employees
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020 Variance
Year-end-headcount .
UK 295 298 (3)
India ' 100 144 (44)
Total employees - 395 442 (47)




Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020 Variance
Average headcount
UK 294 311 (17)
India 126 151 (25)
Total employees 420 462 (42)

Total adjusted operating costs for FY21 were 3.5% (£1.2m) lower than prior year, reflecting:

e office and data centre costs reduced by £0.6m, primarily reflecting the data centre restructuring programme;

e . network and equipment costs increased by £0.3m, primarily due to increased software and licences costs a result of additional licencing
to support the enhanced laa$ platform and a period dual running folowing the implementation of a new ERP system;
e other sales, general and administration costs down £0.5m, largely. due to reduced travel and entertainment costs which have been

/ impacted byLCOVID-lQ; and

e  offshore c'og s reduced by £0.4m due to reduction in staff costs with the average number of employees reducing from 151 to 126 as a

result of deljvery restructuring.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is EB
same adjustments are|
and the Board considé

ITDA excluding exceptional items (as set out in note 9), share-based paym
also made in determining the adjusted EBITDA margin. items are only classif|

rs that this metric provides the best measure of assessing underlying trading performance.

ents and associated National Insurance. The
ed as exceptional due to their nature or size,

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

o £'000 £/000

Reported operating profit/ (loss) 12,998 (8,737)

Amortisation of intangible assets arising on business combinations 6,252 6,252

Amortisation of other intangible assets 1,085 1,197

Depreciation on tangible assets 3,408 6,373

Depreciation on ROU assets 4,932 . 2,441

EBITDA 28,675 7,526

Exceptional items (4,782) . 12,516

Share-based payments and associated Nationallnsurance 687 - 562
Adjusted EBITDA T 24,580

720,604

—

adml

Adjusted EBITDA increased by 19.3% to £24.6m, £4.0m higher than prior year, reflecting growth in revenues, increased groés'niérgin and the full

year impact operation

al efficiencies largely delivered during FY20.

Taxation, interest and dividend

The tax charge for the year was £2.3m (FY20: £0.0m credit), comprising an income tax charge of £1.2m (FY20: £0.8m), a current year deferred

tax charge of £0.8m (FY20: £0.8m credit) and a deferred tax charge in respect of prior years of £0.3m (FY20: £0.0m).

Net finance costs for the year were £1.5m (FY20: £1.9m), including £1.2m of interest payable on leases of which £1.0m related to leases previously
recognised as operating leases under IAS17.

During the year, the Company paid an interim dividend for FY21 of 1.2p per share, totalling £1.9m.

A final dividend payment of 2.4p per share will be paid on 17 September 2021, subject to approval at the Company's Annual General Meeting.
—Fhe-shares-will-have-an-ex-dividend-date-of-5-August-2024~and-a-record-date-of-8-August-2021- - -
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Net debt

During the year, net debt reduced by £19.0m to £15.6m as at 31 March 2021, with the movements shown in the tables below:

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2021 March 2020
© £000 £/000
Adjusted EBITDA 24,580 20,604
Effect of exchange rates - 13
Working gapital movements 1,881 (9702 ‘
Adjusted cash generated from operations 26,461 19,647
Cash conversion 107.7% 95%
Capital expenditure — cash purchases (2,937) (4,233)
Capital expenditure — finance lease purchases (2,235) (2,402)
Proceeds from sale and lease back of assets 1,036 -
Net capital expenditure (4,136) (6,635)
Corporation tax (149) (660)
Interest paid (398) (610)
Loan arr'angement fees/fee amortisation (17) (51)
Finance lease/term loan interest (1,017) (1,377)
Effect of exchange rates {27) (13)
Other movements in net debt (1,608) (2,711)
Normalised net debt movement 20,717 10,301
Lease liabilities adopted under IFRSE6 = (23,013)
Cash costs of exceptional items e (8,884) ‘ (817)
Remeasurement related to lease modification 3,917 -
Supplier loans (1,207) -
Share issues 5,775 -
- Share buy-back - (724)
Sale of treasury shares 494 -
Cash received on exercise of share options 36
Dividends (1,868) (2,731)
(1,737) (27,285)
Decrease/(Increase) in net debt 18,980 (16,984)
Net debt at the beginning of the period (34,549) (17,565)
Net debt at the end of the period (15,569) (34,549)
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Asat 31 Asat31
March Net Net non- March Net cash Net non-cash  As at 31 March
2019 cash  cash flow " 2020 flow flow 2021
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 _ £'000 ‘£°000
Cash 7,206  (3,483) (13) 3,710 1,567 (27) 5,250
RCF (19,432) 7,000 (51) (12,483) 12,500 (17) -
Term Loan (363) 212 - (151) ) 212 (1,552) (1,491)
Lease Liabilities (4,976) 6,234 (26,883) (25,625) 4,527 1,770 (19,328)
(17,565) 9,963 (26,947) (34,549) 18,806 174 (15,569)

Included in lease liabilities at 31 March 2021 are £15.1m of IFRS 16 lease liabilities that were previously classified as operating leases under 1AS17
and £1.5m of term loans. Other movements reflect capital expenditure of £4.1m, £1.9m on dividends and £8.9m on exceptional items including
£6.6m paid out under the restitution scheme partly funded through a £5.8m share issue.

During the year, the RCF was repaid in full and £12.5m of unutilised bank facility was cancelled, leaving a total facility at 31 March 2021 of £32m
with a termination date of 30 June 2022. The facilities comprise a Revolving Credit Facility of £5m (£nil utilised at 31 March 2021) with a £20.

accordion (£nil utilised at 31 March 2021) and a £7.0m Asset Fm

Trade Debtors

In the year, focus remained on collecting legacy debt to improve the ageing profile. At the year-end, debt over 90 days old has reduced by 93% year on

year, whilst debt greater than 180 days has reduced by 98%.

ncing Facility (£1.8m utilised at 31 March 2021).

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Current 9,343 10,993
1 to 30 days overdue 600 1,656
31 to 60 days overdue 282 593
61 to 90 days overdue 21 220
91 to 180 days overdue 21 288
> 180 days overdue 1 63
Gross trade debtors 10,268 . 13,813
Provision {1,104) (1,438)
Net trade debtors 9,164 12,375

Trade debtor days were 30 at 31 March 2021 compared to 38 at 31 March 2020.

)m

Trade creditor days were 37 at 31 March 2021 compared to 40 as at 31 March 2020. .

——a
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Financing

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Available Drawn Undrawn Available Drawn Undrawn
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Committed
- Revolving credit facility 5,000 - 5,000 17,500 12,483 5,017
- Term Loans 1,491 1,491 - 151 151 -
- Lleases 19,328 19,328 - 25,625 25,625 -
25,819 20,819 5,000 43,276 38,259 5,017 -
Uncommitted
- Bank overdraft 5 - - - 5,000 - 5,0q
- Accordion facility 20,000 - 20,000 20,000 - 20,00
- Asset financing facility 5,190 - 5,190 3,853 - 3,85'
25,190 - 25,190 28,853 - 28,853
Total borrowing facilities 51,009 20,819 30,190 72,129 38,259 33,870

Uncommitted facilities represent facilities available to the

Group but which can be withdrawn by the lender and hence are not within the Gr

When the asset financing facility is utilised a lease is created and hence there is no committed asset financing facility.

During the year, the Group cancelled £12.5m of unutilis

annualised commitment fees.

ed facility reducing the committed leve! from £17.5m to £5.0m and thereby} s

oup’s control.

aving £95k in

David Senior
Chief Financial Officer
15 july 2021

Pc-e
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Alternative Performance Measures

This Annual Report and Accounts contains certain financial measures (“APMs”) that are not defined or recognised under IFRS but are presented
to provide readers with additional financial information that is evaluated by management and investors in assessing the performance of the
Group.

This additional information presented is not uniformly defined by all companies and may not be comparable with similarly titled measures and
disclosures by other companies. These measures are unaudited and should not be viewed in isolation or as an alternative to those measures that
are derived in accordance with IFRS. :

Recurring monthly revenue

Recurring revenue is the revenue that annually repeats either under contractual arrangement or by predictable customer habit. It highlights how
much of the Group’s total revenue is secured and anticipated to repeat.in future periods, providing a measure of the financial strength of the
business. It is a measure that |s well understood by the Group’s investor and analyst community and is use‘h for internal performance reporting.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

' £000 £°000

Reported revenue’ . 91,399 87,485
Non-recurring revenue ' (9,502) (9,868)
Recurring revenue ' 81,897 77,617

Recurring revenue makes up 90% of total revenue in FY21, an increase of 1% from prior year (89%).

Maintenance Capital Expenditure ' ’

Maintenance capital expenditure is the capital expenditure that is incurred in support of the Group’s underlying infrastructure rather than in
support of specific customer ¢ontracts.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

, o - £'000 £'000
Reported-capitat-expenditare“mcurred T 4,522 6,922
Customer capital expenditure incurred - . (1,927) - {2,470)
Maintenance capital expenditure incurred e 2,595 4,452

Of the £4.5m capital expenditure incurred, £2.9m was paid in cash during the year. Following the completion of network and plaitform upgrades in FY20
maintenance capital expenditure has reduced by £1.8m to £2.6m. We will continue to monitor the businesses capital requirementS and invest in the
business when appropriate.

Customer capital expenditure has decreased by £0.5m to £1.9m reflecting the delay in large scale IT projects.




Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is EBITDA excluding exceptional items (as set out in note 9), share-based payments and associated National Insurance. The
same adjustments are also made in determining the adjusted EBITDA margin. Items are only classified as exceptional due to their nature or size,
and the Board considers that this metric provides the best measure of assessing underlying trading performance.

. Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£000 £000

Reported operating profit/(loss) : 12,998 (8,737)
Amortisation of intangible assets arising on business combinations ' " 6,252 6,252
Amortisation of other intangible assets 1,085 1,197
Depreciation on tangible assets 3,408 6,373
Depreciation on ROU assets 4,932 2,441
EBITDA ] 28,675 7,526
- Exceptional items | ' (4,782) 12,516
Share-based payments and associated National Insurance 687 562
Adjusted EBITDA 24,580 20,604

Adjusted EBITDA increased to £24.6m, £4.0m higher than prior year, with adjusted EBITDA margin of 27% (up from 24%). Of this increase, £2.5m
relates to revenue growth and £0.2m relates to gross margin improvements with the remaining increase representing operational efficiencies.

Adjusted operating profit

Adjusted operating [profit is operating loss excluding amortisation on acquired intangibles, exceptional itenis and share-based payments. The
same adjustments are also made in determining the adjusted operating profit margin and in determining adjusted carnings per share (“EPS”).
The Board considerg this adjusted measure of operating profit to provide the best metric of agsessing underlying perfermance as it excludes
exceptional items and the amortisation of acquired intangibles arising from business combinations which varies year on year dependent on the
timing and size of any acquisitions.

Year ended Year ended

i 31 March 31 March

2021 : 2020

£'000 £'000

Reported operating profit/(loss) . 12,998 .. (8,737)

T T T ATTOTUR AT O INtangIB B gsse S arisiig on DuSingss comoinatians 6,282 - . 6,252
Exceptional items —_— (4,782) —. 12,516

Share-based payments L 687 <E 562

Adjusted operating profit : ’ 15,155 10,593

The EPS calculation further adjusts for the tax impact of the eperating profit adjustments, presented in note 13.
Adjusted operating costs _ ) _ -

Adjusted operating costs are operating costs less depreciation, amortisation, exceptional items, share-hased payments and fareign exchange.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£'000 £000 ~

Reported operating expenditure : . 49,448 63,925

Depreciation ROU assets ] (4,932) (2,441)

Depreciation of tangible assets , ' . {3,408) (6,373)
Amortisation of intangibles arising on business combinations {6,252) “(6,283) T

Amortisation of other intangible assets (1,085) (1,197)

Exceptional items . 4,782 (12,516)

Other operating income ' (4,507) -

Share-based payments . (687) (562)

Adjusted operating expenditure : 33,359 34,584
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Adjusted cash from operations

Adjusted cash from operations is reported cash from operations plus the cash cost of exceptionals.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

. £000 £000
Reported cash from operations ) 17,577 18,817
Cash costs of exceptional items ) 8,884 817
Adjusted cash from operations 26,461 19,634

Adjusted net cash/(debt) ’

Adjusted net cach/debt is reported net debt less supplier loans and less|lcase liabilities that would have been classificd as operating leases

under IAS 17.
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
. ) £000 £'000
Reported net debt - ) ) (15,569) (34,549)
Supplier loans ' 1,491 151
Lease liabilities that would have been classified as operating leases under IAS 17 15,058 21,057
Adjusted net cash/{debt) . s 980 (13,341)

1Z

David.Senior. -

. Chief Financial Offiz_i .
15 July 2021 o =
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Strategy and Business Model

The market for IT managed services in the UK is highly fragmented and is served by a-broad spectrum of businesses from global
telecommunication companies through hardware and software providers, system integrators and a range of independent managed service '
providers of varying sizes, through to companies providing individual elements of the IT managed services spectrum. The market is growing,
driven by the continued move towards off-premises solutions and mobile access to secure services.

Redcentric positions itself in the market as being able to combine the benefits of proprietary network and data centres with a flexible and
technically skilled workforce able to deliver and support critical services and solutions in a highly secure environment.

Redcentric seeks to differentiate itself in three distinct ways:

. innovation — innovation in the design and delivery of services;
. reliability — the right technical skills, organised in the right way, to give predictable high-quality results; and
. value — service offerings that are designed to offer value for money to mid-market customers.

. i
Through these differentiators, Redcentric aims to attract newcustomers and to deepen and broaden its relationships with existing custom’,ars.
The Board’s strategy for growth comprises:
. identify acquisition opportunities for both scale and capability;

. ongoing investment in expanding and enhancing Redcentric’s own infrastructure so that it can provide its customers with the, very
highest levels of security and service; and )

o effective use of Redcentric’s scale and resources to explore and invest in new technologies so that its customers can benefit from the
high levels of innovation across the whole industry.

The Board believes that Redcentric’s position between the very large system integrators and network operators and the smaller competitors
(that may lack dalivery structure, reputation, reliability and financial strength) is a very compelling one. Redecentric has a strong and reliable set
of core infrastructure and has developed a delivery model that provides assurance and certainty for customers.
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Section 172 Statement - Our Stakeholders

The Board recogniscs its duty to consider the needs and concerns of the Group’s key stakeholders during its discussions and decision-making.
The Board has had regard to the importance of fostering relationships with its stakeholders as set out below and also detailed in the Strategic
Report and Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report. More information on how the Directors have discharged their duties under
section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 is also available in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 26 and Corporate Governance Report on pages 27

Monthly newsletter - an electronic newsletter is sent out in the final week of every month to the primary and technical
contacts within the customer database to communicate key announcements, thought leadership material and new
solutions customer advocacy. .

Customer surveys - a quarterly net promoter score (NPS) survey is carried out to gain customer feedback and test
customers’ opinions on service experience. A key service improvement plan is developed from the results of the survey
following discussion of the outputs at management level. The implementation of the new ERP system in FY21 has allowed
for surveys to be carried out through an improved “Voice of the Customer” tool and this is also regularly used for one-off
surveys to capture feedback in relation to specific solutions. )

Monthly and quarterly service reviews - regular service reviews with customers are led by Service Delivery Managers and
Account Managers, focused on service experience and opportunity identification. :

Daily social media updates — at least daily updates are provided through the Company’s corporate social media channels
{LinkedIn, Twitter and Facebook) and contain key updates and customer case studies. These are shared by customer facing
employees to ensure as wide a reach as possible to keep customers appraised of the Company’s news and offering.
Customer scoring — within the Group’s support systems the Group reaches out to customers to score the support service
they have received, with follow up actions taken by the support team based on each customer’s score and requirements. .

to 44.
Colleagues
. Cblleague briefings — monthly célleague briefing sessions are held with the Operating Board to enable colleagues to ask
questions and raise issues and for colleagues to be provided with updates on the business.
e  Performance updates - key performance information such as trading updates and financial results aré always promptly
communicated to colleagues. i
e Newscentric - Company iformation and new product launches are communicated to employees through a number of
means, including via Newscentric, our colleague newsletter, which is issued every two months.
e  Colleague survey - colleagues were surveyed for the first time in a number of years in FY20 and an action plan has been
developed in response to some of the key themes coming out of that. A further “pulse” survey was undertaken in
December 2020 to track the effectiveness of the action plan and to take a temperature check of engagement levels.
s Learning management - an online learning management system has been operational over the last twelve months and
has become an.established tool, providing access to online training. )
e Performance management portal - a Group-wide online objectives and feedback system has been in place for the last
year and a new approach to year end performance and development reviews has been introduced.
e  Colleague recognition — the Company’s core values have been embedded into the Group’s new Colleague Recognition
Scheme — The Extra Mile Awards. o
e COVID-19 - as a result of the pandemic the Group run a survey to assess how colleagues were managing operating from
home. The Group has alsg introduced a number of wellbeing initiatives for colleagues over the last 12 months.
e New vision, mission and values - these have been developed in consultation with colleagues to align all colleagues to a
common vision, mission statement and set of core values.
e.  Share schemes - the Company has in place a Save As You Earn Option Plan to enable colleagues to become personally
invested as shareholders of the Group. '
e Further information is included in the Corporate Responsibility section on page 22 and in the Corporate Governance ~
o Report on pages 2710 44. T "
e Customers ot =
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Suppliers

The Board is committed to building trusted partnerships with the Group’s suppliers, which are crucial to delivering many of our
commitments. Through these partnerships, the Group delivers value and quality to its customers, and helps its partners to develop
and grow.

The Group has in place a programme which ensures regular engagement and communication with all suppliers but particularly
key strategic partners, including an annual review and other regular check-ins which include all relevant departments across the
Company.

The Company has given additional focus to its cloud and security suppliers to meet changes and recent trends in customer
réquirements.

The Company has put focussed effort in working with suppliers to review their contractual terms including terms and conditions
of trading, modern slavery processes, anti-bribery compliance and 150 .requirements.

Some of the Group's strategic partnerships are listed below:

o  Microsoft - Cloud Productivity (GOLD) Cloud Platform (GOLD) Datacentre (SILVER); Application Development (SILVER);

Application Integration (SILVER); Collaboration and Content (SILVER);

Cisco -JGOLD; |
HPe - Silver PRSP (Partner Ready Service Provider); :‘
Citrix -|CSPP (Citrix Solutions Provider Programme); and

o Veeam partner.

O 0 O

Shareholders

Analysts and investor meetings - the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer hold analyst and investor roadshows
meetings throughout the year, particularly following the release of the Company's interim and full year results and feedback from
those meetings i§ shared with the Board. In FY21, a full schedule of roadshows took place remotely
The AGM is a key opportunity for engagement between the Board and shareholders, particularly private shareholders. In FY21, a
face-to-face AGM could not take place but shareholders were given the opportunity to submit questions for the Board ahead of
the AGM and answers to such questions made available on the Company’s website.
Annual Report and Accounts - the Group's annual report and accounts is made available to all shareholders both online and in

hard copy where{requested.
Group website - all presentations and announcements and other key shareholder information is available on the investor section
of the Group's website.

Further informat‘on is included in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 27 to 44.

Environment |

The Company has maintained its 1SO 14001:2615 environmental management accreditation, through which it manages the

environmental aspects of the business, fulfils legal and regulatory requirements, and identifies risk and opportunities for
improvement. In FY21 the Group introducéd-a compulsory training module for employees on the Group’s Learning Management
System in order to increase awareness of the Company’s environmental impact and actions.

As part of implementing and maintaining the ISO 14001 Environmental Management System, the Group has identified the
significant environmental aspects of the business, driving the objectives of reducing energy use, company travel and the use of
paper and consumables.

In FY21, the Group has taken actions to reduce its carbon footprint and continues to evaluate technologies to reduce carbon
emissions. Significant investment has been made in new equipment to reduce power consumption in the Group’s data centre
facilities and the Group is in the process of installing unused preowned air handling units into its Harrogate data centre. The Group
has also introduced movement centre lighting in its offices and data centres.

Travel reduction in FY21 was aided by the COVID-19 pandemic but has in any event been a focus area, with working patterns
reviewed in such a way to positively impact environmental perforimance. :

The move to having a paperless office working environment has also been aided by the pandemic and has significantly reduced
the Group'’s environmental impact and this project will be completéd in the coming year.

Projects have been initiated to create assessment criteria and a formal process for evaluating the reusability of “end of life”
equipment-to-cnable-proper-allocation-and-measurement-of-WEEE-(Waste-Electrical-and-Electronic-Equipment-Waste)-by-the.

Group.
Further information is included in the Sustainability section of the Report on page 26.
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Risk management '

The Redcentric risk framework enables a consistent approach to how we identify, manage and monitor risks across everything that we do and
allows us to underpin our company values and strategies for success.

We have recently implemented enhancements to our risk framework to allow the leadership team to have a higher leve! of confidence, increased
knowledge and capability to seamlessly deliver our strategies and maintain continued focus on our customers.

How do we manage our risks?

Risks are managed on a tiered hierarchy, with each functional tower of the businéss owning and managing risk to their direct areas, measured
scientifically and consistently throughout. High value risks are cascaded upwards to operating board level and then béyond that to Group level
algngzide principal'ricks. Thic allows the right level of visibility, ownerchip, and/management in the right places with complete consistency and
transparency. ’

Management oversight is performed bi-weekly, monthly and quarterly at the various levels, agreeing actions, priorities or acceptance through
relevant joint forum attendance.

COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic has created an unprecedented and constantly changing challenge to all businesses with no clear end point. Whilst
overali the Group has a relatively low rick, high visibility busincss model, which|is adaptable to homeworking, we believe the risks to the Group
posed by the COVID-19 pandemic are as set out below.

TRADING RISK
o | although the Group’s strong recurring revenues support longer term visibility of sales, we have experienced some customers deciding to
defer largescale IT projects until some economic certainty returns. Reluctance to move critical IT infrastructure during this period has,
however, also had a beneficial effect on levels of contract churn;
LIQUIDITY RISK .
e ' uncertainty remains around the wider cconomic impact of the pandemic and customers’ ability to continue to trade throughout the

pandemic;

RISK-OF-LOSS-OF-EFFIGIENGY-—
e the short-term disruption of moving people from offices to working from home;

» lowor productivity at-Home due to poorer connectivity, less communication between team mcfﬁbﬂrs and possible distractions such as
family; ' '

e the demotivational effect of general anxiety and concern;

e the need to establish new client communication channels with clients who are also working remotely;

e  team members being incapacitated or having to care for other family members;

e the slowdown in recruitment, although this is likely to be partially offset by lower attrition;

RISK TO IT & SECURITY

e apossible breach of IT security through remote working, although robust measures have been taken to mitigate this risk;

« the IT toam being lecs able to respond efficiently and promptly to regular hardware and software problems due te the nature of remote
working; .

e loss of capacity in the IT team due toillness.

MITIGATING ACTIVITIES
The duration and extent of the economic consequences of the pandemic are currently unknown and this makes predicting future demand for

the Group's offcrings difficult. However, the Board believes that the Group is well placed to withstand the current challenges and risks. The
Group’s IT systems are sufficiently flexible to enable remote working by the majority of colleagues both in the UK and India. During March, in
close co-operation with colleagues, we moved to working from home across the Group with very little disruption.

. On the 1% March 2021 the Company repaid its revolving credit facility in full and ended the year with positive bank debt and the Group is cash-
generative. An undrawn facility of £5m remains in place until 30" June 2022..
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Our principal risks

Market and economic conditions

Market and economic conditions are recognised as one of the principal risks in the current trading environment. This risk is mitigated by the
monitoring of trading conditions and the constant search for ways to achieve new efficiencies in the business without impacting levels of service.

Technology and cyber-security

The market for Redcentric’s services is in a state of constant innovation and change. The Group actively participates in a number of industry-
wide forums and devotes significant resource to the development of new services, ensuring new technologies can be incorporated and integrated
with the Group’s core services. The nature of the Group’s services means that they are exp'osed to a range of technological risks, such as viruses,
hacking, and an ever-changing spectrum of security risk. The Group maintains constant pro-active vigilance against such risks and maintains
membership of some of the highest levels of security accreditation as part of the service it offers its customers.

Competition and market pressures | .
Redcentric operates in a highly competitive marketplace and, while the Board believes that the Group enjoys significant strengths and advantages
in competing for business, some of the competitors are much Iargeriwith considerable scale that could allow them to offer similar services for
lower prices than the Group would be prepared to match. Competitors could therefore materially adversely impact the scale of the Group's
revenues and its profitability. The Group monitors competitors’ activity and constantly reviews its own services and prices to ensure a competitive
position in the market is maintained.

Business continuity

The Board believes that one of the key differentiators that Redcentric offers is that its services are provided over its own controlled and managed
infrastructure, such as its own networks and data centres. Whilst this provides customers with comfort around resilience and reliability, the

Group is also exposed to a variety of risks to business continuity through infrastructure failure, loss of physical site, logical access failures and-

impact to. its people. A critical element of Redcentric’s operating methodologies and procedures is to mitigate such risks through the careful
construction, maintenance and management of all elements of Business continuity, adhering to industry standard methodology. Operating
_regular externally audited exercises, maintaining continuity plans across all areas alongside our fully resilient technical landscape with regulai
testing of back-up and recovery plans.

Loss of major contract .
Failure to successfully manage our large, significant and complex clients could lead to a loss of significant revenue and possible reputational

damage. To address this risk, Redcentric pro-actively maintain Sales Management Plans, hold regular customer.meetings by account teams, .

aligns Service Delivery to sales in order to support both ours and our customers strategies. The Group also operates a meaningfql and accurate
customer satisfaction methodology with feedback loop. - - -

l

Environmental-impact
The physical impacts of climate change and the actions taken by governments and society to tryzand limit global warming may impact our ability
to conduct business and secure assets. As our customers seek to reduce their own emissions, demand for our propositions and services may also
change, the Board recognises the importance of our corporate responsibilities to do everything possible to reduce the impact Redcentric has on
the environment. The Group'is managed to a recognised environment management standard and maintains an annual set of environmental
objectives to measure and maximise power efficiency across sites, reduce business travel, reduce use of paper and physical peripheries, reduce
waste and has introduced a proactive carbon offset initiative.

Brexit

The Board has assessed the impact of Brexit on the Group and do not believe it represents a materia! risk to the Group.
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Corporate responsibility

. Our Colleagues

Throughout FY21 the response of each and every one of our colleagues to the COVID 19 pandemic has been outstanding, ensuring that our
customers had the products and solutions in place quickly to adapt to the changing working landscape, whilst also adapting td new ways of
working themselves. Our colleagues sit at the heart of our business and are critical to our success moving forwards and | am pleased that we
have made a number of key investments in our people propositions over the last 12 months and will continue to do so over the year ahead.

Our customers have recognised the solutions, and service they have received over the last 12 months and we continue to receive positive
feedback on the support our colleagues provide. '

Through FY21 we have also continued the W rk started In FY19 and 20 to re-shape our business and we have made a nurr ber of internal
changes to ensure we are best set up to deh\ er great service to our customers, including the onshoring of all delivery resc urce to the UK team.

Over the last 12 months we have also continued to simplify our employment proposition and have undertaken a terms and conditions
harmonisation programrme. This programme saw all colleagues move to a standardised contract with aligned terms and conditions following
historic differences as a result of previous acquisitions.

I would personally like to thank each and every one of our colleagues for the significant efforts they have made over what has been an

unprecedented year, especially given the chdllenges of adapting to remote working whilst also managing home and family commitments over
this perlod. Everyone has shown huge comrmitment to both our business and our customers working together across tecams to deliver. | would
especially like to thank those colleagues who have continued to operate from the office or from our customers sites to ensure we maintained
our high levels of delivery for our customers. '

HAVING A SAY ON WHAT MATTERS

In FY20 we launched our first All Colleague [Opinion Survey to ensure our colleagues had the opportunity to have their say on their working
experiences at Redcentric. We listened to their feedback and have been progressing a number of colleague initiatives over the last 12 months as

part of our response to this feedback.

As-a-directresult-ofthefeedback-we-received-we-have-launched-thefollowing-initiatives:

e  Our new company vision, mission and values .

e A new on-line learning management system to support our éolleagues development

e  Anew on-line performance and development system to ensure all colleagues are clear about their objectives and have the opportunity
-to have great performance and development conversations and receive timely feedback from both colleagues and peers ‘

e A more flexible working week with an early finish on a Friday

e Anew internal communications strategy with monthly all colleague calls, our new colleague newsletter ‘Newscentric’, weekly colleague
shout outs and set up a Colleague Communication Forum : :

e Our Extra Mile recognition scheme which recognises the outstanding contribution of our-colleagues on a monthly basis

Over the last 12 months we have increased our employee engagement from 68% to 71% and we believe it is critical to continue listening to our
colleagues on an on-going basis. We ran a temperature check survey in December 2020 which showed significant improvements in all areas
surveyed and has enabled us to further develop our action plans for FY22. Our commitment is to continue to listen to our colleagues and evolve
our people plans accordingly. ' o
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WELL-BEING -
Whilst a priority before, the importance of ensuring the well-being of every colleague has come even more to the forefront over the last 12
months and we are committed as a business to ensuring we provide support for all colleagues in a variety of different ways.

We have trained 23 colleagues from across our business to become qualified Mental Health First Aiders and this has been communicated widely
across the business and ensured that all colleagues have easy access to our Employee Assistance Programme.

In addition to the options we have put in place to protect our colleague’s mental health, we have also been focused on running a number of
internal campaigns to provide additiona! support including:

e Setup of a wellbeing teams channel

e  Weekly yoga and mindfulness workshops delivered by qualified instructors
e Weekly colleague quizze$
e Weekly coffee shop dialsfin
e  Photo and caption competitions

e Tea & Talk & Sleep awareness days
e Regular check in surveys

Weli-being will continue to be a priLrity for the business over the year ahead and we will be working closely with our colleagues to support them
back into the workplace over the coming months once safe to do so.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY -
Creating a diverse, inclusive and-great place for our colleagues to work is top of Redcentric’s people agenda.

Redcentric actively supports the principle of equal opportunities in employment and is committed to ensuring that individuals are treated fairly,
with respect and are valued. Redcentric opposes all forms of unlawful or unfair discrimination on the grounds aof colour, race, religion or belief,
nationality, ethnic or national origin, sex, gender reassignment, sexual orientation, marital or civil partner status,|age or disability (the "Protected
Characteristics").

It is important to Redcentric that no one receives less favourable treatment or is disadvantaged on any of the above grounds. Every possible step
is taken to ensure that individuals are treated equally and fairly and that decisions on recruitment and selection and opportunities for training

and.promotion_are.based.solely.on.objective.and.jobrelated. criteria

PN
anai”

GENDER DIVERSITY

The average number of employees employed during the year was as follows:

Male Female Total
Executive Directors 2 0 2
Ops Board 4 2 6
Senior managers : 9 5 14
Other employees : 305 .93 398
Total average headcount ‘ 320 100 420

GENDER PAY REPORT

Our gender pay report at the snapshot date of 5 April 2020 showed that the overall difference between men and women'’s earnings at Redcentric
was 24% (mean). )

This showS an improvement on the April 2019 figures, however like most organisations in our industry, our gender pay gap is driven by a
continued imbalance of male and female colleagues at different levels across the organisation. 62% of females in our business sit within the two
lowest pay quartiles of the business which has negatively impacted our gender pay gap.

This was an expected outcome given the focus we have put on building female representation through targeted recruitment, an increase in
apprenticeship programmes and internal development to build a longer-term pipeline of females within our business. We are confident that this
will change as we continue to focus on development and progression opportunities for the future.
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APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAMME

Over the last 12 months we have also increased our investment in apprentice programmes across differing areas of our business for both new
joiners into our business and existing colleagues. These programmes have focused on building a pipeline of talent into our business to support a
number of our functions, including customer services, finance, procurement, project management and engineering and we have 12
apprenticeship programmes currently underway. We are working more closely than ever with local schools and apprentice providers to increase
visibility of these opportunities. This is an area we are committed to maintaining and growing given the benefits to our local communities.

Our first Future Leaders Programme has now concluded with 5 colleagues successfully gaining Level 3 Team Leader qualifications. Based on the
success of this programme we will be running a further Team Leader and Manager programme in FY22.

We are also working closely with local schools and colleges to support work experience opportunities and educational events and will be
supporting a number of careers events later this year. Work has commenced on the design of a Graduate Programme which we plan to launch
in the second half of FY22.

| i
SHARE SCHEME
The Group is a strong believer that having an effective employee share ownership programme helps to align colleagues’ interests with
shareholders, and continues to provide an effective tool in attracting, retaining and motivating staff. In November 2014 the Group launched an

. HMRC approved Redcentric plc Save As You Earn Option Plan where colleagues contribute a monthly amount which is saved over three years to
buy shares in the Company at a pre-determined price.

The mostrecent grant was made on 3rd September 2020, with the Company granting options over a total of 521,782 ordinary shares. These
options are available for exercise from 1 October 2022, with an exercise price of 119.60p. :

As at 31 March 2021, the following options were outstanding under the plan:

Options lapsed / Options

Grant date Exercise price (p) Opening options  Options granted  Options exercised  cancelled remaining

30 August 2017 . 63.0p 845,973 c- (843,116) (2,857) -

21 August 2019 63.1p 479,785 - (3,169) (31,061) 445,555

02 September 2020 119.60p - 521,782 (6,020) (49,665) . 466,097

Total n/a 1,325,758 521,782 (852,305) (83,583) 911,652
COvVID-19

Our transition to working remotely has been incredibly successful and we have ensured our colleagues have the tools, technology and support

to operate effectively from home.We have through the launch of our new communications strategy ensured that we have kept connected to all
our colleagues over the last 12 months both in the UK and India. —

i e~

We have undertaken a number of surveys to ensure our colleagues have the right support in place both.from the Company and their Managers
and have developed a specific well-being strategy to safeguard the well-being of all our colleagues.

Our offices have been adapted to ensure compliance with COVID-19 guidelines and we are currently planning a safe return to our offices from
July 2021 to enable our colleagues and teams to re-connect. We are reimbursing all of our Indian colleagues for the cost of vaccination.

The recent colleague pulse survey showed 94% advocacy from our UK based colleagues in the actions we have taken and the way we have
managed through the COVID-19 pandemic.

Given the success of remote working and how our colleagues have responded to this over the last 12 months we will be changing our future

working approach. Our plan is to move to a hybrid working model once we have completed a return to the office, with colleagues wherever
possible being given the opportunity to work from home 2 days a week.

We are also really pleased to re-confirm that as a business we have not made use of the government’s furlough schemé, choosing instead to
focus our colleagues on providing outstanding support for customers and accelerating the delivery of key strategic objectives over the last 12
months. This has given us a strong foundation for the year ahead.
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Charitable activity . ’

Despite the lockdown restrictions, throughout 2020 and early 2021 we have taken part in numerous virtual charity challenges and fundraising

events.

e  Recently we asked colleagues to support a Yorkshire Easter Egg Appeal for the Yorkshire Children’s Trust and together we donated
over 120 easter eggs which were distributed across the county to children in need. .

e 10 Million Step Challenge —in May and June 2020 all colleagues had the opportunity during the first lockdown to record ‘steps’ walked,
run and distanced cycled. We raised a total of £1,356 for the NHS charities.

e  We've continued to support Sue Ryder Wheatfields Hospice and in 2020 reached an amazing milestone with them. Since 2017, we've
donated a total of £20,400.90 through monthly pay day raffles and fundraisers.

e In August 2020, we took part in ‘Boycott Your Bed’ for Action for Children, raising £450 for vulnerable children in the UK. This involved
our colleagues camping out in an unusual location for the night, whilst taking part in a live streamed event.

e A ‘virtual coffee morning’ was held for Macmillan and we raised aniamazing £338.

i e  We raised £640 in November-for Children in Need by sponsoring the Annual Duck Race online and wearing our onesies to work for the
day.

e For our Christmas Charity Challenge in 2020 we asked colleagues to'donate Christmas gifts for local children who would otherwise not
receive anything on Christmas day. This was a great success, and we had a whole meeting room full of presents to distribute out to
children in Yorkshire. .

Dnce the COVID-19 restrictions are lifted further, we are looking to arrangL team-building volunteering days for colleagues to take part in,
upporting local communities with various projects. -

e also continue to support local volunteering activity and fund raising by encouraging all colleagues to use their day’s paid volunteering albeit
this has proved more challenging locally given the COVID-19 pandemic.

We have also devéloped a national corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) strategy to support our key customers in their local areas and will be
olling this out in the new financial year and this has now been rolled out. '

Health & Safety }
Redcentric is committed to maintaining high standards of health and safety. New starters receive health and safety training through our learning
management system during their induction period and refresher training is provided to all colleagues every twelve months. No RIDDOR
(Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations) accidents were reported during the year. -

Qur response to the COVID-19 pandemic has clearly been a priority and we have been committed to éﬁéhring the safety of all our colleagues and
customers over the last 12-months. e

All colleégues who are able to have been working from home since the start of the pandemic and we have introduced guidelines for any
colleagues in the office and for any visitors to the office in line with the working safely during coronavirus guidelines. Engineers visiting customer
sites for essential activities have all been provided with PPE and have been given the appropriate tools to conduct COVID-19 risk assessments

ahead of any site visits to ensure their on-going safety.

Our offices have been adapted to ensure we are able to maintain the current social distancing guidelines and additional cleaning measures,

temperature checking, and cleaning/sanitiser stations have been put in place.

We are working closely with our colleagues to ensure we achieve a safe return to the office once the Government guidelines change and in the
interim we will continue to adhere to all guidelines in place as we have done over the last 12-month period. )
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Sustainability reporting

Environmental management

Implementing and maintaining the 15014001 Environmental Management System has allowed Redcentric to identify the significant aspects of
its business, driving the objectives in the first three years of certification to reduce energy use, company travel and the use of paper and -

consumables.

We have progressed from the initial baselining of metrics, in the first year, to a commitment of undefined reduction in the second year, whilst

the third year targeted a reduction of 3%.

Electricity Usage
Company car mileage
Paper

Carbon footprint
In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 (Strategi
emissions as part of the Strategic Report.

The method used to calculate our emissions is base
energy and carbon reporting guidance, and used the
The reported emission sources include those which
Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013, with the excepti

e liquefied petroleum gas consumed by mec
e voluntary scope 3 emissions

The emissions for FY21 and FY20 have been externa

Annual Reductions

Year ended 31 March 2019 to
Year ended 31 March 2020

Year ended 31 March 2020 to
Year ended 31 March 2021
43%

.69%

79%

c Report and Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013, we report on our greenhou

d on the government’s Environmenta! Reporting Guidelines (2019), includiy
e government GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting (Full Set 201
we are responsible for, as requnred under the Companies Act 2006 (Strate
ion of the following which were excluded from this report:

hanical handling (small forklift truck) due to immateriality; and

|Iy verified by Energy Management Limited.

Year-ended-31——Yearended-3t——————""-

I.se gas {“GHG")

g streamlined
9 version 1.0).
gic Report and

. . March 2021 March 2020
,;;;;Sizope 1 Thousand tonnes of CO,e =3 52 0
Scope 2 Thousand tonnes of COze - 4,639 5,182
Scope 3 Thousand tonnes of CO,e 26 275
Total emissions . . Thousand tonnes of CO,e 4,717 5,457
Total energy consumption in the UK Thousand kwh - 20,204 21,426

The most appropriate inteisity metric for calcajiating the ratio is considercd to be the floor area of the occupicd office buildings and spacecs.

Year ended 31 March 2021
m?2 kwh/ m?
8,856 2,281

Floor area weighted values .
Year ended 31 March 2020
m?2 kWh/ m?
8,856 2,419

tCOze/ m?
0.53

The Strategic Report on pages.1 to 26 is signed on behalf of the Board by

tc026/ m?
0.62

Peter Brotherton
Chief Executive Officer
15 July 2021

26



Introduction to Governance

The Board recognises the importance of high standards of corporate governance and integrity. It is committed to effective corporate governance
as the basis for delivering long-term value growth and for meeting shareholder expectations for proper oversight and leadership of the business.
| am responsible, as Chairman of the Board, for corporate governance within Redcentric and the Board is committed to maintaining a strong
governance and ethical structure that supports and sustains its decision making. We believe that having good corporate governance is
fundamental to pursue success for the Group and its stakeholders. As such, the Company has adopted the Quoted Companies Alliance Code for
Small & Mid-sized Quoted Companies 2018 (the “Code”) as its benchmark for governance matter. At the date of this report we believe that we
are fully in compliance with the Code. B

This section of the Annual Report and Accounts sets out how the Group has applied and complies with the principles of the QCA Code. We will
continue to review and update our approach and will update our Corporate Governance statement in the AIM Rule 26 section of the Group’s
website. ' ' ’ ' '

lan Johnson
Chairman .
15 July 2021
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Corporate Governance

Governance Principle

Application

Principle 1

Establish a strategy and business
model which promotes long-term
value for shareholders

The Group’s business model and strategy is discussed within the Chief Executive’s Review on
pages 4 to 7 and also on page 17.

Details of the key risks and challenges facing the Group and the high-level management of such
are outlined on pages 20 to 21. Following the overhaul of the Group’s fisk register last year,
this year a new senior owner has been assigned to manage the register. As a result there is
now regular group wide engagement with and review of the register by all senior managers,
with individual departmental regiéters being maintained and feeding into a master register and
corporate register. The corporate risk register is shared 3nd refined with the Audit Committee
and Board at key intervals in the year. ]

Principle 2

Seek to understand and meet
shareholder needs and expectation

The Group is committed to engaging with its shareholders to ensure that the strategy and
business model are clearly shared and understood. The Board believes that the disclosures of
this Annual Report and Accounts provide information necessary for shareholders to assess the

Group’s performance, business model and strategy. H
Accounts are issued to all shareholders that have reques
on the Group’s website. The Group’s half year report is

ard copies of the Annual Report and
ed them and copies are also available
also available on the Group’s website

and the Group makes full use of the website to provide information to the shareholders and
other interested parties.

The Executive Directors are in regular contact with the Company’s shareholders and brief the
Board on feedback and any shareholder issues. In EY21,.remote investor briefings and
roadshows were held at regular intervals, including following announcement of the
preliminary and interim results, and other ad-hoc one-ta-one meetings with key investors and
potential investors were aiso held through the year to discuss the Group’s strategy and
shareholder expectations, amongst other things.

There is also regular dialogue with shareholders through the Company’s corporate brokers,
finnCap Limited, who keep the Board abreast of shareholder expectations and reactions. Any
reports from analysts that refer to the Company or cover the sector are circulated to the Board

to-suppert-theirunderstanding-of-the-views-of-the-investmentecommunity-finnCapras-broker—|

provides feedback directly to the Board from shareholder meetings and events such as the
investor day. An update on key shareholding changes and any relevant investot.sentiment is
also provided in each Board report and Board meeting.

There is an increasingly well-utilised dedicated investor relations contact email address by
which shareholders or investors may contact the Company

(investorrelations@redcentricplc.com) and the Company Secretary also deals with a number
of written queries throughout the year along with the Company’s registrar, Link Asset Services.

The Chairman and other non-executive directors will always make themselves available to
shareholders. The AGM is a key opportunity for this, with shareholders being given the
opportunity to raise questions during the AGM and the Board being available both prior to and
after the meeting for further discussion with shareholders. We are keen to welcome
shareholders in person to our AGM this year, particularly given the constraints we faced in
2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. At the time of writing this Report, it is possible under
guideline for us to hold the AGM in person. We are therefore proposing to hold the AGM in’
person and to welcome the maximum number of shareholders we are able within safety
constraints and in accordance with government guidelines. However, the Company will

| continue to monitor the impact of COVID-19 and how government guidance may change

restrictions or implement further measures relating to the holding of general meetings. If it
becomes necessary or appropriate to revise the arrangements, further information will be
made available on the Company’s website at www.redcentricplc.com and by RIS
announcement.
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In any event, once again, to ensure that shareholders have the ability to ask questions of the
Board, the Board shall accept any questions relating to the business being dealt with at the
AGM which are submitted by shareholders in advance to the Company. Any such questions
should be sent to investorrelations@redcentricplc.com so as to be received by no later than 5
p.m. on Friday 3 September 2021 and the Company will publish questions and responses on
the Group’s website in advance of the AGM.

The voting record at the Company’s general meetings is monitored and we are pleased that all
resolutions were passed by shareholders at the 2020 AGM.

Principle 3

Take into account wider stakeholder
and social responsibilities and their
implications for long-term success

The Board recognises that the long-term success of the business relies on its customers and
colleagues as described on pages 4 to 7 and pages 22 to 25 and that engagement with these
key stakeholders is fundamental to helping the Board make the best business decisions.

COLLEAGUES

The dedication and skili of the colleagues is furldamental to the Group’s operation and success

and, as such, we are committed to colleaguia engagement and listening to and acting on

feedback from colleagues. Following on from
the Group has taken strides to ensure itisa g

the appointment of a new HR Director in FY20
eat place to work. Further to the launch of the

first colleague engagement survey for many years in FY20, a number of key initiatives were
launched in the year including new Group vision, mission and values, a new online learning
management system, a new online performance and development system, a more flexible

working week (with an early Friday finish) and

A new internal communication strategy has 3

a new colleague recognition scheme.

Iso been launched, with monthly all colleague

calls, a new colleague newsletter, weekly colleague “Shout Outs” and a new Colleague
y g

Communication Forum.

Colleague wellbeing has been placed at the forefront of the Group in FY21 with a commitment

to the provision of support for colleagues in

a variety of ways, including the training of a

number of colleagues to become qualified Mental Health First Aiders, weekly yoga and
mindfulness workshops led by qualified instructors, regular check-in surveys, weekly quizzes
and remote “coffee shops” and Tea and Talk and Sleep awareness days.

As detailed on page 24 the Group also has in place a Save As You Earn Option Plan to enable
colleagues to become personally invested as shareholders of the Company. In FY21, the
Company granted options over a total 521,782 ordinary shares under this scheme.

CUSTOMERS

The Group's extensive customer services, which are detailed on the.Group’s website at
https://www.redcentricplc.com/services/, are core to the Group’s customer proposition and
the Group is in regular dialogue with its existing and potential customers in order that it may
understand and respond to their ongoing and future requirements. The Group also keeps
abreast of customer needs and communicates it proposition to customers through monthly
newsletters, regular customer surveys, monthly and quarterly service reviews and through its
social media channels.

The Board also considers it shareholders, suppliers and the environment to be key
stakeholders and details of how the Group fosters relationships with these stakeholders and
considers their needs are set out in the Section 172 statement on page 18 of this Report.

Principle 4

Embed effective risk management,
considering both opportunities and
threats, throughout the
organisation

As set out in the Audit Committee Report on page 35, the Board is committed to ensuring that
risk management forms part of the way the Group works and is embedded in the business.
The risk register of the Group has been assigned to a new internal owner in the year and new
departmental registers are now fed into a master register which is regularly reviewed by senior
managers and feeds into a corporate risk register before reporting to and review by the Board.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The implementation and maintenance of the risk management and
internal control systems are the responsibility of the Operating Board. However, the internal
control system is designed to manage rather than eliminate risk and can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board

considers that the internal controls in place are appropriate for the size, complexity and risk.

profile of the Group and have been improved in the year with the implementation of the
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finance and operations module of the new ERP system, D365. The principal elements of the
Group’s internal control system cover financial, operational and compliance controls and
include:

close management of the day-to-day activities of the Group by the executive directors;

an established budgetary system with the preparation and approval of an annual budget by
the Board and regular monitoring and review of performance against budget, forecasts and
prior year;

detailed monthly reporting to the Board (including financial information, performance against
budget and key performance and risk indicators) whereby the Executive Directors report on

significant changes to the business and external marketplace to the extent they represent
significant risk;

an organisational structure that has clear reporting lines and delegated authorities;
management and mofLitoring of risk and performance at multiple levels throughout the Group;

strengthened financeland legal functions that maintain processes and systems to enhance the
control environment] including the control of expenditure, authorisation limits, purchase
ordering, sales order intake, contract review and approval; and ’

the principle treasury related risks are documented and approved by the Board.

The Group has also worked hard over some time to attain a number of I1SO accreditations,

detailed at https://www.redcentricplc.com/about-us/accreditations-frameworks/, and has a

number of policies and procedures in place in order to fulfil the requirements of and
maintain these accreditations.

Principle 5

Maintain the board as a well-
functioning, balanced team led by
the chair

The composition of the Board is detailed on page 34.

The Board delegates specific responsibilities to the Board committees. The composition of the
committees and how|they discharge their responsibilities can.be found on page 32.

Part of the role of the|Board’s Nomination Committee is to keep the composition of the Board
under review as the Group’s business evolves. The Board is delighted to have diversified its
composition following the appointment of Heléna Feltham as a new Non-Executive Director.
and Chair of the Remuneration Committee. Helena brings with her considerable HR and people
experience.and significantly strengthens the. Company.s Remuneration Committee..With.the

publication of this Report, lan Johnson, Non:Executive Chairman announces his intention to
step down on the appointment of a suitable;g_l.x_“cceséor. Recruitment of a successor is under
way and will be announced in due course. At the start of the year, the Company announced
the replacement of Dean Barber by David Senior as an Executive Director on the Board and
Chief Financial Officer. David has had a very successful first year as CFO and has made a
significant contribution to the success of the Company in FY21.

The Board is satisfied that it has an appropriate balance between independence and
knowledge of the Group to enable it to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively. All
Directors are encouraged and expected to use their independent judgement and to challenge
matters where required, both strategic and operational. ’ :

The Executive Directors of the Company are employed on a full-time basis. Non-Executive
Directors are required to devote such time to the Group's affairs as necessary to discharge
their duties and this may change from time to time. In addition to scheduled Board meetings,
members are required to attend other ad hoc Board meetings, committee meetings, the AGM
and any other business or general meetings as required. Board members are also required to
consider all relevant papers before each meeting and to devote additional time in respect of

pPreEparativrrand ad - hoT MTatters Wit Timay arise. Non-EXeculive DITeCLois are required 1o |
obtain the agreement of the Chairman before accepting additional commitments that may
affect the time that they are able to devote to their role as a non-executive director. Further
details of extérnal appointments of the Board are included in their biographies on page 34. In
addition to being Non-Executive Chairman of the Company, lan Johnson is Executive Chairman
of Circassia plc and Non-Executive Director of Ergomed plc. lan has, nonetheless, been able to




devote sufficient time to the Group to date and the Board will continue to monitor this until
his retirement from the Board.

Details of the number of regular scheduled meetings of the Board and committees, together
with the attendance record for each Board member, are set out on page 33.

The Board recently concluded an assessment of its performance and more detail is provided

“below against Principle 7.

Principle 6

Ensure that between them the
directors have the necessary up-to-
date experience, skills and
capabilities

Directors’ details and biographies are on page 34. The Board considers that it has sufficient
skills and experience to enable it to execute its duties and responsibilities effectively given the
nature and size of the Group. As mentioned above, the appointment of Helena Feltham and
David Senior to the Board has extended the breadth of experience on the Board and enhanced
its capabilities and the Board will be mindful of appointing a new Non-Executive Chairman
whose skills and knowledge complement those of the current Directors. Director§ are
responsibleifor ensuring their continuing professional development to maintain their effective
skills.and knowledge.

As part of the Board performance assessment recently concluded, details of which are set out
below, each Board member provided information on their individual skills and experience in
areas relevant to the Group. This exercise indicated a high level of capability and also provided
insight on additional areas that could potentially form part of the specification for any future
Board appojntments.

The Board receives monthly reports on the Group's operational and financial performance as
mentioned gbove, and formal agendas and reports are also circulated to the Board in advance
of meetings. The Board has access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary) who
is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed, and applicable rules and

regulations are adhered to. Directors are able to obtain further advice or seek clarity on issues

raised in reports or at meetings from within the Group or from external sources. The-Board
also has a|procedure whereby any director may seek, through the Company Secretary,
independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties, if necessary, at the Group's
expense: Jon Kempster is the Company’s Senior Independent Director and provides a sounding
board for the Chairman and also serves as an intermediary for the other directors where
required. '

External advisers or conSUItaﬁts have been engaged by the Board in respect of the FCA

Investigation and the implementation of the Restitution Scheme, and in relation to the formal
sales process which took place in the.year, all being significant matters. Since the year end, the
Nomination Committee has engage&%ﬁnsultants in relation to the appointment of a new Non-
Executive Chairman and the Board has also appointed Oakley Advisory as financial adviser to
assist with the implementation of the acquisition strategy of the Company.

On appointment to the Board, new directors receive a tailored induction pack and
introductions to relevant personnel within the Group.

Principle 7

Evaluate board performance based
on clear and relevant objectives,

seeking continuous improvement

* The Board recently carried out its annual evaluation. The assessment was internally facilitated

and comprised the following elements:

- a questionnaire completed by every Board member covering Board and Committee structure,
processes, agendas and priorities. Each Board member's assessment of their individual
performance and feedback on each other was also sought. The questionnaire was based on
one designed by external consultants with considerable experiénce of ‘Board reviews, but
tailored to meet the specific circumstances of the Group;

- completion of a skills matrix by each Board member, as referred to under Principle 6 above,

|t identify areas.of expertise_on the Board_and_additional areas_that the Board.could.consider

in relation to future appointments;

- a Board discussion facilitated by the Company Secretary on the outputs of the questionnaire
and skills matrix. o

In addition to the appointment of Helena Feltham and recruitment of a new non-executive
chairman, the processes identified a number of other actions which the Board believes will
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assist in improving Board performance and these will be implemented during the year,
including:

- new processes for monitoring and reporting on the Board’s communications with investors;

-an increase in the number of regular, scheduled Board meetings to eight per calendar year,
supplemented by ad hoc additional meetings as necessary and monthly written Board reports;

-a review of executive remuneration to be led by Helena Feltham with the assistance of
remuneration advisors; and

-a refreshed approach to board succession planning.

Principle 8

Promote a corporate cult

ure that is

based on ethical values and

behaviours |

i

The Board aims to lead by example with respect to promoting a healthy corporate culture and
ensuring that ethical values and behaviours are embedded in the business. The processes in
place for decision making which are documented in its Committee terms of reference, the
Company’s share dealing code and the requirement for regular disclosure of interests are all

examples of processes which require high standards of behaviour from the Board.

Employment policies adopted by the Group, such as its whjstleblowing and anti-bribery

policies, assist in embedding a culture of ethical behaviour

and the values set out in its

corporate social responsibility statement and Modern Slavery Act statement also reinforce this

culture.

The Group is proud that in FY21, despite the restrictions caused

by the COVID-19 pandemic,

it has worked with a number of local and national charities including Macmillan Cancer

Support, Yorkshire Children’s Trust, the NHS, Sue Ryder, Action
Need. Further details of the Group’s charitable activity is set ou

for Children and Children in
on page 25.

Principle 9

Maintain governance structures

and processes that are fit
purpose and support gool
making by the board

for
d decision-

The business and management of the Group are the collective r:

osponsibility of the Board. The

Board meets at least six times a year in accordance with its scheduled meeting calendar and
this schedule is supplemented with additional meetings as and when required. The attendance

by each Board member at meetings held in the year is shown in

the table below.

At each scheduled meeting, the Board considers and reviews the trading performance of the

Group. The Board and its Committees receive appropriate and ti

mely information prior to each

meeting in accordance with a reporting timetable agreed with the Board and Operating Board.
A formal agenda is agreed with the Chairman for each meeting and papers are distributed

several days ahead of meetings taking place.

The Board_has_a_formal written. schedule_of_matters_reserved_for its_review. and_approval

including approval of the annual budget, majvor capital expenditure and interim and annual
results. Allspecific actions arising are documented following each Board and Committee
meeting, followed up by the Executive Directors and Company Secretary and then reviewed at
the next meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees. A report on

-the composition, responsibilities and key activities of the Audit Committee are set out in the

Audit Committee Report and in the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the Remuneration
Committee.

The Nomination Committee consists of lan Johnson (Chairman), lon Kempster and Helena
Feltham. The Committee meets at least once a year and as required, particularly as and when
necessary to identify and nominate for approval by the Board, candidates for Board
appointments. The Committee engages external consultants when appropriate to assist in the
search for and selection of new Board members. During the year, the Nomination Committee
was involved in the appointment of David Senior as a Director and Chief Financial Officer as
detailed above and following the year end, it has been involved. in identifying the need for a

new NED and Chairman and the appointment.of Helena Feltham to the Board.

The Committee has terms of reference in place which have been formally approved by the
Board and once a year it reviews the structure, size and composition (including diversity) of
the Board, considers succession planning and reviews the leadership needs of the organisation.
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OPERATING BOARD

Authority for execution of approved policies, business plan and daily running of the business
is delegated to the Executive Directors together with the Operating Board of the Group,
which manages and monitors operational performance across the business and ensures
effective decision-making. The Operating Board meets on a weekly basis and provides
written reports to the Executive Directors on a monthly basis shortly before each Board
meeting to ensure that the Board has the most up to date information possible.

princip|e 10 The Board communicates with its shareholders in a range of ways including through the Annual
: Report and Accounts, interim and full-year results announcements, further trading updates
Commumcate'how the companyis | where required and appropriate, the AGM, investor roadshows and one-to-one meetings with
g°"_em?‘? and s performl‘ng by major existing shareholders or potential new shareholders. The Group’s website
maintaining a dialogue with . . . . . .
: (www.redcentricplc.com), particularly the investor section of the site, also provides a range of
shareholders and other relevant - A . | . .
stakeholders corporate information for shareholders, investors gnd the public, including all Company
announcements and presentations.

Group performance information is communicated to colleagues, within the limitations
imposed by the Company’s public company disi:loéure obligations, in a number of ways,
including regular colleague-wide email communications from the Executive Directors and
Operating Board and the quarterly colleague briefing $essions referred to above.

The following table details the attendance of the Board members at regular scheduled Beoard and Committee meetings held during FY21.

Name Position Main Board Audit Committee Remuneration Nomination
’ Committee Committee
(at31
March Total Attended Total Attended Total Attended Total Attended
2021)
lan Johnson Chairman 6 6 - - 7 3 1 1
Stephen NED 6 6 3 3 2 2 1 1
Vaughan - -
Jon Kempster NED 6 . 6 3 3 2 . 2 1 1
Peter CEO 6 6 - - - . R N
Brotherton
Dean Barber?! - - - - - - - - -
David Senior? CFO 6 6 - - . . - - ..

'Resigned with effect from 3 April 2020

2Appointed with effect from 3 April 2020




Board of Directors

Non-Executive Directors
lan Johnson, Independent Non-Executive Chairman of the Board

Appointment date: 16 October 2019
Committee membership: Chair of the Nomination Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee

Experience and external appointments: l1an has served on the boards of a number of public and private companies and has a strong track record
in building shareholder value. He was founder and CEO of Biotrace International plc until December 2006, Non-Executive Chairman of Celsis
Group Ltd from 2009 until 2015, Chairman of Cyprotex plc until 2016, Chairman of Quantum Pharma plc until 2017 and Executive Chairman of
Bioquell plc from 2016 until 2019. lan is currently also a Non-Executive Director of Ergomed plc, a provider of specialised services to the
pharmaceutical industry, Executive Chairman of Circassia Pharmaceuticals plc, a specialty pharmaceutical company, and a director of Klenitise
Limited.

1
l [
i

Jon Kempster, Independent Non-Executive Director and Senior Independent Director
Appointment date; 10 January 2017
Committee membership: Chair of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees

Experience and external appaintments: Jon is an ACA qualified chartered accountant and was previously the Chief Financial Officer at Frascrs
Group plc, Utilitywise plc, Wincanton pic, Low and Bonar plc, Linden Group plc and Fii Group plc. He is also currently an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Ted Baker plc, the global lifestyle brand, Bpnhill Group plc, the digital media and events company, FireAngel Safety
Technology Group plc, supplier of home fire safety products and Sefinus Energy plc, international oil company.

Helena Feltham, Independent Non-Executive Director ' J

Appointment date: 7 July 2021
Committee membership: Chair of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit and Nomination Committees

Experience and external appointments: Helena has previously held executive roles at B&Q plc and was People Director at Jack Wills, Woolworths
South Africa and Marks and Spencer. She also spant time in executive search with\Odgers Berndtson, covering scnior appointments across both
puhlic and private sectars. She has served as a non-executive director in the NHS, as an independent director of the Assembly of 'Walés and 050
lustice of the Peare. Helena currently holds non-exacutive rolas with Ted Baker ple, where she is senior independent director and chdir of the

nomination.committee;.Dogwoof,.a.film.and.distribution.company;.and-The.Retail.Trust

L

Executive Directors
Peter Brotherton, Chief Executive Officer

Appointment date: 28 November 2016. Peter served as Chief Financial Officer of the Company from 28 November 2016 to 21 November 2018
and then as Interim Chief Executive Officer from 22 November 2018 to 28 May 2019, when he was appointed as Chief Executive Officer.

Experience and external appointments: Peter has over 25 years' experience across a number of senior finance roles. Peter's two previous roles
were as Chief Financial Officer of Gametech and Chief Financial Officer at PKR Group. Prior to those two roles, from 2011 to 2014, Peter was
Chief Financial Officer and then Chief Executive of Meucci Solutions NV, Meucci Solutions was an international telecommunications and managed
services husiness. During his time at Meucci Solutions, the business saw strong sales and .EBITDA growth whilst also extensively reviewing its
central financial control function. Peter also had senior finance roles at Varla (UK} Limited, Cell Structures Group plc and spent five years at
Kingston Communications plc, becoming Director of Finance. Peter qualified as an ACA chartered accountant at KPMG. Peter holds no external

appointments.
David Senior, Chief Financial Officer

_ Appointment date: 3 April 2020__

Experience and external appointments: David served in the role of Finance Director of the Group since 2017, prior to his appointment as Chief Financial

Officer. During his time with the Group to date, David has been instrumental in building a strong finance team and made a significant contribution to the
commercial successes of the Group over the last 3 years. David is a chartered certified accountant with 20 years of experience in finance, including in several
senior positions with Wolseley plc.
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Audit Committee Report
The Audit Committee Report which describes the work of the Committee in the last year.

Governance

The Audit Committee consists of Jon Kempster, as Chair of the Committee, and Non-Executive Director, Helena Feltham. Stephen Vaughan
formed part of the Committee until his retirement as a Non-Executive Director from the Board on 27 April 2021. '

The Committee meets at least three times a year at appropriate intervals in the financial reporting and audit cycle, and at other times during the
year as agreed between the members of the Committee or as required. The Executive Directors are not members of the Committee but attend
Committee meetings by invitation, as necessary, to facilitate its business. The Committee also meets the external auditor at least once a year
without management present, to discuss their remit and any issues arising from the previous audit.

During the year, the Committee met three times. Attendance details for the regular scheduled meetings are provided on page 33.

Key Responsibilities

The Committee’s terms of reference are available on the Investor section of the Group’s website. In accordance with the téerms, the Committee’s
responsibilities include:

e monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the Group, including all formal announcements relating to financial performance;
e reviewing and reporting to the Board on significant financial reporting issues and judgements contained in any announcements of
financial performance; .
e  reviewing the effectiveness of internal financial |ontrols and internal control and risk management systems and the need for a internal
audit function; ) 1
e reviewing the adequacy of arrangements for ti}e raising of concerns about possible wrongdoing, procedures for detecting fraud and
systems and controls for the prevention of bribery B i
e the recommendation of, appointment, re-appointment, and removal of the external Auditor;
e  reviewing the scope and results of the external annual audit by the Auditor, their cost effectiveness, independence and objectivity;
. reviewing the nature and extent of any non-audit services provided by the external Auditor.

The Committee reports on all such matters to the Board.
Internal control and risk management

The Audit Committee supports the Board in reviewing the rick managemént methodology and the effactivaneass of internal control. During the
year; the Group has improved its approach to risk assessment with the assignment te a new owner and ac a result now has departmlental risk
registers which feed into a master register which is reviewed by senior management and Operating Board and in turn feeds into a corporate

. register. The management of the master and corporate rigk register is coordinated by the Chief Financial Officar with regular raviaws at Operating
T (T VR T TE DO N O REY T3 KS B hd It gatNg BCtions Yo the Committee =~ T T i

Exterfial audit =

Por—ad

The Audit Committee approved the appointment and remuncration of the external auditer and the Chief Financial Officer monitors the level and
nature of non-audit services and specific assignments are flaggad for approval by the Audit Committee as appropriate. The Audit Committee
reviews non-audit fees and considers implications for the objectivity and independence of the relationship with the external Auditor. The
Committee maintains regular dialogue with the external auditor on ways to improve the efficiency and effectivenese of the external audit process.

The responsibilities of the Board and external auditor in connection with the Group's financial statements are set out in the Statement of Directors'
Rcsponéibilities and Auditor's Report respectively and details of the services provided by and fees payable to the auditor are included in note 8 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

KPMG LLP were appointed as the Group’s Auditor on 15 May 2017. There is an active, ongoing dialogue between the Committee and the external auditor
to ensure there is a clear roadmap of actions to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the external audit process. '

Significant reporting issues and judgements

The-significarit-estimates-and-judgements-made-in“connectionwith the-preparationof the-financial-statements-arethecredit note-provision-and
going concern which are considered in notes 1.1 and 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Jon Kempster
Chair of the Audit Committee , 15 July 2021
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Helena Feltham as independent Non-Executive Director and also consists of Jon Kempster and lan

Johnson, who are also independent Non-Executive Directors. Helena was appointed as Chairperson of the Co

mmittee on 7 July 2021, following

Jon Kempster serving as chair of the Committee on an interim basis after Stephen Vaughan’s resignation from the Board on 27 April 2021. The

Committee meets at least twice a year and at other times during the year as agreed between the members of ti
Committee met eight times during FY21. The attendance record for the regular scheduled meetings is include

Responsibilities
The Group is committed to maximising shareholder value over time. Each year the Remuneration Committee

he Committee. The Remuneration
d on page 33. )

reviews the incentive and reward

packages for the Executive Directors to ensure that they are aligned with the Group's strategic objectives and financial performance, and are
appropriate to attract, retain and motivate management behavidur in support of the creation of shareholder value.

The Committee has formal ter
recommendations to the Board, ithin its terms of reference, on the remuneration and other benefits, inclu
the Executive Directors. The termis of reference also include committee oversight of several other significant re|
of the Executive Directors, inclug ing the remuneration and retention of key Operating Board members. In
year, the Committee consulted with the Executive Directors about its proposals. The Board sets the annu

s of reference which can be found in the investor section of the Groub" website. The Committee makes

ing bonuses and sharc options, of
muneration matters beyond those
considering remuneration for the
al base fees payable to the Non-

Executive Directors and they- do not receive any additional benefits, nor are they eligible to participate in any pension, bonus or share-based

incentive arrangements.

Chief Executive

Peter Brotherton (formerly Chief Financial Officer), who was Interim Chief Executive Officer from 122 No
parmanent Chief Executive Officer on 28 May 2019. Tho remuncration package of the Chief Exccutive Officer v
Remuneration Committee on his|permanent appointment.

Chief Financial Officer

Dean Barber was appointed as-Chief Financial Officer with effect from 2 September 2019 and his remune
approved by the Remuneration Gommittee as part of the recruitment process. David Senior replaced Dean Ba
April 2020, and his remuneration was reviewed and approved by the Remuneration Committee as part of his

Basic salary and benefits
Basic salaries are reviewed on a discretionary basis. The benefits provided for each Executive Director include

life assurance cover of 4 times salary;

vember 2018, was appointed as
vas reviewed and approved by the

ation package was reviewed and
rber as Chief Financial Officer on 3
appointment.

private.medical.insurance for.themselves,.their.Spouse.and.theic.children;.and.

I a contribution to a private pension plan.

Performance-related bonus

The Remuneration Committea determines the criteria for tha award of performance bonuses for the Exccutive
The bonuses are non-pensionable.

Directors in advance of each year:

In addition to the Long-Term Incentive Programme, the Executive Directors participate in a special bonus scheme which will pay out, in the event

of a change of control, either shares in the Company or an equivalent monetary value at the change of control

the Remuneration Committee at the time and also subject to an initial uplift requirement. Dean Barber’s pa

upon his leaving the Group and David Senior has now been included in this scheme.’

Share options

| price, subject to the discretion of
rticipation in this scheme lapsed

Evecutive Directors participate in the Company’s share option schemes and the Remuneration Committee approves the granting of any share

options.
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Recruitment and promotion policy
The Committee proposes an Executive Director's remuneration package for new appointments in line with the principles outlined in the table
below:

Element of Policy
remuneration

Base Sala Base salaries are set by the Committee on appointment and then reviewed annually. In setting and reviewing
ry
salaries, the Committee considers the responsibilities of the role, progression in the role, individual
- performance, skills, experience and pay levels within the Group. -

Benefits Executive Directors are entitled to life assurance cover of 4 times salary and private medical insurance for
themselves, their spouse and their children.

] Pension Executive Directors are entitled to receivé pension contributions from the Company.

Annual bonus The Remuneration Committee determines, at the start of the financial year, the criteria for the award of a
discretionary annual performance bonus. Performance is measured over the full financial year and
approgpriate clawback provisions are in place in relation to any payments made.

Long-term . Executive Directors are entitled to participate in the Company’s Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and Save As
incentives - You Earn (“SAYE”) Option Plan. The Rempneration Committee approves the granting of any share options
under the Long-Term Incentive Plan and the Board approves the issue of invitations to apply for SAYE options.

Service contracts
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have service contracts with a provision for termination notice period of six months,
increased to twelve months in the event of a takeover.

Men-Executive Directors have letters of appointment. Appointments con be terminated with six months’ notice save fur the Chainman, whose
appointment may be terminated on twelve months’ notice. The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors takes the form of an annual fees
which is not pensionable.

The details of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors’ service contracts and appointment letters are summarised below:

Contractual notice  Length of service at

Date of appointment period (months) 31 March 2021
Executive Directors T } :
Peter Brotherton — 28 November 2016 6 4 years 4 months
David Senior ey 3 April 2020 ey 11 months
Non-Executive Directors
lan Johnson 17 October 2019 6 1 year 5 months
Jon Kempster . . 10January 2017 6 4 years 2 months
Stephen Vaughan . . 13 June 2017 ’ 6 3 year 9 months

12 months in the event of a takeover.
The service contracts and letters of appointment continue in force until notice in writing is given by either the Company or the director.
- The Executive Directors’ salaries as at 31 March 2021 are set out in the table below: -

Salary 31 March  Salary 31 March

2021 . 2020
£'000 £000
Peter Brotherton =~ . , 300 300
David Senior. R ) . . o _ 160 o -




Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ fees

The Board, within the limit authorised by the Company’s Articles of Association and following recommendation by the Executive Directors,
determines Non-Executive Directors’ fees. The Chairman receives a fee of £85,000 and during FY21, the other Non-Executive Directors received
a fee of £40,000, with an additional fee of £5,000 for chairing a Board committee. With effect from 1 July 2021, the fee received by Non-Executive
Directors has increased to £45,000, with the additional fee of £5,000 for chairing a Board committee remaining unchanged.

Annual fee Annual fee

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

. £'000 £000

lan Johnson (appointed 17 October 2019) 85 -
lon Kempster (Chair of Audit Committee) 45 40
Stephen Vaughan (Chair of Remuneration Committee) ' " 45 40
Chris Cole (resigned 17 October 2019) : - 70
Chris Rigg (resigned 31 December 2019) - 40

Directois imay claini reasonable business) expenses in accordance with the Group’s expense policy and be reimbursed on the same basis as all
colleagues. The Group may reimburse business expenses which are in future classified as taxable benefits by HMRC. :

Total remuneration for the Chief Executive Officer

The table below shows the total remuneration figure for the Chief Executive Officer over a five-year performance period. The total
remuneration figure includes bonus and benefits.

’ : Total single figure
Year ended 31 March Executive £'000
2021 Peter Brotherton 672
2020 Peter Brotherton = 489
2019 Peter Brotherton 100
) Chris Jagusz! 207

2018 .~ Chris Jagusz 154
Fraser Fisher? 209
2017 Fraser Fisher 369

'Chris Jagusz was Chief Cxecutive Officer until his resignation on 22 Movember 2019. Peter Brotherton was appointed interim Chief Executive Officer at this time.

2Fraser Fisher was Chief Executive Officer until|his resignation on 20 October 2017. Chris Jagusz was appointed Chief Executive Ofﬁce'r at this time.

Single total figure of remuneration for Directors (audited)
e T TR atiON O the Difector s T Tespect of theyear wasas ol lows:

= Basic Salary, _—
o allowances, - Share-based
and fees Bonus Pension payments FY21 Total FY20 Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 €000 -
Executive ) .
Peter Brotherton! C 300 150 10 212 - 672 529
David Senior2(appointed 3 April 2020) 146 80 T 7 32 265 -
Dean Barber (appointed 2 Sept 2019, 4 - - - 1 107 »
resigned 3 April 2020) ) B -
Non-executive -
lan Johnson (appointed 16 Oct 2019) -85 - - - . 85 -39 .
Stephen Vaughan 45 - - - 45 49 -
Jon Kempster . 45 - T - .45 44 :
Chris Cole (resigned 16 Oct 2019) - - - - - 41
Chris Rigg (resigned 31 Dec 2019) - s - - e 30

Yincludes travel allowance of £1k. On 20 November 2020 Peter Brotherton exercised options over 28,571 ordinary shares of 0:1p each at a price of 63p resulting S
in a gain of £17,000. On 22 December 2020 Peter Brotherton exercised nil-cost options over 192,481 ordinary shares of 0.1p each resulting in a gain of £212,000. -
On 26 September 2019 Peter Brotherton exercised nil-cost options over 161,905 ordinary shares of 0.1p each resulting in a gain of £143,000. ot

2 On 20 November 2020 David Senior exercised options over 28,571 ordinary shares of 0.1p each at a price of 63p resulting in a gain of £17,000. On 22 December
2020 David Senior exercised nil-cost options over 29,100 ordinary shares of 0.1p each resulting in a gain of £32,000.




Executive Director’s share options in the Company (audited)

Details of share options in the C

ompany held by the Directors during the year are as follows (audited):

Balance, 31 Balance, 31

Exercise March Forfeited / March

price (p) 2020 Granted expired Exercised 2021

Peter Brotherton (a) Nil 192,481 - - (192,481) -
' {b) 63 28,571 - - (28,571) -
() Nil 298,879 - . - 298,879

(d) Nil 379,267 - - - 379,267

() Nil - 242,915 . - 242915

899,198 242,915 - (221,052) 921,061

David Senior (b) 63 28,571 - - (28,571) -
(e) Nil 29,100 - - | (29,100) -

(f) Nil 20,000 - - - 20,000

(d) Nil 100,000 - - - 100,000

(g) Nil - 129,555 - - 129,555

177,671 129,555 - (57,671) 249,555

Dean Barber Nil 175,750 - (175,750) - -

(a) The options were granted oJ
ended 31 March 2020 subject t

(b) The options were granted on

contribute @ monthly amount which is saved over 3 years to buy charos. Tha options were exarcisable frg

performance conditions.

{c) The options were granted on
the ycar ended 31 March 2021

ko)

b the achicvement of performance conditions related to the growth in earnin

29 june 2017 under the Company’s HMRC approved Save-As-You-Earn Optio

26 November 2018 under the Company's LTIP. The optiéns will vest post tk
subject to the achievement of performance conditions related to the growth

29 June 2017 under the Company’s LTIP. The options vested post the release of the Group's results for the year

gs per share.
m 30 August 2020. There were no

e release of the Group's resuits for
in earnings per share. ’

(d) The options were granted op 28 June 2019 under the Company's LTIP. The options will vest post the release of the Group's results for the

. ycar cnded 31 March 2022 subject to the achievement of performance conditions related to the growth in ¢

(e} The options were granted or

1 December 2017 under the Company’s LTIP, The options vested post the re

hare price.

lease of the Group's results for the

year ended 31 March 2020 subject to the achievement of performance conditions related to the grewth in earninge per share.

- (f) The options were granted on 27 June 2018 under the Company's LTIP. _The options will vest post the release of the Group's results for the

h Plan 2014 under which employees '

= - year ecnded 31 March 2021 subject to the achievement of perfermance conditions related te the growth in earnings per chare.

_::-::" (g) The options were granted on 8 December 2020 under the Company‘gEiP. The options will vest post the release of the Group's results for
the year ended 31 March 2023 subject to the achievement of perfoermance conditions related to the growth in‘share price.

(h) The options were granted on 3 September 2019 under the Company’s LTIP. The options will vest post the release of the Group’s results for
the year ended 31 March 2022 subject to the achievement of perfermance conditions rolated to the growth in share price.

e
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Directors’ interests in shares
The interests (both beneficial and family interests) of the directors in office at the date of this report in the share capital of the Company were

as follows:

Interests in share- | terests in share-
Interests in ~ Interests in based incentive based incentive
ordinary shares  ordinary shares at options at 31 options at 31
at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 March 2021 March 2020

Executive . :
Peter Brotherton ) 228,571 20,000 921,061 899,198
David Senior . . 14,550 - - 249,555 177,671

Non-Executive

Stephen Vaughan 20,000 20,000 - -
Jon Kempster 10,249 10,249 - -

j

| |
Remuneration policy for Executive Directors compared to other employees

The table below shows the movement in the salary, benefits and annual bonus for the Chief Executive Officer between the current and previous
financial year compared to that of the total-amounts for all employees of the Group for each of these elements of pay.

Yearended 31 . Year ended 31

March 2021 March 2020 Change
£'000 £°000 %
ChiefiExecutive Officer
Salarl 300 300 0.0%
Benefits 11 11 0.0%
Annual Bonus i 150 80 87.5%
Average of all employees '
Salary : 38 36 5.6%
Benefits ] ' 2 2 0.0%
Annual Bonus . 2 1 100%

Relative importance of spend on pay
The table below shows the Group’s expenditure on shareholder distributions (including dividends) and total employee pay expenditure.
Additional information on the number of employees, total revenue and underlying profit has been provided for context.

el Year ended 31 Year ended 31 =
s . March 2021 March 2020 -+~ZChange
£000 £'000 %
Employee expenditure 21,210 20,230 4.8%
Distributions to shareholders . 1,868 2,731 (31.6%)
Average number of employees - 420 462 (9.1%)
Revenue ' _ 91,399 87,485 " 4.5%
Adjusted EBITDA : ) 24,476 20,695 18.3%

Share price
The market price of the Company’s shares on 31 March 2021 was 130.0p per share. The highest and lowest market prices during the year were
158.0p and 96p respectively. ’

Helena Feltham
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

15 July 2021
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Directors’ report

The Directors presents their annual report together with the audited financial statements for FY21.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Group during the year was the supply of IT managed services. The Company is a holding company.

The Strategic Report on pages 1-26 contains a review of the business, future developments and the principal risks and uncertainties.

Dividends

An interim dividend of 1.2p per ordinary share was paid in December 2020. Following good trading performance, strong cash generation and
the closure of the Restitution Scheme, the Board has decided to reinstate a progressive dividend policy. The Directors will therefore be
recommending the payment of a final dividend of 2.4p per share in respect of FY21 to shareholders which, if approved at the AGM, will be paid
on 17 September 2021 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 6 August 2021.

Substantial shareholders
As at 31 March 2021 and 30 June 2021 (being the latest practicable date pefore the publication of this report) the Company had been notified
of the following significant interests in 3% or more in its ordinary shares: |

31 March 2021 31 March 2021 30 June 2021 31 June 2021

Number % Number ’ %

Kestrel Investment Partners 28,247,439 18.09 28,038,649 -+ 17.99
ND Capital investments Ltd ) 24,840,868 15.91 24,840,868 15.91
Lombard Odier Asset Mgt - 19,416,844 12.44 20,037,810 12.83
Slater investments 18,587,657 11.91 18,587,657 11.90
Harwood Capital 18,192,500 11.65 17,294,188 11.08
Mr Richard Griffiths 8,582,000 5.50 . 8,353,500 5.35
Chelverton Asset Mgt 8,125,000 5.20 8,125,000 . 5.20
Artemis Investment Mgt 4,838,447 3.10 4,838,447 3.10

As of 30 June 2021, the Company’s issued share capital is 156,165,710 ordinary shares.

Directors and their interests
The following were Directors of Redcentric ple during the year and at the date of approval of these financial statements:

e |anJohnson
D

t, {o] +h o et
e Dean Barber (resigned 3 April 2020) : : .
e David Senior (appointed 3 A'bﬁi 2020) , =
e JonKempster o
e Stephen Vaughan (resigned 28 April 2021)
e Helena Feltham (appointed 7 July 2021} -

Details of Directors’ remuneration, service agreements and interests in the share capital of the Company are provided in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 36-40. Details of the Directors’ contracts, remuneration and share options granted are also set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report, on pages 36-40. ’

Relevant Directors will retire in accordance with the terms of the Articles of Association of the Company and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Directors’ indemnities and liability insurance

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Directors have the benefit of an indemnity which is a qualifying third-party indemnity provision
as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force throughout the last financial year and is currently in force. The
Company-also-purchased-and-maintained-Birectors—and-Officers*liability-insurance-throughout-the-financial-year-in-respect-of-itsetf-and-its
Directors. i ’

41




Employees _

The Group’s employment policies are designed to ensure that they meet the statutory, social and market practices where the Group operates.
The Group systematically provides colleagues with information on matters of concern to them (including through Group-wide announcements
and all employee calls), consulting them or their representatives regularly (including through colleague forums, roadshows, the Company’s
newsletter and the colleague survey), so that their views can be considered when making decisions that are likely to affect their interests.
Colleague involvement in the Group’s performance is encouraged (including through employee share schemes such as the Save As You Earn
Scheme), as achieving a common awareness on the part of all colleagues of the financial and economic factors affecting the Group plays a major
role in maintaining its relationship with its staff. '

The Group is committed to employment policies, which follow best practice, based on equal opportunities for all colleagues, irrespective of sex,
race, colour, disability or marital status. The Group gives full and fair consideration to applications for employment for disabled persons, having
regard to their aptitudes and abilities. Appropriate arrangements are made for the continued employment and training, career development and
promotion of disabled persons employed by the Group.

For further information on our colleagues see page 22 of our Corporate Responsibility statement.

! ]
Going concern i j
The Group’s activities and an outline of the deveiopments taking place in relation to its services and marketplace are considergd in the strategic
report on pages 1 to 26. Acommentary on the re‘L/enue, trading results and cash flows is provided in the financial review on pages 8 to 13.

Note 3 to the financial statements sets out the Group’s financial risks.

The Group is forecast to be profitable and is cash generative with high and continuing levels of recurring revenue and high levels of cash
conversion expected for the foreseeable future.

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts which indicate that, taking account of reasona bly possible downsides and the im pact of COVID-
19 on the aperations and its financial resources, the Group and the Company will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilitics as they fall duc for
that period.

The Directors’ forecasts have been built from the detailed Board approved budget for the‘year ending 31 March 2022. The forecasts include a
number of assumptions in relation to order intake, renewal and churn rates and EBITDA margin improvements.

Whilst the Group's trading and cash flow forecasts have been prepared using current trading assumptions, the operating environment presents
a number of challenges which could negatively impact the actual performance achieved. These risks include, but are not:limited to, achieving
forecast levels of order intake, the impact on customer confidence as a result of general economic conditions and Brexit and achieving forecast
margin improvements. ' l

The Group has not observed any material impact in trading performance due to COVID-19. However, due to the uncertainty over the duration

and extent of the impact of COVID-19, the Directors have modelted a severe but plausible*downside scenario when preparing the forecasts. This
downside scenario assumes significant economic downturn, impacting new order intake,.and an additional 3-month lockdown from December
2021 to FebFG_a'ry 2022 with no new order intake during this period. In this scenario, recurring monthly order intake is forecast to reduce by 59%
compared to FY21, product and services revenues reduce by 22% compared to FY21 and customer loss through insolvency increases (particularly
in the retail, hospitality, and leisure sectors). Under the downside scenario modelled, the forecasts demonstrate that Group is expected to
maintain sufficient liquidity. The Directors therefore remain confident that the Group has adequate resources to continue to meet its liabilities
as and when they fall due within the period of at least 12 months from the date this Report.

Purchase of own shares

The authority to make piirchases of the Campany’s shares on its behalf was given by resolution of the shareholders ot the Company’s 2019 and
2020 AGM, and in September 2019 the Company announced that it had approved a share buyback programme of the Company’s ordinary shares
for an aggregate purchase price of up to £2million (the “Programme”). The Company announced shortly after the end of FY20 that the Programme
would be temporarily halted until such time as the outlook around COVID-19 became more certain and in November 2020, in the announcement
of its audited results for the six months to 30 September 2020, the Company announced that it would reinstate the Programme. No share
buybacks were made during FY21 but the Board will retain the option to selectively purchase shares on the market as and when it believes it is
appropriate. ’
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Annual General Meeting

The 2021 AGM will be held at the offices of finnCap plc at 1 Bartholomew Close, London EC1A 7BL at 12:30 on 9 September 2021 and the Board
is keen to welcome shareholders in person this year given the constraints faced in 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Company will,
however, continue to monitor the impact of COVID-19 and government guidance relating to restrictions and measures in relation to the holding
of general meetings. If it becomes necessary or appropriate to revise current arrangements for welcoming shareholders in pérson, further
information will be made available on the Company’s website and by RIS announcement. The notice convening the AGM and what shareholders
should do to register their intention to attend and/or vote by proxy are contained in a separate circular to shareholders and on the Group’s
website at https://www.redcantricplc.com/investors/shareholder-documents/. '

Corporate governance
The Group'’s statement on corporate governance can be found in the Corporate Governance section of this Annual Report and Accounts and
which forms part of this Directors’ Report and is incorporated by reference.

: |
The Group’s financial risk management|objectives and policies are described in note 3 to the financial statements. E

Disclosure of information to the auditor

The Directors of the Company at the date of approval of these financial statements confirm, as far as they are aware, that there is no relevant
audit information of which the auditor is unaware. The Directors have individually confirmed that they have taken all reasonable steps that they
ought to have taken as Directors in grder to ‘make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and tg establish that it has been
communicated to the auditor. ' )

Subsequent events
Following the end of FY21, the Company took action to dissolve a number of dormant subsidiaries as referred 19 in notes 29 and 31 of the
financial statements. -

There have béerj no other significant events between the balance sheet date and the date of approval of these accounts.

8y order of the Board

| ) ”

{@ £ ' ' —

Harn Jagpal
Company Secretary
15 July 2021
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and parent Company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent Company financial statements for each financial year. Under the AIM Rules of
the London Stock Exchange they are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards
in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and applicable law and they have elected to prepare the parent Company
financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and parent Company and of the Group'’s profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the Group and parent
Company financial statements, the directors are required to:

select sui

make judi’

for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in acc

conformi

for the parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK accounting s
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

assess th
and

use the g
or have n

The d{i rectors 2

and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent Co
statementS'colmply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a St
with that law e‘and those regulations. :

able accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

i
sements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant, reliable and prudent; |

y with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

e Group and parent Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclog

oing concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the G
o realistic alternative but to do so.

re responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to

ordance with international accounting standards in
tandards have been followed, subject to ény material
ing, as applicable, matters related to going concern;
roup or the parent Company or to cease operations,

show and explairjthe parent Company’s transactions
mpany and enable them to ensure that its financial
ontrol as they determine is necessary to enable the
to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

rategic Report and a Directors’ Report that complies

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company’s website.

Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

By order of the Board e

Harn Jagpal
Company Secretary
15 July 2021
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kPG
Independent
auditor’sl report

to the members of Redcentric plc

1. Ouropinion is unmodified

Al IS

i S . .
£731,0600 (2020:£51.8,000)

We hevs sudited the finsncial statemaenie of
Redcentric ptc {“the Company™) for the yazr ended
31 Msreh 2031 which comprize the Concelidsted

- Materiality:
group financial

stEtEMemE 805 0.8% (20720: 0.6%) of Group

Stertement of Comprahenzive incoms, Consolidated revenus
Statemant of Finaroia! Position. Conzolidzied Cazh | vhots )
Flovs Stz -oncoli Steten & 4y of t
'C{M S’f_t.en "Eem_.' CCE? °I-(dm?d3”;_5 'aﬁf;:“f Coverage 98%12920:009) of to1z! profia

-nanges in tquity, Lempany salence snest, and loszec tha: mskeup Group
Compeny Statement of Chengec in Equizy and the profit (2020
relstad notes, including the sccounting policies in loash botors tax
no:s | to both the concofidzted financiel sistement= .
snd comipzny finsncizl ciatsments. Key audit matters vs 2020
IR OLGRRC

" Recuming risks  Coing conesm T

— 1hs iinanciel statementa give & true znd {air
visw of the ciste ofzhe Group's end of the
pscart Compeny's aficirs zg at 31 Macch 2021
and of she Group's profiz for ths yesr then
ended;

— 1hs Group finsnciat atzzamenic have besn
prepaify propaersd in sccordanes with
intarnstiona! accounting sisnderde in
conjormity with the requiremernia of the
Companies Act 2006;

— tha paran: Compeny finencial 21g1smenis havs
besn propsrly preperad in eccordancs with UK
aocewiving stendarde, including SRS 101
Asauced Dicclosurs Framework: and

— ths finencial statemensz heve been prepared in
acoordsnce with the reguirements of the
Compeniga Act 2008.

Bazie for opinion

We conducted our eudit in-accordsnes with

Intsrnétional Stenderde on Auditing (UK) (“1SA2

e

Provizicn ior crediznotsa <4

Nevs. Resovarebility of

oarant Company's Fy
‘nvactment in

subsidiarise

————— {3y -end-spplicabla-lavs—Currscponsibilitigsans

dezdribed bslowr. We havs futiilied our ethical
recponaitilitise under, and e7e indspsndent of the
Graup in gccordsncs with, UK ethicel requirsments
including the FRC Ethicef Stendzrd ee épplied to
lizted entities. Wa belisve that the audit evidencs
we- have obtained iz s aufficiant and sppropriats
baaiz for our opinion.




2 Koy'audit matters: 6ur assassmont of risks of material misstatement

Key sudit mattere ars thogss metters thet, in our prufesa:onai judgsment, wers of most: s1gmf‘ cance in the sudit of the financisl
“atements and include the most significant secesced ficke of nman:l mizststemant (whs&hsr or ncs ‘dus to fraud) igentiisd by
us, mcrudmg thoss which had the Qeetsst sifsct on: the overall audit stratagy; the gliocation of resourcss in the sudit; end
dirscting the efforta of the engegamient taem. These mstiere wers sddreesed in the context of our audit of the financial
atstamentz &8 & whols, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide  espsrets opinion on these matisra. In
€miving 81 our sudit opinion sbove, the key sudit mattsre, in decreesing ordsr of eudit significance, were sz followe:

Go.ing concern Disclosure quality:

Ths finznciat sterements explain howvs -
the Board has formed = judgemsnt et
it i sppropriats to adopt the going
concermn basic of preperation for the

. Group end parsnt Company.

Refsr to psgss 53 (sccaunting
policy).

Thset judgemsnt iz besad on an

1

ewalustign of ths [nherent riake 0 the

Group'z{and parsnt Compsny's

.modsl end how theas riske

. mighg sfisct the Group's snd ths parsni
Compeny'z finencia! resourcez or sbility
10 coninus cpsratione cvsr & pericd of
at leses g vaar from ths dzze of spprovet
of the {ipancicl sictements.

Ths ricke most fkely 1o advercsty sffaer
the Group's and the parses Compeny'a
avzileblg finzncial recources over this
psriod wWers:

— The {svel of extamal finsncing
facilities snd ths ebdlizy of the Greup
10 opsrsts wAthin s fiquidity end
cove
finanei

— Tne fmpzct of & daprazsion in demend
and Jna rizk of eradit lozess armmg
fromycustomers tacing dicruption 5 2

rszult of COMD-19.

Thers are zizo less prediciable but
reatistic sacond order impscis, such =z
the impect ¢f COVID-19 on opsrstions

- T ihs UK eng India, an
Zrexit and ths erosion of cuztomst or
zupplisr confidencs, which couid razuit
in & rapid rsduction of svaileble finsnciz!
FIITUICE3.

Ths rick for our audit wes whethsr or nos
thoes rizks wsra such ths? thay '
amountsd 10 8 materisi Unesma Nty thes
may hisvs cazt cigniiicent doubt zbout the
abitizy to corsinue 28 & going concsrn.
Had thsy bean such, than that fact would
nevs been reqursd to Nave bsen
digclozed.

Our response
Our procsdures includsd:

— Funding Assessment: \Ve zzasseed the
cemmitied leve! of finzncing avzilabls to the
Group end foracest covensnt headroom $or 2t
legat the nexz 12 months through
conzideration of ths fecility egresmsnt. \We
crizically eseesced e Directors’ foreczote,
specifically surreunding the Group's sbility to|
MEET COVENSNtE in placs. Ws seesas6d the |
tevel of funding avzilebls 1 ths Group aking
inio acoount e2sh resources 21 ths belance
ghest des end ths impact of post balencs
cheat svanis such 2 performancs to dats.
the expiry of existing bank fzcilives on 30 -
Juns 20232;

Historical Comparisons: W =nzhyzed the
Dirsctors” previous profit forecasiz egainat |
actual outcomes to sacsess histaricst
foraczsting eceuracy snd cseist our
chsliange of the 2022/2623 forscsats
prspersd by the Dirsciocs;

Key dependency assessment: Wa
Idsniifisd the criticel fzctors in dstermining -
whether thara ia £ fizk of buainsas feiturs
bsezed on our detsiled knowlsdge of the
businsea and apscitic Fak easessmenta for
the impest of COVID-19 and Braxit, taking
npui from ths Dirsctors whers sppropriais;

Sensitivity analysis: Ws conzidsrad
zenaiivities over the lsvsl of svailzbls
finzneciel reacurcas indicatsd by the Group's
cash flow {orecaziz wieking account of

aibla (buz nos umggj atiel

advarss efiscte the: could erizs from tnecs
rigke individuslly end coflsetively, inctuding
the modaliing of 2 pencd of COVID- 19
relsted dicruption through o Msrch 3022,
aft=r wiich point the cach flow forscest
modsir 8 gredusl recowveny;

Y]

Evaluating Directors’ intent:
svslustsd ihe echisvebilicy of ths action: ths
Dirgctore conaider they would 15ks w0
improve the peaition sheuld s riska
materigfize. We considerad the impsct of
zpscitic mitigesions such ss raductions in
opsatng expandiurs: end

Assessing transparency: We saze236d
the complatansss and eccurecy of the
msiters coversd in the going concem
dizcloaurs by evshuating the'
rsazoneblensasg of riske snd uncertainties
specified by the disclozure sgsinet our
findinge from our svelustion of the
Dirsciors” szssasmant of going concsm.




2. Koyaudit matters: our assaessment of risks of matsrial misstatamsnt {continusd)}

Provision for credit
notes [provision: £0.9
million; 2020: £1.2.
million)

Refsr to psges 62
teccounting poficyl and
pages 79-80 fHnancis!
disclosures).

Ths risk
Procassing.error and subjective estimats

The Group selis to & lerge customer bags. The
Group hec & history of izsuing invoices for the
incorrect producte orfand smounie end hence
hsa bean isauing meserist lsvaia of credh notes
to corrsct thase. The Group comacts for the
isaue of incorrect invoicing by recording 2
credit nots provigion againat revsnue and trede
racaiveblez. The credit note provicion & besed
on tha valus of cradit noias thas the Geoup
sxpacts 1o subssqusntly issus to corract for
the eaiimaied unrseolved invoicing izausa to
ders. The [irectors generate the cradiz note
proviaion byl esaesaing hiztoric lsvela of credit
riotes rai:-saf sgeinst the relzied invoices
amounta, teking into account coneideration
changs: in the currant finencial garicd.

Thars iz & riak that the cradit nots provicien
rscerded by the Directors 1o ceirzact ior ths
inaccuraie invoicing misy be mazerisiy
underctetad rezulting in rsvsnue and wads
racaivabias [being missteiced.

Our responss

We performed the detsfled tocté below rsther than
sesking to rsely on eny of the Group's controle bscauss
our knowledgs of the design of thase controls
indicgted thet we would not bs zbls to obtain the
required evidence to support feliance on conwols.

Our procedurss included:

— Test of detail: We esssssedthe beaie end
czleulation of ths eredit nots provt'u:.-i_on against our
knowladge of ths businszs end our undsrstznding
&nd avaluation ef the invoicing process;

— Historical comparisons: We evatusted 1?\& lewel
of cradiz notee raised sgeinz: 10! revanus to
ss8622 the zopropristensac of the epplisdirate of
credit notes ta 1otal revenuss in the yser; snd

i

— Test of detail: Wes zsaszged ths laval of
yaar-end cradiz notss, to determins the extent
to which the prevision ig utiliced poct yaar end
znd tha edequacy of the ysar-snd provision.

Recoverability of
parent Company’s
investment in
subsidiaries

i£103.0 milkon: 2020:
£102.4 million)

Reisr to page 85
{gccounting poficyl snd
psge 89 (finsnciai
disclozures).

Forecast-based valuation

\Ws do not ¢onsidsr the recoverable emoun: ef
thiz inveatment 1o be 1 8 high rick of
significan: miastistement, or to be subjactto 8
cigrificant tavel of judgemsnt. However, dus
10 i3 matsrjzlity in she coniaxi of the persnt
Compeny figancia: stzisments €3 a svhols, thic
ia congidsragd o bs the sres which had the
arestest sitsct on our ovsrell parsnt Compeny
gudit.

e perictmed the deiziled tests belowvs rathsy than
sseking to rely on any of ths Group's contreoiy
bscauzs our knowlsdge of the dszign of these
controls indicetéd that we would not be sbie to obtsin
the required evidencs 1o suppon relisnce cn gonisols.

Qur procsdurac included:

— Our sector axperiance: Vs criticelly scsesaed the
razsonabteoness of the key zosumptions uged in
the forecest bazed vslugtion, in perticulsr thoas
ralating 10 foracert SBITDA growth, fong torm
growth ratea =nd the diccount rate in comparizon
to axtarnel and internel evidencs:

— Sensitivity analysis: 'V psrformed breskeven

X Y. —p

lyad FHON3-RG68-EhoNE T

— Historical comparisons: \We s3zsazed the
rezstnableness of the forecasts by conadsring
ths hiztorical zceuracy of the pravieus foracesis:
and

— Assessing transparency: We scoscesd swhethsr
tha peren: Compzny’z dicolosuras in ratation ta
recovarability esosscmen: rsflectsd the risks
inhsrent in 1he recoversble emount of the parent
{ompeny's coct of investmsns in subsidiariss.

In the prior yesr we reported & ksy audit matar in respect of the impect of uncertzintiaa dus to the UK exiting the Europesn
Union. Following the trsde sgreement betwesn the UK and the EU, and the end of the EU-axit implementstion pariod, the
nsturs of thees uncscwinties haes changed. We continue to perform procedurse over matsrisl assumptions in forwerd looking
zezeeemMants such &6 going concsrn and impsirmsnt 1este, but howsever, we no longer considsr the effect of the UK's
deperture from the EU to be & separats Key sudit matter.

Ws coniinue to perform procedures ovsr the cutcoms of the FLA investigation. However, followsing the closuts of the

regtitution.eoheme.in the yesr.we heve not.ssesssed.thiz. matter.as one.of the most significent feke.in ourcument yéar audit
znd, tharefora, it iz not zepsraisly ideniified in our report thia yesr.




3. Our application of materiality and an everview
of the scope ofour audit

Msterislity for the. Group finenclel ststemsnts es &
whole wes get et £731,000 {2020:£512.000),
datesrmined with reference to & benchmark of total
revenue of £01.4 million {2020:£87.5 miitlion) {of
which it représents 0.8% {2020: 0.6%)]. We
considsr t61s) revenues o ba the most eppropricte
benchmerk &3 it provides 8 more stable mezsure
year on yezr than Group profit or losa bsfore tax.
We revized our svelugtion of matarislity e= the
sudit (< : gressed, by applying s revieed percentsgs
%t!inztead of 0.6% to the totzl revenus

7k. We reviced our evaiustion becesusse
the rizskiprofile in the Group hed reduced foliowing
cloaure of the restinution scheme, z2 g6t outin
zection 2 of this raport.

Materizlity for the peran: Compeny financial
stetements 68 8 vvhols wes sst et £517,000
{2020:£517,000), detenmined with rsfersnce to s
Hark of perent Company totsl sazsts, of
which i reprezsnts 0.5% (2G20:0.5%].

In tins wyith our eudiz methodology, our procedurss
on individual eccount balzncas end dizclosurss
wera pgricrmed to a lowrer trwsehold, performance
matszialicy, 20 82 to raduce to &n atospizhls leval
ihe nskthet individuslly immeterizl misstatemsnis
in individuz! acccunt bslances adg up © & matsris)
amountlacross the finzncisl statements az & whols.

srice mietsrislity wes set at 60%
{2020:859¢) of materialiy for the financisl
ststemgnte as 8 whols, which egustes to £475,150
C"OQD 33 ,700) for ihe Group znd £338,050

(2020: E@SB .050} for the parsnt Company. We
spplied thic percentsge in our determination of
performsnce materiglity bezad on ths lsvs! of
identifisd mizstatements znd conwrol deficisnciss

Total Revenue

£91.4m (2020:£87.6m}

& Total Rsvenua
' Group materiality

Group revenue

qU7ing tRe"priar pencd.

\We agreed to raport to ths Audis Commitzee any

corectad or uncorrscted idsntifisd missiztoments e

sxceading £36,550 (2020:£25,800}, in addition te
other identitied misatatements that warrsnied
raporiing on quelitytive grounde.

Gt the Group’z 3 {2020: 3| rsporting components,
we subjectsd 2 §2020: 2) to full ecops sudizs for
Group puUrpo2ss.

The componants within the scops of our work
sccountsd for the percentzges Mluswetad cpposiia.

For ihe reaidus! | 12020 1| componsnz, we
psriormad anslysis 8t an sggregsted Group lavel to

' re-examine our £assesMent that there were no
gignificant ricke of matarial misstatement wAthin
theze.

The waork on sfl 3 {2020: 3} componsnis was
pariormad by the Group tasm.. -

The componsnt matarisfitias rengad from

£517:000t0°£578;50072020:"£482,V00 15
£517.,000}, heving regerded the mix of size and
rigk profids of the Group across the components.

ke

Group materiality

£731.,000 (2020 £518.000)

£731 ,_000

Whols finenciel

statemnents matadaity (2020:
£518,000}

£475,150-

Wihols fnencial
gretsments periomancs
maternelity {2020
£338,700)

£579,500

Rengs of meterisfzy ez 2
compcnents (€6 17,000-
£579,50¢)

{2020-€492,100C 10 £617,000)

1 £36,550

Mizzigtsments repentsd to the
sudit commitiae

12020:£26,200}

Total profits and losses
that make up Group
profit before fax

Full scops for goup eudit purposes 2024

E Residusl componanty

Fulfswpa'iur‘gmp'euditpmpdsea*’.!(ﬁe




4.

Going concern

The Directorzs have prepered the financil statements on ths
going concern besiz ez they do not intend to fiquidats the
Group or ths parsnt Comparny or to cesae their opsrationa,
end as they hsvs concluded that the Group end the paremt
Company'e financizi pozition maenc' thet thia i reslistic.
They hava elec concludsd thsr thers are .no mesterist
uncertainties that could heve cest significent doubt over
their bifity to coatinug sc & going concsarn for gt lezst a
year from the dste of zpprovel of ths financizl zizzaments
["2hs going concem pariod”}).

An sxplanstion of how ws evziuzisé managsmsnt's
ssaescmisnt of going concsrn {3 2et cut in ths ralsted key
eudit msatet in 2ection 2 of this reporz.

Our conciuaions beced on thie work:

s v concider that the Directors’ use of the going conesrn
bascis of sccounting in the preperation of e financizl
stetemsnts isapproprists;

s w3 havs not identified. end concur with the Diractors’
ascezement that thare 2 not, @ mstsnzl uncsaaing
ralsted to swventz or conditions thset, individuslly or
collsctivaty, may cest aignificant doubt on the Group's or
the psrant Compeny's sbifity to continus &t & going
cancesrn for the going concarn psriod; end

» w3 found the going concem diccicaurs inncta 1w be
acceptable.

However, s& we cannot pradict <l fuwurs svsnite or conditiona
snd a2 zubssquent events may rs3ult in outcomes thet are
inconsiotant with judgements thet wers reasoncble st the
time they were mede. the sbove conclusions 876 not &
quarzntes thet the Croup of the parant Company will continus
in oparstion.

Fraud and braaches of 1aws and regulations - abilityto
datect

fdoniifying and nsoponding ic Noks of meveriel missisismsn:

’

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations - ability to

dstect {continusd)

Ws periormad procedures including:.

— tdentifying joumnel entriss end othsr sdjuztments to test
{for il fult 2cope componsntz zubjsct 1o sudt 53
diccloged in zection 3 of thiz report) bazed on risk criteriz
and compsring the identifisd entriag 10 supporzing
documermstion. Thsecos Ircludad those postad 4o unuzue!
accounte; snd L.

— Performing procedurss over revanus sscagnizion for ell fulf
scopa componsnta including substantive precsdurss in
recpecs of revenus trancactions either cide of the balznes
cheet date znd post year-end credit notea.

ldsntifying ond rssponding 0 ricks of materisl migstatemsnt
due 1o nan-comgplisnce with laws end reguistions

W idenvifiad zreac of lawe end regulations that could
rsawonebly be expectsd 10 have @ metsiizl sffsct on tha
finencig! stazaments from our gsnersl commerciel end
aactor axpsrisnce =nd through diccuscion with ths Dirscters
snd othar mdnagsmenas [zc reguirsd by eudizing stendserds),
and diccussed with the Diregiors and other mansgemsnt
the policies epd procsdures regerding complience with lewz
and regulatiopa.

Ws communrjicsiad idsniified lews znd regulationa
throughout opr teem end remainsd zlert to amy indicationz
of non-complfznca throughout the sudit.

The potentialsfisct of theas lswz and regulations on the
finencisl atasamente varies conciderably.

Firatly. the Group i subject to lawz &nd regulatione that
dirsctly afisct the finznciel stetements including financeel
raporting lsgziesion (including relstsd compeniss
iagialztion}, dictributzble profitc legizlation and taxetion
isgislstion end ws szseszed the extan: of compliznes with
theae lews and regulations =5 pert of our precadursz on the
tolsted finencial satemens itemic.

Sscondly, the Group iz zubjact :0 many othas lews end

aulstionas-whaca-th PRT-X." soin moh

aus 19 frsud -

Fo identify ricks of metenz! misstatemant dus 1o freud

{"iraud rizka") ws assessed svents or condiions thai could

indicete en incantive ¢ prezaure o commit fraud or provide

&n opportunity 1o commit §rsud. Our rick escseaman:

procedurss included:

— Znquiring oi Dirsctors snd the Audit Commines, and
inzpsciion of peley documanistion g2 10 e Group's
nigh-!eval poticies and procadurac 1o prevent £nd dsisct
freud, ao well oo whathor thoy have knowledgs of ary
sciua), suspscted or siisgsd irsud:

— FResding Board snd Sudit Commities minutas:

— Considering remunsrstion incsntive schemsa and
performsnce tergsts for mensgement; and

— Using znelyticel procadures 1o identify eny unusuel or
unsexpsected relstionshipa.

We cammuniceted identified frzud riskes throughout the

sudit teem and remeined alsrt to any indicetione of frsud

throughout ths gudit. .

Az required by suditing standards, end taking into sccount

q
could havs s materizl sffsct on smountz or declozuras in’
ths financizl sletemsnts, {or inztarice througn ths
imposition of fines ot litigation.

Wis identified the following sraaz a3 thoss mosztlikshy to hav
cueh en offsen: fsskh and caifety, znii-bribery, smployment and
aocial legiclation, detz protecien lews, environmesnizl
proiaction {agizlstion and contract legiclastion. Auditing
erendards limit the requited sudit procadurss to identify nen-
comglisnce swith these kaves and ragulations to engUiny oF ths -
Directors end othsr menagsmaent and inspection of ragulstory
and ‘sgal corraapondence, if sry. Therefors if 2 bresch of
oparsional regulstions is not dicclozed to uz or svident irom
relevant correspondances, an sudii will not detect thet bresch.

‘pozeible precsures to meet profit tergsts, we perform

procedurss to sddress the risk of management overrids of
controla and tha risk of fraudufent revenus recognition.

Ve did not identify any edditionsl fraud risks.
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Context of ihe sbility of the sudit ta detact fraud or
braaches of faw or regulsiion

Owing to ths inhersnt limitations of an cudit, there & en
unsvoidsble rick that we may not have dstected soms
msterial missteternents in the finenciel stetemsnta, even
thcugh we have properly planned and performed our sudit in
accordance with suditing stenderde. For example, the
further removed noncompliance with lawa and regulations is
from whe evenis and transactions refiacted in the finencisl
ataternsants, the less likely the inhsrently limited procecursa
requirad by suditing sisndsrds veould identify it.
In eddition, sz with eny sudit, thers ramained € highsd rizk of
non-dewction of fraud, sz thess may involve cojlugion,
forgery, interonal omissions. misrepresentations, jor the
coverride of intefnal conwrole. Our sudit procadures &re
designsd to detec: meiariel misstatemant. VWe ere not
rasponsible for preveruing non-compliznce or freud end
cennot be axpectad w0 detsct non-compliance with sl lsws
&nd regulstions.

8. Woe have nothing to report on the othsr informatign in
the Annual Report

The Diractors are responsibla for the other infogmation
pragsnted in the Annuel Report togethsr with the financial
atatemenis. Our opinion on the finencial sistsments dpss noi
cover the other information and, sccordingly, wa Ho not
sxpress sn sud opinion or, except &2 explicitly staied belowy,
zny form of essurencs conclusion thereon.
Our responzibilicy & to read ths other information &nd, in
doing so, ooneider whether, bsaed on our finznciel
astatemsniz sudit work, the information therein iz materiathy
misctated or inconeistani with the finzncist ezetements or
our gudit knowlsdge. Bsased eolsly on thet work we hava not
Wenufied meterial misatatemsnts in the other inform_ tion.

Strs1egic rsport end dirsctors’ report
Baasd solsly on our werk on ths other informeton:

— /a8 have not identifiod msterisl misstaiomentain ths

8.

Respsctive responsibilities

Dirsctors’ responsibiiitiss.

As expkined more fully in their stestemsnt 85t outon page 44,
the Directore are rezponzible for: the preparstion of the
finencial steiements including bsing estzfied that they give a
true end fair view; such internal control se they dstesmine ia
necesssry. to enebls the preparation of finsncisl stetemsnta
thet ere free from material misststsment, whether dus to
fraud or arror; sesezsing the Group end psrsnt Compsny’s
ability to continue 8 & going concem, disclosing. es
applicabla, mziters relstad to going concarn; and using the
going concem beaia of sccounting unlese they sither intsnd
to liquidsts the Group or the psrent Compsny or to cesss
opseraione. or have no reslietic slzernative but to do eo.

Auditor's recponsibiities °

Our objsctivez ars to cobisin ressconable essursnce ebout
whether ths finenciel statements sa 8 whols ers fres from
materiel misstatemant. whethar due to §raud or arrer, end to
isgue cur opinion in an zuditor's report. Asszcnable
sacurancs is z high levsl of esaurancs, bui doses not guzranise
the: an sudi conductsd in sscordsnce with 1SAs HIKE will
al\-r.rsys dstsct 8 materisl mizsctateman: when it axiats.
Mizstatements can sriee from freud or sror and are
conaidared mzzarial if, individually or in sggregats, thsy could
reazonebly be expscted to influancs the economic decisions
of uesra teken on ths basiz of the financis! aiztsmenzs.

A fullsr dezcription of our responsibilities is provided on e
FAC's webaite et wwve.ire.org.ukigucitoreresponsib linies.

The purpose of ous audit work and to whom we ows our
responsibilitiss

Thia report iz mede solely to the Company’s members, ez @
body, in scoordance with Chspter 3 of Pzrt 16 of the
Coampenies Act 2008. Our a_udﬁ work hes bsen undsrteken
20 thei wa might siste to ths Compeny's members thosse
matters we &ré raquirsd to stats to them in an suditor's
report and for no other purpoge. To the {uflest extent

strateg.c repeort ena the dirsctora’ report;

— n our opinioaths information given in thoss reporte tor
the finzncisliar is consizrant \with the hinancis!
atstemsnts; snd

— in our opinion thoas reponc have bsen preparsdin
accordznce vwith the Companias Act 2008.

7. We have nothing to report on the othsr matters on
which we are required to raport by excsption

Under ths Companiss Act 2008, we &re required to raport

to you if, in our opinion:

— adsquate sccounting records hevs noi besn kapt by the
paran: Company, or ratuma sdaquais for our sudit hava
not basn received from branches not vigited by us; or

— the parent Company fingncisl stsiemenis srenos in
agreement with the eccounting reccrds end
ratums; of

— certain dizclosuras of Directors’ remunsration specifiad by
taw ere not madse; or .

— ws have not recsivad &ll the information and explanations
wea require for our sudit.

permitiot-by-lavwwe-do-not-eccept-orassume-saspensibifty
to anyons other than the Cbr_'npa ny end the Company's
members, 83 a body, for eur audit work, for thie report, or for
the cpinona we havs formed: =~

]

Johnathan Pass {Sanioc Stat;nory Auditort

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Charterad Accouniants !
1 Soveraign Squers

Sovereign Strest

Lesds

LS14DA

15 July 2021

We have ncthing to report in thesse respects.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2021

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
Note £'000 £000
Revenue 6 91,399 87,485
Cost of sales (33,460) (32,297) -
Gross Profit .57,939 55,188
Operating expenditure (49,448) (63,925)
Other operating income 7 4,507 -
Adjusted EBITDA? 24,580 20,604
Depreciation of property, plant and equipmen 16 (3,408) (6,3731)
Amortisation of intangibles : i 15 (7,337) (7,449)
Depreciation of right of use assets ’ 17 (4,932) (2,441)
Exceptional items 9 4,782 (12,516)
Share-based payments 26 (687) (562)
[}
Operating profit/{loss) 12,998 (8,737)
Finance income 10 - S
Finance costs 10 {1,460) (1,881)
Profit/(Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 11,538 (10,613)
Income tax (expense)/credit 12 (2,311) 13
Profit/{Loss) for the period attributable to owners of the parent 9,227 (10,600}
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be classified to profit or loss: -
Currency translation differences .- 103 13
Deferred tax movement on share options (224) -
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period. 9,106 (10,587)
Earnings per share .
Basic earnings/({loss) per share 13 6.01p (7.14)p
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share 13 5.93p (7.14)p

The notes on pages 55 to 86 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. =

—

! For an explanation of the alternative performance measures used in this report, please refer to page 14.
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Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
Note £'000 £000
Non-Current Assets .
Intangible assets 15 65,929 68,415
Tangible assets 16 5,834 12,909
Right-of-use assets 17 18,787 26,010
Deferred tax asset 18 561 1,482
91,111 . 108,816
Current Assets
Inventories 1,061 891
Trade and other receivables 19 25,663 23,261
Corporation tax receivable - 346
Cash and short-term deposits 5,250 3,710
1 31,974 28,208
‘Total assets 123,085 137,024
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 (22,459) (24,311)
Corporation tax payable (641) -
Borrowings 22 (487) {12,598)
Leases 22 (3,735) (3,528)
Provisions 24 {574) (12,122) .
(27,896) (52,559)
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability . - -
Borrowings 22 (1,004) (36)
Leases 22 {(15,593) (22,097)
Provisions 24 (2,695) (2,531)
{19,292) (24,664)
Total liabilities {47,188) (77,223)
B Net assets 75,897 59,801
Equity :
~ Called up share capital 25 156 149 -
S Share premium account 25 73,267 65,734 H -
o Common control reserve (9,454) (9,454) e
sz Own shares held in treasury 25 (32) (724) =
Retained earnings - 11,960 4,096 .
Total Equity 75,897 59,801

The nbtes on pages 55 to 86 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of Redcentric Plc (Registration Number 08397584) on pages 51 to 54 were approved by the Board on 15 July 2021 and

are signed on its behﬁlf by:

David Senior
Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

The notes on pages 55 to 86 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
Note £'000 £'000
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 11,538 (10,613)
Net finance costs 10 1,460 1,876
Operating profit/{loss) 12,998 (8,737)
Adjustment for non-cash items ‘
Depreciation and amortisation 15,16,17 15,677 16,263
Exceptional items 9 (4,782) 12,516
Share-based payments 26 687 562
Operating cash flow before exceptional items and movements in working capital 24,580 20,604
Cash costs of exceptional items (8,884} (817)
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital 15,696 19,787
Changes in wprking capital .
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (15) (534)
Decrease /(Intrease) in trade and other receivables 4,432 (1,779)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables (2,536) 1,343
Cash generated from operations . 17,577 18,817
Tax paid (149) {660)
Net cash generated from operating activities 17,428 18,157
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {1,541) ~ (3,943)
Purchase of intangible fixed assets (1,397) (290}
Net cash used in investing activities (2,938) (4,233)
- Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid : 4" (1,868) (2,731)
Share buy-back - (724)
Disposal of treasury shares on exercise of share options 494 -
Cash received on exercise of share options 36
- Sale and leaseback 1,036 -
Interest paid (1,415) (1,825)
Repayment of leases and loans (4,481) (5,127)
Repayment-of-borrowings ~ - 22 {12;500) (75000)s=sem
Issue of shares i 5,775 . T
Net cash used in financing activities : e (12,923) {17,407)==
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,567 (3,483)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 3,710 7,206
Effect of exchange rates (27) (13)
5,250 3,710
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2021

Share Share Common Own Shares  Retained Total
Capital Premium Control Held in Earnings Equity
Reserve Treasury
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 2019 149 65,588 (9,454) - 19,362 75,645
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 16 - - - - (2,260) (2,260)
Adjusted as at 1 April 2019 \ 149 65,588 (9,454) - 17,102 73,385
(Loss) for the period ) - - - - {10,600) (10,600)
Transactions with owners . ) .
Share-based payments . ' - - - - 484 484
Share buyback - - - (724) - (724)
Issue of new shares - 146 - - (146) -
Dividends paid (note 14) - - - - (2,731) (2,731)
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences - - - - (13) (13)
At 31 March 2020 149 65,734 (9,454) (724) 4,096 59,801
Profit for the period - - - - 9,227 9,227
Transactions with owners
Share-based payments B - - - © 582 582
Issue of new shares 7 7,533 - - - 7,540
Dividends paid (note 14) - - - - (1,868) (1,868)
Share option exercises - - - 692 (198) 494
Other comprehensive income
Deferred tax movement on share options : - - - - 224 224
Currency translation differences - - - - (103) (103)
(9,454) (32) 11,960 75,897

At 31 March 2021 ) 156

73,267

The notes on pages 55 to 86 are an integral part of these consolidated fi

nancial statements.

J

?
}

Y
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

1 Summary of significant accounting polic

ies

Redcentric plc is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales, whose shares are publicly traded on the AIM division
of the London Stock Exchange. Redcentric plc was incorporated on 11 February 2013 and admitted to AlM on 24 April 2013.

The principal .accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have

been applied consistently to all periods covered.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with applicable law and international

accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of
The financial statements arc prepared on a going concern bas

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period o

the Companies Act 2006 (“Adopted IFRS”).

is which the dircctors beliave to be appiropriate for the following 1easuns.,

12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements which indjcate

that, taking account of reasonably possible downsides includirjg the impact of COVID-19 on the operations and its financial resources, the Group

and the Company will have sufficient funds to meet its liabiliti

The Directors forecasts have been built from the detailed Boa

es as they fall due for that period.

number of assumptions in relation to order intake, renewal and.churn rates and EBITDA margin improvements.

Whilst the Group's trading and cash flow forecasts have been
a number of challenges which could ncgatively impact the ac
forecast levels of order intake, the impact on customer confid
COVID-19 on the Group's key operating locations in the UK an

The uncertainty as to the future impact on the Group of the
the going concern basis of preparation. Thus far, the Group

However, due to the uncertainty over the duration and éxter

downside scenario when preparing the forecasts, The Directo
the employees and business operations.

The downside scenario assumes significant economic downt
occurs from December 2021 to February 2022 with..no new @
intake is forecast to reduce by 59% compared to FY21, prod

prepared using current trading assumptions, the operating environment pre
tual performance achieved. These risks include, but are not limited Lo, achi
ence as a result of general economic conditions and Brexit, the potential impz
d India, and achieving forecast margin improvements.

tOVID-19 outbreak has been considered as part of the directors’ considerati
has not observed any material impact in trading performance due to COVI
t of thc impact of COVID-19, the Directors have modelled & severe but play
s have also considered the impact of the ongoing COVID-19 challenges in Ind

rn.over FY22, impacting new order intake, and an additional 3-month lock
rder intake during this 3-month period. In this scenario, (ecurring.monthly

uct and services revenues ‘(eduée by 22% compared to FY21 a'rid custome

rd approved budget for the year ending 31 March 2022. The forecasts inclide a

sents
Bving

ct of

on of
D-19.
sible

iaon

jown
order

loss

through insolvency increases (particularly in the retail, hospitality, and lcisure scctors). Under the downside scenario rodelled, Lhe furecasts
___..ia_md.cmo,nstzatc-\;that;Gmup.j;’—_éxpectcd_to_maintain_sufﬁcicn.t_l1quidi.ty._'[h‘e-l)inecto.rs.ther.eioue.nem‘ain:c‘(m_ﬁdei:lt.tha.t.the_G touplias.adequate
resources to continue to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due within the period of at least12 months from the date this Report.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

1.2 Changes In account

Adopted IFRS not yet applied

ing policy and disclosure

There arc no new standards, amendments to existing standards or interpretations that arc not yet cffective that are cxpected to have a material |
impact on the Group. Such developments are routinely reviewed by the Group and its financial reporting systems are adapted as appropriate.

1.3 Basis of consolidation

.The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and of its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 31 March 2021.

Subsidiarics arc all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully

consolidated from the date on whi(:h.
|

The group applies the acquisition mc{
. of a subsidiary is the fair value of the
transferred includes the fair value of

thod of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration |
asscts transferred, the liabilitics incurred, and the equity interests issucd by
any assel or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement

control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

ransferred for the acquisition
the group. The consideration
Acquisition-related costs are

expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair value at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-

acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net

The cxeess of the consideration trang
identifiable net assets acquircd and |
fur any impairment. Accounting polic
adopted by the Group.

Intra-group transactions, balances an
1.4 Segmental reportin

ITRS 8 requires operating segments
decision-making purposes. The Grou
comprise a single reporting segment

ferred and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree over
abilitics incurred or assumed at the acquisition date is recorded as purchasg
es pireviously applied by acquired subsidiaries are changed as necessary to cc

d unrealised goins and losses on transactions between group companies are

o4
=

0 be identified based on internal financial information reported to the chict,
p considers that this role is performed by the main Board. The Board believe
being the provision of managed services to customers.

assets.

he fair value of the separable
d goodwill. Provision is made
mply with accounting policies

eliminated on consolidation.

operating decision-maker for
5 that the Group continuces to

1.5 Revenue recogn'itio

n

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ requires “performance obligations” to be identified at the inception of the contract for each of

tHETdiStinet go0ds 6T $erVices that have been promiséd to the CUStONTer. THE TollOWINE table SUmMmarises the performance obligations We Have™
uc lincs and provides information on the time of when they are satisfies and the related revenue recognition policy.

identified for our major reven

56



Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

Revenue Line Performance Obligation , Revenue recognition policy

Recurring Revenue Provision of managed services to the Revenue for these types of services is recognised
customer. All of the revenue in this category is | evenly over the period of the agreement as the
contracted and includes a full range of | services are provided.

managed support, maintenance, subscription, '
and service agreements.

Performance obligations are identified for
each distinct service for which the customer
has contracted and are considered to be
atisfied over the time period that these
Iservices are delivered. '

|
5
Product Revenue Provision of third-party hardware (e.g., phone | Revenues for product sales|are recognised in full in the
’ handsets, routers) to the customer as a one- | income statement upon delivery to the customer.

off, distinct sale.

Performance obligations are satisfied at the Amongst other factors the Group has pricing and

point in time that control passes to the fulfilment risk and as such is considered to be principal
customer. in these transactions.

Services Revenue Provision of professional services, consultancy, | Services revenue is recognised from the date of
and engineering services in order to setup and | installation of 3 managed service and recognised evenly
install a customer managed service. over the period of the agreement.

Installation is typically intrinsically linked to | For distinct separable services revenue is recognised at

the provision of the managed services (in | the point of completion.
recurring revenue above) these services do not
represent separate performance obligations
and are therefore combined with the

associated service performance obligation.

The Group also provides certain services that

X
provision of the underlying managed service
contract. The completion of these servic_glﬁs a
separate performance obligation.

There are no material obligations in respect of returns, rofunds or warranties.

The Group recpgnises revenue hased on the stand-alone selling price of each performance obligation. Determining the salling price is typically driven by fist
prices. :

Payments received in advance are recognised as contract liabilitics and amounts billed in arrcars are contract assets. Revenuc expected to be recognised
in future periods for performance obligations that arc not complcte (or partially complete) as at 21 March 2021 is £123m. Of this, £119m rclates to revenue
for recurring managed services. In comparison; revenue expected to be recognised in future periods for performance obligations that were not complete
{or partially complete) as at 31 March 2020 was £140m. Of this, £133m related to revenue for recurring managed services.

Incremental revenues arc generated based on usage for calls and data. The entity has a right to consideration from the customer at an amount that
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed to-date, therefore the entity vecogiises the revenue Lo e
extent to which it has a right to invoice.

1.6 Exceptional items

Exceptional items are items of income and expense which are material and, duc to their noturc or size, are presented separately on the face of
the income statement in order to provide a better understanding of the Group’s underlying financial pcrformance. Cxceptional items are excluded
from the Group’s alternative performance measures (APMs), as defined on page 14, and are disclosed in detail in note 9.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

1.7 Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the award at the date at which they are
granted and is recognised as an expense over the vesting period, which ends on the date at which the relevant employees become fully entitled
to the award. Fair value is determined by an external valuer using an appropriate pricing mode! for which the assumptions are approved by the
Directors. In valuing equity-settied transactions, only vesting conditions linked to the market price of the shares of thec Company arc considered.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are
satisfied. '

At each balance sheet date before vesting, the cumulative expense is calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and management’s best estimate of the achievement or otherwise of non-market conditions, number of cquity instruments that will ultimately
vé;t or in the case of an instrument subject to a market condition, be treated as vesting described above. The movement in the cumulative
expense since the previous balance sheet date is recognised in the income statement, with a corresponding entry in equity.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award arc modified or a new award is designated as replacing a cancclled or settled award, the existing
charge is recognised immediatcly: In addition; an expense is recognised over the remainder of the new vesting period for the incremental fair
value of any modification, based on the difference between the fair value of the original award and the fair value of the modificd award, both as
measured on the date of the modification. No reduction is recognised if this di ference is negative.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for
theé award is recognised immediately. Any compensation paid up to the fair value of the award at the cancellation or settlerment date is deducted
from equity, with any excess over fair value being treated as an expense in the jJncome statement.

Thi costs of equity -scttled transactions with employees are settled by Redcentric Solutions Limited on behalf of the parent Company and added
tofthe cost of the investment in the parent Company.

The Group does not operate any cash settled share-based payment schemes.
1.8 Taxation

The taxation expense charged in the Group statement of comprehensive income represents the sum of the current tax expense and the deferred
‘tax expense.

The current tax payable is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from accounting profit as reported in the Group
statement of comprehensive incoime because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in othei years and it fuithei

oxcludes tems that are never taxable or deductible. The Group liability for current tax’is measured using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. . —

Deferred tax is the tax expacted to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the finangial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax is provided for on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, with the following exceptions:

+  where the temporaiy difference avises from the initial recognition of goodwill o ai asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss; : N

« in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the

temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable fulure,

and . )

+» dcferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences carried forward tax credits or tax losses can be utilised. .

1.9 Foreign currencies

The functional and presentation currency of Redcentric plc is Pounds Sterling (£} and the Group conducts the majority of its business in Sterling:

“Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. All differences are talen to the income statement, except for differences on monetary assets and liabilities that form
part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation. These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which
time they are recognised in the profit or loss. ’
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

1.10 Pensions

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme. Pension costs are charged directly to the income statement in the period to which they
L
relate on an accrual’s basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once coritributions have been paid.

1.11 Intangible assets.
a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiarics and represents the éxcess of the consideration transferred, the armount of any non-controlling
{ interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any pre}/ious equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
i net acsets acquired. If the total of consideration transferred, non controlling interest recognised and previously held inlerest measured at fair

value is less than the fair value of the net asset of the subsidiary, in +e case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly to the

income statement.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (CGUs), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequgntly if cvents or changes iii circuinstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be ™
impaired. As at the acquisition date any goodwill acquired is allocated|to each of the cash generating units expected to benelit from the business
combination’s synergies. Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash generating uiiil tu which the goodwill
relates. When the recoverable :_nméunt of the cash gencrating unit i3 less than the carrying amount, including goodwill, an impairment luss is
recognised.

b) Otherintangible assets

Other intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

—-—————-———Gther-intangible-assets—acqu&red_;s_gparately-fr-om-a—business-are-c—arried—initiaiIy-a'e-eost-.—An-int—angible-asser—ﬁequired-as—par-t-of-a-business
combination is recognised outside goodwill if the asset is separable or arises from contractual or other legal rights and its fair value can be

measured reliably. = =

Intangible assets with a finite life are amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives, as follows:

Customer contracts and related relationships 5-15 years

Trademarks 5 years

Software Licences S years (or over the contract term if shorter)
ERP Systems . . 6 years

Impairment and amertisation charges are included within operating expenditure in the income statement.
¢) Internally generated intangibles

Expenditure on software development is capitalised as an intangible asset only if it meets the recognrition criteria sel vut in 1AS5 38 litangible
Assets, requiring it to be probable that the expenditurc will generate future economic benefits and can be measured reliably. To meel Uiese
criteria, it is necessary to be able to demonstrate, among other things, the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale.

Development expenditure directed towards incremental improvements in existing products, remedial work and other maintenance activity does
not qualify for recognition as an intangible asset.
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‘ Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

1.12 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. The cost includes the original price
of the asset and the cost attributable to bringing the asset to its current working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation, down to residual value, is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset which is reviewed on an

annual basis.

Office Fixtures and fittings
Leasehold improvements

Vehicles and Computer. Equipment

For property, plant and equipment fundcd tk
the lease term, depieciation is provided on &
the lease term.

A item of property, plant and equipment is
continued use of the asset. Any gain or I_o'ss ar
and the carrying amount of the item) is inclu

1.13 Impairment of property, p

Other intangible assets and property, plant g
the carrying values may not be recoverable
amount, the assets or cash generating units

The recoverable aimount of intangible asscts)
assessing value in use, the estimated future
market assessments of the time value of mo
inflows, the recoverable amount is determi
known, based on actual sales price net of co

Non-financial assets that were impaired in th

4 - Syears
15 years (or over the lease term if shorter)
3 - Syears (or over the contract term if shorter)

rough leases, where there is rcasonable certainty that the Group obtains ov
straight-line basis over the useful life; otherwise it’s provided over the shortd

-

nership by the end of
r of the useful life and

de-recognised upon disposal or when no future cconomic benefits are expected to arise from the

ant and equipment and intangible assets excluding goodwill

nd equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
If any such indication exists and where the carrying amounts exceed the
are written down to their recoverable amount.

and propcrty, plont and equipment is the greater of fair value less costs to s
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rat
ney and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generatéwlar
hed by the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Fair value less,
ts incurred in completing the disposal.

e previous periods are annually reviewed to assess whether the impairment

rising on dc rccognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
ded in the income statement in the period the item is de-recognised.

circumstances indicate
estimated recoverable

cll and value in use. In

e that reflects current

gely independent cash
costs to sell is, where

is still relevant.

A4 dnaventorie t.of.Sal
b Gt VB RO RIS LOtoal

=Y
D

li‘nventoﬁ;é_;are stated at the lower of cost and nct realisable value. Cost corrcspond:_.;}?purchase cost determined by the first in first out (FIFQ)

method. -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 {continued)

1.15 Leases

IFRS 16 has introduced a single on-balance sheet accounting model for lessees. When entering into a new contract, the Group assesses whether
it is, or contains, a lease. A lease conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group recognises a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right of use asset is initially measured at
cost, and subscquently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease
liability. Depreciation is previded on a straight linc basis over the life of the lease; or the useful cconomic life if that is shorter.

Obligations to restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease are recognised and measured
under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, and included in the related right-of-use asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date and discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, more typically; the Group’s incremental borrowing rate {when the implicit rate cannot be readily
determined). | : '

The lcase liability is subsequently ihcreased by the interest cost on the Icase liability and decrcascd by lease payments made. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future Icase payments arising from a change in an index or rate; or changes in the Group’s asscssment of whether o

purchase, extension or termination option is reasonably certain to be exercised.
The Group adopts recognition exemptions for short term (less than 12 months) on property and low value on a lcase by lcase basis. The Group
classifies payments of lease liabilities (principal and interest partions) as part of financing activities. Payments of short-tcrm, low value and
variable lease componcnts are claskified within operating activities.

PR O A TR 753 27 G 354 P £ AT Sy T YRy b, VT HG NS S Emeey atmemmany s n < oveer
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

1.16 Financial instruments
a) Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables measured at amortised cost.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’, ‘cash and cash equivalents’, and ‘other receivables’ which are
expected to be settled in cash.

Trade receivables

Trade recgivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold and services provided in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables
are recoghised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised costfusing the effective interest method; less provision for
impairment. ‘

In recognising any provision for impairment, the Group applies the IFRS 9 approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
cxpected loss allowance for all assets held at amortised cost: The Group recognises a loss allowance for all expected credit losses on initial
recognition of trade receivables.

The Group’s trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing.

Cash and cash equivalents

\

Cash and gash equivalents on the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits with an briginal ‘maturity of three
months of less.

b) Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Trade payables are stated at their nominal value, recognised initially at fair value and subsequently valued at amortised cost.

Provisions

Provisions arc recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructiv 1) as a result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. _

If the effect of the time value of money is materié_l,irovisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flow.sva't'"a‘ pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time:value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. =%

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All leans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses arising on the
repurchase, settlement or otherwise cancellation of liabilities are recognised in the finance cost line in the income statement.

Loans are carried at fair value of initial recognition, net of unamortised issue costs of debt. These costs are amortised over the loan term.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Judgéments

The Group adopted IFRS 16 for the first time in FY20. Judgement is applied in determining whether a contract contains a lease and the anticipated
tenure of these leases — whether or not break clauses will be exercised has been determined based on our historical experience and expectations
for future trading and capacity requirements. Further judgements have been made with regard to discount rates applied, determining
appropriate bonds, property asset premiums and in applying the portfolio expedient to enable the same discount rate to be applied across cars
and other non-property leases. : : : .

.The Group recognises an intangible asset in relation to thc development, configuration and customisation of application software to the extent
hat costs can be separately identified and attributed to particular softwarcé programs; measured reliably and the group has the right to the
pconomic benefits of the software asset developed. Judgement is applied in determining whether the Group has control over the development,
configuration and customisations to which the Group has been granted aiperpetual license. The directors recognise that there is evolving
ruidance in relation to the wider application of IAS 38 Intangible Assets specifically in the context of the configuration or customisation costs in
3 cloud computing arrangement and insofar as it is relevant, they will continue to consider the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting policy.

Estimates

Credit note provisioﬁing remains a key source of estimation uncertainty that could result in a material change to the revenue recognised. The
sroup has a large customer base and historically a material number of credit|notes have been raicod by the group due to issuas in the accuracy
of invoicing to customers. A credit note provision is estimated at the period ¢nd to account for revenue which has been recognised in the year,
but for which a credit note will subsequently be raised post year end. The grovision has been calculated based on empirical analysis of credit
notes issued against revenue recognised over a period of two years with adjustments made based on management’s knowledge of specific items
n the customer base. The provision recognised at 31 March 2021 is £0.9m (31 March 2020: £1.2m). During the year £1.0m of new provision has
been created and £1.3m utilised through actual credit notes raised. An increase of 0.5% in the estimate would have resulted in a £457k increase
n the provision as at 31 Mar_ch 2021.

A deferred tax asset of £0.7m (31 March 2020: £2.4m) is recognised in relation to tax losses from historic acquisitions. Deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the cxtent that it is probable that future taxable profits{will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised. Recognition, therefore, involves astimates ragarding the prudent forecasting of future taxable profits of the buciness and in applying an
appropriate risk adjustment factor.

pYVry Pt~
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r——————taken by managementin-themeventof-ahreach of creditlimit:

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

3 Financial risk management

The objectives of the Group’s treasury activities are to manage financial risk, secure cost-effective funding where necessary and minimise adverse
effects of fluctuations in the financial markets on the value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities, on reported profitability and on cash
flows of the Group.

The Group’s principal financial instruments for fundraising are bank borrowings, overdraft facilities and loans. The Group has various other
financial instruments such as cash, trade receivables and trade payables that arise directly from its operations.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange, cash flow interest rate risk, and price risk),
credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out centrally under policies approved by
the Board of Directors. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering each specific risk area. .

a) Foreign exchange risk ' ,
i . !
The Group mainly operates within the UK with foreigh exchange risk arising from certain transactions with counterparties denomiﬁ ated in foreign
currencies. This is not a significant risk for the Group. 3

b)  Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group receives interest on cash and cash equivalents and pays interest on.its borrowings: Borrowings at variable rates cxpose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. During the year ended 31 March 2010 the Group’s borrowings at variable rate were denominated in Pounds Sterling
with interest linked to Sterling interest rates.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking into consideration refinancing, renewal
of evisting positions, alternative financing and hedging. Based on these scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on profit or Igss of a defined
interest rate shift and manages its cash flow interest rate risk accordingly. '

Based on the simulations performed, the impact on post-tax profit and equity of a +/- 1% shift in the interest rate would not be material. The
simulation is done on a quarterly basis to verify that{the maximum loss potential is within the limit given by management.

¢) Pricerisk
The Group is not exposed to significant commodity or security price risk.

d) Creditrisk '

Credit risk arises from cash and cash cquivalents, as well as credit exposures to customers. Individual risk limits are set based on internal and
external ratings and.reviewed by the Board where appropriate. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored with appropriate action

Liquidity risk=

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s undrawn borrowing facility and cash and cash cquivalents based on expected cosh flow.
The Group’s liquidity management policy-involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid asséts necessary to meet these.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

4 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's future growth and its ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Group operates in the managed
services sector which, generally, does not require substantial fixed asset investments. Consequently, the Group is financed predominantly by
equity.

In erder to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Group has previously both issued new shares and borrowed using bank facilitics. The
Group monitors capital on the basis of the ratio of not bank debt to adjusted EBITDA. Net debt is calculated as total bank borrowings (including
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents, and adjusted EBITDA is defined
as carnihgs before interest, tax, dcpréciation, amortisation, exceptiénal costs and share based pa'ymentﬁ. The Group’s 5trategy'is to maintain
the ongoing ratio at below 2.5x, although the bank facilities can accommodate a higher ratio. The ratio was comfortably below this level
throughout the year, and at 31 March 2021 was 0.0x (31 March 2020 — 0.8x).

The bank facilities referred to in Nete 22 cpntain various covenants relating to EBITDA, interest cover, net debt and caJh flow, which the Group
monitors on a monthly basis. The Group adppts a risk-averse position with respect to borrowings and maintains a significant amount of headroom
inits bank facilities to ensure that any unckpected situations do not create financial stress. 4 :

The Board remains committed te a progressive dividend policy. a final dividend of 2.4p (£3.7m) has been recommended te the sharehelders. It
is the board’s intention to continue with a progressive (50% of adjusted earnings) dividend policy in FY22 and beyond.

The Group grants share optiens te Directdrs and other selected employees. However, these do not have a significant impact on the Group’s
capital structure. 1

5 Segment reporting

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to bg identified based on internal financial information reported to the chief operating decision-maker
(CODM) for decision-making puirposes. The Group considers that this role is performed by the main Board. The Boaid believes that the Group
continucs to comprise a single reporting segment; being the provision of managed services to customers. The CODM assesses profit performance
principally through an adjusted EBITDA measure, as defined on page 14. ) ’ ’ '

Whilst the Board reviews the Group’s three revenue streams separately (recurring, product and service); the operating gosts and operating asset
basec used to derive these revenue streams are the same for all three categories and are presented as such in the Group’s intérnal reporting to
the CODM.

Mon current assets held outside the UK are immaterial (31 March 2020: immaterial).

g
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

6 Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 March 2021 was generated wholly from the UK and is anal\}sed as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March,

2021 2020

_ £'000 £'000

Recurring revenue - . 81,897 . 77,617

Product revenue : : . ’ 5,072 5,215

Services revenue 4,430 4,653

‘Total revenue ) - 91,399 87,485

Revenue is analysLd into the following categories:

e Recurri g monthly revenue, higher at £81.9m (FY20: £77.6m).
e Non-recurring product revenue, which was lower at £5.1m (FY20: £5.2m), continued to be impacted by customers delaying

discretionary spending due to the economic uncertainty. ’
. Non-recurring services revenue was lower at £4.4m (FY20: £4.7m).

6.1 Contract Balances

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contract with customers.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£'000 £000
Receivables, which are included in trade and other receivables : 9,164 12,375
Accrued income] . 1,999 1,849 .
Deferred income S T ) ’ (7,471) . (9,685

There were no material impairment losses recorded during the year or the prior year.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 {continued)

7 Operating profit
The following costs are considered to be significant items within operating profit/(loss).

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£'000 £000
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 6,252 6,252
Amortisation of intangible assets: owned 1,085 1,197
Depreciation: owned assets 3,408 6,373
Depreciation and Amortisation of ROU assets: Leased 4,932 2,441
Share-based payments 687 562
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses (52) -
Expen" e in relation to short-term and low value leases not recognised under 31 34

IFRS 16
Employee benefits expense, excluding share-based compensation 20,294 20,133
36,637 36,992

Operatipg income is broken down as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£'000 £000
Proceeds from sale of non-core business unit 5,750 -
Disposal of goodwill (1,185) -
Other ‘associated costs {58) -
4,507 -

r

Auditor’s remuneration

8
Total fees payable by the Group during the year to KPMG LLP in respect of the audit and other services provided were as follows:
-_; Year ended Yéa:r_;e}l:ded
T 31 March 31:March
2021 2020
£'000 £°000
Audit of these financial statements . 25 25
Amounts payable to the Group’s auditor and associated companies in respect of: .
-Audit of the financial statements of subsidiaries of the Company 226 169
-Tax compliance services R 11 11
-Tax advisory services 13 - 11
-All other services 3 -
278 216
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

9 Exceptional items

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£'000 £000

Staff restructuring 393 465
Insurance adviser provision 553 -
Vacant property lease provisions net of costs - (141)
Onerous service contracts 148 1,155
Circuit termination charges 4 163
Restitution provision | (2,172) 11,429
Professional fees associated with the FCA Investigation ; 57 (555)
Lease modification | 649 : -
Business sale process 93 . -
Profit upon sale of non-core business unit (4,507) -
(4,782) © 12,516

Staff restructuring costs relate to a rationalisation programme principally impacting the Delivery department.

The insurance adviser cost represents a provision booked fg

The Theale office was closed during the year to 31 March 2
the contractual term to 29t September 2023. Early surrend
offset by £15k of costs.

The onerous service contract cost relates to the costs asso
being ceased) by the business.

Circuit termination charges relate to cancellation costs incur
network rationalisation review.

r costs repayable on adviser fees in relation to the FCA investigation.
19 and a £553k provision created to cover anticipated expenditure up to the
r of the lease negotiated during the prior year resulting in a £156k provision

iated with third party service arrangements no longer utilised (or in the pra

red on unused circuits / connections cancelled during the year, as part of the

The Restitution Scheme provision from the prior year constitutes the amount that had been agreed with the FCA to settle with net pur
of ordinary shares in the Company between 9 November 2015 and 7 November 2016. During the year the scheme was closed resulting

£2,172k provision release.

teasemodification-costsrepresenttherimpact-of thesre=negotiation-of the-tease of the-tondon-datacentre:

end of
release

cess of

sroup’s

chasers,

Business sale process costs were incurred as a result of the sales process during the year which concltidfed during the year.

nanet

Profit upon sale of non Core business unit is net credit resulting from the sale of the assets and knowhow for the provision of maintenance
services to EDF nuclear power stations to Thales UK Limited. The total consideration received was £5,750,000 in cash. No cash or cash equivalent
was within the business over which control was lost. Goodwill of £1,185,000 was disposed of as part of the transaction.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

10 Finance income and costs

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Finance Income
Other interest receivable - 5
Finance costs . .
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts (240) (610}
Interest payable on leases {(1,165) (1,220)
Amortisation of loan arrangement fees (55) (51)
{1,460) (1,881)

Interest payable on leases includes £1.0m (FY20: §1.1m) of interest on leases previously classified as operating leases under IA

11 Employees

The average monthly number of people (including Executive Directors) employed by the Group during the year was as follows:

517.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
Number Number
Operations 288 296
Selling and distribution 73 108
Administration - 59 58
420 462

Staff costs were:
Year ended Year ended
- 31 March 31 March
2021 2020
- - £'000 £'000
Wages and salaries - 17,440 17,396
Social securitycosts == 1,819 1,648
Share options granted to Directors and employees - 687 562
Pension costs 610 624
Payments in lieu of notice and redundancy not included within exceptional items 32 -
Payments in lieu of notice and redundancy included within exceptional items 393 465
20,981 20,695

11.1 Key management compensation

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, controlling and directing the activities of the
entity cither directly; or indirectly. The following table details the compensation of key management persannel, heing senior management that

sit on the Operating Board of the Group.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£000 £000

Basic salary, allowances and.fees 1,292 1,021

Bonus and other benefits 501 102

Share based payments 405 241

Pension costs 53 17
Payments in lieu of notice and redundancy - 154 .

2,251 1,535

69



Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

11.2 Director’s remuneration

The remuneration of the Directors in respect of the year was as follows:

Basic Salary,
) allowances, and Share-based .
{ fees Bonus  Pension payments  FY21 Total FY20 Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Executive '
Peter Brotherton! 300 150 10° 212 672 529
David Senior?{appointed 3 April 2020) 146 80 7 ' 32 265 -
Dean Barber (appointed| 2 Sept 2019, 1 - - - 1 107
resigned 3 April 2020) ‘ ’ ‘
Non-executive
lan Johnson (appointed!16 Oct 2019) 85 - - - 85 39
Stephen Vaughan 45 - - - 45 49
Jon Kempster 45 - - - 45 44
Chris Cole (resigned 16 Dct 2019) - - - - - 41
Chris Rigg (resigned 31 Dec 2019) - - - 1- - 30
Includes travel allowance of £.1k. On 20 Navemher 2020 Peter Brotherton evercised options over 28,571 ordinary ishares of 0.1p at each a price of €3p resulting
in a gain of £17,000. On 22 Becember 2020 Peter Brotherton exercised nil-cost options over 192,481 ordinary shares of 0.1p each resulting in 2 gain of £212,000.

On 26 September 2019 Petelr Brotherton exercised nil-cost options over 161,905 ordinary shares of 0.1p each resulting in a gain of £143,000.

20n 20 November 2020 David Senior exercised options over 28,571 ordinary shares of 0.1p each at a price of 63p fesulting in a gain of £17,000. On 22 Deccmber
2020 David Senior exercised|nil-cost options over 29,100 ordinary shares of 0.1p each resulting in a gain of £32,000. '

Details of share options in the Company held by the Directors during the year are as follows (audited)

Balance, 31 ' ) Balance, 31

. Exercise March Forfeited / . March
- price {p) - 2020 Granted expired Exercised 2021 ~
C— Peter Brotherton (a) Nil - =-— 192,481 - - {192,481), - e

' (b) 63 - 28571 - - (28571)" -

(©) Nil == 298,879 . - - 298,879

(d) Nil T 379,267 .- - - 379,267

(g) Nil - 242,915 - - 242,915

899,198 242,915 ° - (221,052) 921,061

David Senior (b) 63 28,571 - - (28,571) -

- : (e) NIl - 29,100 - - (29,100) .

(f) Nil 20,000 - - - 20,000

(d) Nil 100,000 - - - - 100,000

g . Nil - 129,555 - - 129,555

177,671 129,555 - (57,671~ 249,555

Dean Barber . {(h) Nit 175,750 - (175,750) .- -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)
11.2 Director’s remuneration (continued)

(a) The options were granted on 29 June 2017 under the Company'’s LTiP. The options vested post the release of the Group's results for the year
ended 31 March 2020 subject to the achievement of perfermance conditions related to the growth in earnings per share.

(b) The options were granted on 29 June 2017 under the Company’s HMRC approved Save-As-You-Earn Option Plan 2014 under which employees
contribute a monthly amount which is saved over 3 years to buy shares. The options were exercisable from 30 August 2020. There were no
performance conditions.

(c) The options were granted on 26 November 2018 under the Company's LTIP. The options will vest post the release of the Group's results for
the year ended 31 March 2021 subject to the achievement of performance conditions related to the growth in earnings per share.

(d) The options were granted on 28 June 2019 under the Company's LTIP. The options will vest post the release of the Group's results for the
year ended 31 March 2022 subject to the achievement of performance conditions related to the growth in share price.

() The optionsiwere granted on 4 December 2017 under the Company’s LTIP. The options vested post the release of the Group's results for the
ycar ended 31 March 2020 subject to the achievement of performance conditions related td the growth in earnings per share.

(f) The options were granted on 27 June 2018 under the Company's LTIP. The options willjvest post the release of the Group's results for the
year ended 31 March 2021 subject to the achievement of performance conditions related to the growth in earnings per share.

{g) The options were granted on 8 December 2020 under the Company's LTIP. The options will vest post the release of the Group's results for

the year ended;31 March 2023 subject to the achievement of performance conditions relatad to the growth in share price.

{h) The options|were granted on 3 September 2019 under the Company’s LTIP. The options|will vest post the release of the Group’s results for
the year ended|31 March 2022 subject to the achievement of performance conditions relatad to the growth in share price.

Pl PPy
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12 Income tax expense

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
. £'000 £000
Income tax
UK current year tax charge 1,152 844
Overseas current year tax charge 69 102
Adjustment in respect of prior years (54) (148)
Total income tax 1,167 798
Deferred tax
Current year 769 . (796)
Adjustment in respect of prior years 375 (15)
Total deferred tax 1,144 (811)
Total tax charge/(credit) in consolidated statement of comprehensive income 2,311 (13)
Other Comprehensive Income items b :
Deferred Tax (224) -
Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 11,538 (10,613)
Taxation at the average UK corporation tax rate of 19.0% (FY20: 19.0%) 2,192 (2,016)
Tax effects of:
-Expenses not allowable in determining taxable profit 289 2,206
-Adjustment in respect of prior years 321 (163)
-Non-taxable income (513) -
-Share options 6 -
-R&D Tax Credit - (40)
-Deferred tax rate change - (22)
-Effect of overseas tax rates 16 22
Tax (credit) / charge for the year 2,311 (13)

A UK corparation rate of 19% (effective 1 April 2020) was substant

vely enacted on 17 March 2020,' reversing the previously enacted reduction

in the rate from 19% to 17%. This increased the Group’s future current tax charge accordingly. The deferred tax assct at 31 Mareh 2021 has

“been calculated at 19% (2020: 19%).

An increase in the UK corporatj&_‘"‘rate from 19% to 25% (effective 1 April 2023) was substantively enacted on:24 May 2021. This will increase
the Group's future current tax charge accordingly and increase the deferred tax asset by £177k.

In addition to the net deferred tax asset there is an unrecognised deferred tax asset on tax losses of £1.35m. These losses have not been
recognised as there remains an uncertainty about the availability of these losses going forwards. An increase in the UK corporation rate from
19% to 25% (effective 1 April 2023) as noted above would increase the unrecognised deferred tax asset to £1.78m (i.e. an increase of £426k).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

13 Earnings. per share (EPS)

The calculation of basic and diluted EPS is based on the following earnings and number of shares.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

Earnings £'000 £'000

Statutory earnings 9,227 (10,600)

~ Tax charge ’ ' 2,311 (13)

Amortisation of acquired intangibles . : 6,252 6,252

Share-based payments 687 562

Exceptional items (4,782) 12,516
Adjusted earnings before tax . 13,695 8,717 |
Notional tax charge at standard rate “ . (2,602) (1,656)

Adjusted earnings ) - 11,093 7,061

. Number Number

Weighted average number of ordinary shares . ‘000 . ‘000

Inissue 153,930 149,311
Held in treasury (439) (822)

For basic EPS calculations | 153,491 148,489

Effect of potentially dilutive share options 2,215 -

For diluted EPS calculations 155,706 148,489

EPS Pence Pence.

Basic 6.01p (7.14)p

Adjusted : - 7.23p 4.76p

Basic diluted ' 5.93p (7.18)p

Adjusted diluted ’ 7.12p 4.68p

14 Dividends

N 5 ~.Yeacended Yeacended

A . e 31 March 31 March

— e 2021 2020

= : ~= £/000 £000

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 - 1,492

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 - 1,239

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 1,868 -

1,868 2,731

i
The Group paid a final dividend in respect of the year to 31 March 2019 of 1.00p per ordinary share, with a total payment value of £1.5m.
The Group paid an interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of 0.83p per ordinary share, with a total payment value of £1.2m.

In light of the Restitution Scheme and the continued uncertamty resulting from the ongomg COVID-19 pandemic, the Board decided not to
recommend payment of a final dividend to shareholders for FY20.

The Group paid an interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 1.2p per ordinary share, with a total payment value of £1.9m.

A final dividend payment of 2.4p per share will be paid on 17 September 2021, subject to approval at the Company's Annual General Meeting.
The shares will have an ex-dividend date of 5 August 2021 and a record date of 8 August 2021.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

15 Intangible Assets

Customer
_ contracts and
" related Software
relationships and
Goodwill - Trademarks licences Total-
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Cost
At 1 April 2019 43,269 62,284 . 275 6,331 112,159
Reclassification to right of use (hote 17) i (1,240) (1,240)
Adjusted 1 April 2019 ? : 43,269 62,284 275 ] 5,091 110,919
Additions 1 - - - 578 578
At 31 March 2020 43,269 62,284 275 5,669 111,497
Reclassification from property plant & - - - 4,434 4,434
equipment (note 16)
Additions -7 - - 1,677 1,677
Disposals (1,185) - - (130) (1,315)
Exchange differences - - - (1) (1)
At 31 March 2021 42,084 62,284 275 11,649 116,292
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 2019 - 32,065 275 4,017 36,357
Reclassification to right of use {note 17) - - - (788) . (788)
Adjusted 1 April 2019 - 32,065 275 3,229 35,569
Charged in year - 6,252 - 1,197 7,449
Write-off - - - 64 64
At 31 March 2020 - 38,317 275 4,490 43,082
Charged in year - 6,252 - 1,085 7,337
"~ Disposals . - ) - - (56) (56)
At 31 March 2021 ) - 44,569 - 275 5,519 50,363
e __.ZNet book value, =
* ™ At31March 2021 42,084 - 17,715 - 6,130 65,929
-~ At 31 March 2020 43,269 = 23,967 - 1,179 68,415 e
7 At 31 March 2019 43,269 T . 30,219 - 2,314 75,802 -

Customer contracts have a weighted average remaining amortisation period of 3 year§ and 11 months (FY20: 4 years and 11 months).

During the year, the Group’s new ERP system, Microsoft Dynamics 365 went live. As a result, and in the context of evolving guidance in relation
to configuration or customisation costs in a cloud computing arrangement (see note 2), £4,434,000 of asset previously recognised within tangible
assets was reclassified to intangible assets.

On initial application of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, the Group continued to present assets that were previously recognised under 1AS17 as finance leases
within property plant and equipment and intangible assets. The carrying value at 31 March 2020 was £2,826,000 within property plant and
equipment and £452,000 within intangible assets. In the current year, all right of use assets have been presented separately in note 17 and
therefore these amounts have been reclassified along with the assets that were newly recognised from 1 April 2019 on initial application of IFRS
16. .
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15 Intangible Assets (continued)

The Company has assessed that the trading operations of the business constitute only one cash gen

erating unit.

Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at least annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and, to confirm whether an impairment of the goodwill is necessary,

management compares the carrying value to the value in use.

- The value in use has been calculated using budgeted cash flow projections to the period of 31 March

2023, extrapolated for a further three years

by an average annual revenue growth rate of 1.5% (FY20: 2.0%). A terminal value based on a perpetuity calculation using a 0.0% real growth rate

was then added (FY20:{0.0% growth).

In addition to revenue growth, the key assumptions used in the impairment testing were as foIIows§

Gross'margin pergentage reducing to 60.5% (FY20: 60.5%)
Operating costs increasing by 1.5% (FY20: 1.0%)

Pre-tax discount rate of 8.3% (FY20: 9.2%) (post tax rate of 7.0% (FY20: 8.6%) estimated using
to reflect currentymarket assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

Terminal growthirate percentage of-0.0% (FY20: 0.0%).

A reasonably possible gdverse movement in any of the above key assumptions made would not give

a weighted average cost of capital, adjusted
Group; and

rise to impairment.
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16 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Office fixtures Vehicles &
improvements and fittings computer :
equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost :
At 1 April 2019 T 13,734 1,494 33,987 49,215
Reclassification to right of use (note 17) (55) (23) (5,191) (5,269)
‘, Adjusted balance at 1 April 2019 13,679 1,471 28,796 43,946
! Additions : 134 129 3,711 3,974
| Disposals (6,285) (569) (6,500) (13,354)
Exchange differences : - 2 (14) (12)
At 31 March 2020 7,528 1,033 25,993 34,554
Reclassification to intangibles (note 15) - - - (4,434) (4,434)
Additions . 404 442 940 1,786
Disposals ' (129) (103) (816) (1,048)
Exchange differences | - (9) (24) (33)
At 31 March 2021 7,8b3 1,363 21,659 30,825
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2019 10,123 1,095 19,864 31,082
Reclassification to right of use (note 17) 6) (8) (2,428) (2,442)
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2019 . 10,117 1,087 17,436 28,640
Charged inyear -~ . 626 135 5,612 6,373
On disposals (6,285) (569) (6,500) (13,354)
Exchange differences - - " (14) (14)
At 31 March 2020 . 4,458 653 16,534 21,645
. Charged in year .- 458 - 148 - 2,802 3,408
On disposals CoT . - - 132 (32)
Exchange differences - (8) (22) (30)
At 31 March 2021 . 4,916 793 19,282 24,991
Net book value e -
At 31 March 2021 = 2,887 570 <2377 5,834
At 31 March 2020 T 3,070 380 '9,459 12,909
At 31 March 2019 3,611 399 14,123 18,133

During the year, the Group’s new ERP system, Microsoft Dynamics 365 went live. As a result, and in the context of evolving guidance in relation
to configuration or customisation costs in a cloud computing arrangement (see note 2), £4,434,000 of asset previously recognised within tangible

assets was reclassified to intangible assets.

On initial application of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, the Grdup continued to present assets that were previously recognised under IAS17 as finance leases
within property plant and equipment and intangible assets. The carrying value at 31 March 2020 was £2,826,000 within property plant and
equipment and £452,000 within intangible assets. In the current year, all right of use assets have been presented separately in note 17 and
therefore these amounts have been reclassified along with the assets that were newly recognised from 1 April 2019 on initial application of IFRS

16.
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17 Right of use assets

Most of the Group’s right-of-use assets are associated with our leased property portfolio.

Land and Vehicles & computer
buildings equipment Total
£000 ' £'000 £/000

Cost ’ ’
At 1 April 2019 - - -
Recognition of ROU asset on initial application of IFRS 16 27,858 736 28,594
Reclassification from Property plant and equipment (note ] ‘ .
16) ! 5,269 5,269 5
Reclassification from intangibles (note 15) 1,240 1,240
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2019 27,858 - 7,245 35,103
Additions - 2,370 2,370
Remeasurement 2,031 - 2,031
At 31 March 2020 29,889 9,615 39,504
Additions 2,092 2,092
Remeasurement ’ (4,383) - : (4,383)
At 31 March 2021 25,506 11,707 37,213
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2019 - - .
Recognition of ROU asset on initial ‘application of IFRS 16 7,823 ) 7,823
Reclassification from Property plant and equipment (note
16) 2,442 2,442
Reclassification from intangibles (note 15) - 788 788
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2019 ' : 7,823 3,230 11,053
Charged in year : 1,898 543 2,441 °
At 31 March 2020 9,721 3,773 13,494
Charged-in-year - 2:540 27392- 4,932
At 31 March 2021 12,261 6,165 .18,426
Net book value '
At 31 March 2021 13,245 5,542 18,787
At 31 March 2020 20,168 5,842 26,010

Of the £2,092k right of use assets acquired in the year, £1,036k were funded as part of the sale and leaseback transaction and the remaining
£1,056k funded using other leases (FY20: £2,370k).

On initial application of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, the Group continued to present assets that were previously recognised under 1AS17 as finance leases
within property plant and equipment and intangible assets. The carrying value at 31 March 2020 was £2,826,000 within property plant and
equipment and £452,000 within intangible assets. In the current year, all right of use assets have been presented separately in this note and
thercfore these amounts have been reclassified along with the assets that were newly recognised from 1 April 2019 on initial application of IFRS
16.

The Group entered into a sale and Icase transaction with Lombard Technology Services Limited for various equipment, software and ancillary
costs used and incurred in the business. This was entered into as part of the Group’s combined debt strategy. The leaseback has a remaining
term of five years at the date of application.

The remeasurement represents:

e the modification to the London site lease incorporating a one-way break clause at March 2030 resulting in a reduction in the lease
liability of £4.2m, a reduction in the asset of £4.7m an increase in the dilapidation provision of £0.2m and an exceptional charge of
£0.7m;

e the modification to the Cambridge site lease following the decision not to activate the break clause resulted in an increase in the lease

" liability of £0.3m and an increase in the right-of-use asset of £0.3m.
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18 Deferred tax

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances (before offset) for financial reporting purposes:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 'March
2021 2020
) . . £'000 £'000
Deferred tax liabilities (3,362) (4,550}
Deferred tax assets 3,923 6,032
561 1,482
i
18.1 Deferred tax liabilities
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Opening balance L 4,550 5,134
Recognised in the income statement (1,188) (584)
’ 3,362 4,550
Deferred tax liabilities relate to intangible assets from business acquisitions.
18.2 Deferred tax assets’
T
Property, o
Share-based plantand ~ Other timing
India payments Tax losses equipment differences Total
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £000 £/000
Cost

At 1 April 2019 44 36 2,780 2,404 12 5,276
Adjustment upon transition to IFRS i i “"—'—:_ i 530 '530
Ré:fogf}ised in income statement 3 127 (:3:6:5.) 527 (51) 241
Adjustment in relation to prior year - (10) (5) - - {15)
At 31 March 2020 47 153 2,410 2,931 491 6,Q32
Recognised in income statement - 20 (1,633) - (273) (72) (1,958)
_Recogmsed in other comprehensive ) 224 ) A i 224

income
Adjustment in relation to prior year - - (154) (248) 27 (375)
At 31 March 2021 . 47 397 623 3,923

2,410 446
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19 Trade and' other receivables

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£'000 £000

Trade receivables 10,268 13,813
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables and credit notes .o (1,104) (1,438)
Trade receivables — net 9,164 12,375
Other receivables 5,825 664
Prepayments . 6,579 5,639
Commission contract asset | . : 1 2,096 2,734
Accrued income ] 1 1,999 1,849
25,663 23,261

The commission contract asset arose on the adoption of IFRS 15. For the year ended 31 March 2021 the impairment for this contract asset was
immaterial (FY20: immaterial). :

There is £immaterial (FY20: fimmaterial) expected credit loss against other receivables.

20 Credit quality of financial assets

The amounts of the maximum|exposure to credit risk at the reporting date are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£'000 £000

Trade receivables 9,164 .12,375
Other receivables 5,825 - 664
Cash and cash equivalents . - 5,250 3,710
: ’ 20,239 16,749

20-3-Credit-quality-of-trade-receivables

The Directors monitor the quality of the receivables not impaired and believe them to be recoverable. The non-impaired receivables are fully .~
. performing and relate to independent customers with no history of defatlt. The individually impaired receivables relate to receivables over 365 "
days, customers in financial difficulty, customer acceptance issues and cancelled contracts.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

. £'000 £000

Current . ' , 9,343 10,993
1to 30 days overdue . 600 1,656
31 to 60 days overdue = ’ 282 593
61 to 90 days overdue 21 220
91 to 180 days overdue : 21 288
> 180 days overdue 1 63
Gross-trade-debtors - — —10;268 13,813
Provision . (1,104) (1,438)
Net trade debtors . ' 9,164 12,375

As at 31 March 2021, trade receivables of £165k were provided for (31 March 2020: £246k). £939k has been provided for within the credit note
provisions (31 March 2020: £1,192k). No provision has been made against accrued income in the year ended 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020:
£nil). ’
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20 Credit Quality of Financial Assets (continued)

The provision is calculated by management on a specific basis based on their best estimate of recoverability considering the age and specific
circumstances relating to the debtor. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Movements on the Group bad debt and credit provisioﬁs were as follows:
' Provision in
relation to Provision in Provision in Provision in
FY18 and relation to relation to relation to Total
earlier FY19 FY20 FY21 provision
i £000 €000 £'000 £'000
At 1]April 2019 218 ,303 - - 1,521
Cregtion of provision 36 10 1,736 - 1,782
Utilisation of provision . (247) 707) (911) - (1,865)
At 31 March 2020 o 7 606 825 - 1,438
Creation of provision - - - 1,272 1,272
Utilisation of provision (4) 465) (499) (638) (1,606)
At 31 March 2021 ’ 3 141 326 634 1,104
' 20.2 Cash and cash equivalents
The Group's cash is held at accounts with Barclays Bank PLC, which has a Standard|and Poor’s rating of A.
21 Trade and other payables
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 T, 2020
£000 £000
Trade payables 8,470 7,661
Other payables - 243 198
Taxation and social security e 2,390 = 72,596
Accruals e 3,885 Ire171
Deferred income 7,471 ™ 9,685
22,459 24,311

Of the deferred income balance of £9.7m at 31 March 2020, £8.1m has been recognfsed as revenue in the year ended 31 March 2021.

Of the deferred income balance of £9.1m at 31 March 2019, £6.9m has been recognised as revenue in the year ended 31 March 2020.
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22 Borrowings

ar ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £/000

Current ) '
Lease liabilities 3,735 3,528
Term loans © 487 115
Bank loan - 12,500
Unamortised loan arrangement fee .- (17)
4,222 16,126

Non-current ‘ '
Lease liabilities 15,593 - 22,097
Term loans 1,004 36
Bank loan - -

Unamortised loan arrangement fee - - - .

16,597 . 22,133

At 31 March 2021, the Group was party to £32m of bank facilities with
Credit Facility of £5m (£nil utilised at 31 March 2021) with a £20.0m a
Facility (£1.8m utilised at 31 March 2021).

Term loans constitute financing arrangements for services. Term loans in

The RCF has been provided jointly by Barclays Bank PLC and The Royal
the Asset Financing Facility.

termination date of 30 June 2022. The facilities comprise a Revolving
cordion (£nil utilised at 31 March 2021) and a £7.0m Asset Financing

clude a supplier loan of £1,207k for a 3 year maintenance contract.

3ank of Scotland PLC, with Lombard Technology Services Ltd providing

22.1 Reconciliation of net debt

Asat31 _ Netcash  Netnon-cash Asat 31 Net non-cash As at 31 March

Mareh-2049— flow flow——=Mareh2020——Net-cash-flow=——w=—reorflow e eesmorrmr=and 024

£000°  £'000 £'000 £000 © £000 £o00 £'000

Cash 7,20'6:" (3,483) (13) 3,710 1,567 (27) = 5,250
RCF (19,432) - 7,000 (51) (12,483) 12,500 (17) -
Term Loan {363) 212 - {151) 212 {1,552) (1,491)
Lease Liabilities (4,976) 6,234 (26,883) (25,625) 4,527 1,770 (19,328)
: (17,565) 9,963 (26,947) (34,549) 18,806 174 © (15,569)
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22 Borrowings (continued)

22.2 Terms and repayment schedule

Currency ‘Nominal interest rate Year of maturity

RCF GBP LIBOR + 2.40% 2022

Term Loans GBP 0.0-2.0% 2021-24

Leases GBP 1.4-7.5% 2021-35

22.3 Leases { !

% Future

lease

Present . Present payments

value as at Future lease  value as at asat31

31 March Finance payrpents asat31 31 March Finance’ March

2021 charges March 2021 2020 charges 2020

£000 £'000 £000 £'000

Not later than 1 year 3,735 900 4,635 3,528 1,229 4,757
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 9,566 1,805 11,371 9,395 3,198 12,593

After more than 5 years 6,027 985 7,012 12,702 4,530 17,232

19,328 3,690 23,018 25,625 8,957 34,582

The lease for the Shoreditch data centre contain

the reasonably certain lease term, and hence not include in lease liabilities, total £9,500,000.-

23 Liquidity risk

The table helow analyses the Group’s financial

s a break clause in March 2030. Potential future undiscounted lease payments not including in

iabilities into relevant maturity groupings' based on the remaining pcriod a

the balance shcct

date to the contractual maturity date. These amounts disclosed-in the table are the contracted undiscounted cash flows. Balances within 12

months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

.;_: Less thang More than
year 1-5Syears S years Total
) £'000 £000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2021
Bank loans - - - -
Leases 3,735 9,566 6,027 19,328
Term Ioar}s 487 1,004 - 1,491
Trade payables 8,470 - - 8,470
Other payables 242 - - T 242
' 12,934 10,570 6,027 29,531
At 31 March 2020 '
Bank loans 12,500 - - 12,500
Leases 3,528 9,395 12,702 25,625
Term loans 115 36 - 151
Trade payables 7,661 - - 7,661
Other payables 198 - - 198
24,002 9,431 46,135

12,702

Borrowings exclude unamortised loan arrangement fee of £nil (FY20: £17,000).
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24 Provisions

Onerous

Restitution Scheme fees = Dilapidations service
Scheme provision provision contract Total provision

provision provision
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 1 April 2019 ) - - 496 534 1,030
Additional provisions created during the period - 11,429 .- 2,030 . .833 14,292
Released during the period - - - (156) (156)
Utilised during the period - - - (513) (513)
At 31 March 2020 11,429 - 2,526 698 14,653
Additional provisions created duringithe period 130 ’ 553 333 2] 1,037
Released during the period f (2,172) : - (164) (193, (2,529)
Utilised during the period . (9,387) - - (505 {9,892)
At 31 March 2021 - 553 2,695 21 3,269

Analysed as:

Current . - 553 - 21 574
Non-current - - 2,695 2,695
- 553 2,695 21 3,269

-

The Restitution Scheme provision related to the settlement agreéd with the FCA settlement in respect of ¢ertain historical accounting
misstatements that were uncovered by the Company in November 2016. As part of this settlement, the Company agreed to implement a
Restitution Scheme to compensate net purchasers of ordinary shares in the Company hetween 9 November 2015 and 6 November 2016. The
amount represented management’s best estimate of the cost to the Group. The uncertainty in the value arose as a resuit of the fact that claimants
have the option to opt for a cash payment, a share payment or a split payment. All outflows associated with the Restitution Scheme were made
by January 2021 with the remaining balance released. |

The Scheme fees provision represents|costs repayable on adviser fees in relation to the FCA investigation.

The dilapidations provision represents the estimated costs associated with returning certain leasehold properties to the original condition upon
exiting the lease. Given there is estimation in determining the quantum of provisions to be recognised a third-party expert was engaged to
determine appropriate estimates. = '

.

The onerous service contract provision relates to the costs associated with third party services arrangements no longer utilised by the business.

A||-rema|n|ng outflows will occur within 1 year. —
25 Share Capital

- Share
| ) Ordinary shares of 0.1p each premium
Number £'000 £'000
At 1 April 2019 149,135,316 149 65,588
New shares issues ) 175,397 - 146
At 31 March 2020 ’ ’ 149,310,713 © 149 65,734
New sharesissued . ' . ’ 6,854,997 . 7. 7,533
At 31 March 2021 156,165,710 156 73,267

Of the 6,854,997 ordinary shares of 0.1p each issued during the year, 5,250,000 were issued for proceeds of £5,775,000. 57,142 shares were
issued for £36,000. 1,314,244 shares were issued in respect of the Restitution Scheme, utilising £1,729,000 of the provision. The remaining
233,611 were issued at 0.1p each. -

During the year the Company purchased, and held in treasury, nil of its ordinary share capital (FY20: 822,427) for total proceeds of £nil (FY20:
£724,000). The total shares held in treasury at 31 March 2021 was 33,284 (31 March 2020: 822,427).

The number of shares authorised is the same as the number of shares issued. Ordihary shareholders have the right to attend, vote and speak at
meetings, receive dividends, and receive a return on assets in the case of a winding up.
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26 Share-based payments
At 31 March 2021, the Group had the following share-based payment arrangements in place:

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The Group operates a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) under which the Executive directors and key management personnel are awarded nil cost
options that will vest subject to the achievement of performance conditions relating to the growth in earnings per share.

Save As You Earn (SAYE)

The Group operates a HMRC approved SAYE scheme which offers its UK based colleagues the opportunity to participate in a share purchase plan.
To participate in the plan, the colleagues are required to save an amount of their gross monthly salary, up to a maximum of £500 per month, for
a period of 36 months. Under the terms of the plan, at the end of the three-year period]the colleagues are entitled to purchase shares using
funds saved 3t a price 20% below the market price at grant date. Only colleagues who re!l ain in service and save the required amount of their
gross monthly salary for 36 consecutive months will become entitled to purchase the shares. Colleagues who cease their employment, do not
save the required amount of their gross monthly salary in any month before the 36-month period expires, or elect not to exercise their options
to purchase shares will be refunded their saved amounts.

The Group recognised the following expense for its share-based payments:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Equity-settled share-based charge on LTIP scheme 430 362
Equity-settled share-based charge on SAYE scheme 152 122
National Insurance arising on share options 105 78

687 562

The fair value of the equity-settled share options granted is estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices
(WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the year. ' ’

LTiP SAYE Total WAEP
Balance at 31 March 2019 - 1,275,600 974,520 2,250,120 27.7p~
Issued in the period - 1,667,517 488,342 2,155,859 14.4p~
Forfeited in the period = (92,619) - (92,619) 0.1p=
Cancelled in the period = - (49,126) (49,126) 63.0p
Exercised in the year (161,905) (13,492) (175,397) 4.9p
Lapsed in the year (105,763) (74,486) (180,249) 38.8p
Balance at 31 March 2020 © 2,582,830 1,325,758 3,908,588 21.1p
Issued in the period : 822,077 521,782 1,343,859 46.5p
Forfeited in the period (323,750) - (323,750) 0.1p
Cancelled in the period ’ ) - (46,655) (46,655) 119.6p
Exercised’in the year (233,611) (854,647) (1,088,258) 49.6p
Lapsed in the year ) : C- (52,016) {52,016) 76.9p
Balance at 31 March 2021 ) 2,847,546 894,222 3,741,768 22.1p

As at 31 March 2021 the Company had a total of 350,000 (31 March 2020: 350,000) warrants in issue with an exercise price of 36p. The warrants
were issued to Barclays Bank PLC on demerger in April 2013 in exchange for warrants previously held in Redstone Plc, and can be converted to
shares at any time before the sale of the entire share capital of the Company. Redcentric Plc was created when Redstone Plc demerged its
network-based management services business.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

26 Share based payments (continued)

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding at 31 March 2021 is 6 years and 11 months (31 March 2020:
6 years and S months). The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was 0.1p to 119.6p. Share options outstanding
at the end of the year with approximate remaining average life are as follows:

Number, 4 Number,

year ended ’ year ended

31 March 31 March
Exercise price 2021 Life at 31 March 2021 2020 Life at 31 March 2020
: . Op 2,847,546 8 years, 4 months 2,582,830 8 years, 10 months
i 63p - ! - 845,973 Qvyears, 11 months
! 63p 434,145 2 years, 0 months 479,785 3 years,' 0 months
120p 460,077 3 years, 0 months - -
: 3,741,768 6 y'ears, 11 months 3,908,588 6 years, 5 months

The following table illustrates the status of the options outstanding at the end of the year:

31 March 2021 31March 31 March 2020 31 March

Number of 2021 Number of 2020

) gptions WAEP options WAEP

Performance conditions satisfied . - 0.0p 0 Op
Subject to performance conditions 2,847,546 0.1p 2,582,830 Op

. Save-As-You-Earn 894,222 92.0p 1,325,758 63p
QOutstanding at the end of the year 3,741,768 22.4p 3,908,588 21p

27 Capital commitments
The Group had no contracted but not provided for capital commitments at 31 March 2021 {31 March 2020: £nil).

28 Pensions

The Group operates a defined contribution bension scheme for eligibie employees. The charge for the year ended 31 March 2021 was £610,000' -
(FY20: £624,000). At the year- end there was a-pension’s creditor of £0.1m (2020: £0.1m). -

E P S

29 Subsidiaries st =

e el

The undertakings whose results and financial position are consolidated within the Group financial statements at 31 March 2021 are as follows:

. % of ordinary

Country of share capital
Principal activity incorporation owned
Held directly by Redcentric pic i
Redcentric Holdings Limited (dissolved 6 July 2021) ‘ . Dormant England and Wales 100%
Redcentric Solutions Limited Managed Services England and Wales 100%
Held indirectly . ‘
Redcentric Solutions Private Limited Support services India 100%
Redcentric Support Services Private Limited Support services India 100%
Redcentric MS Limited (dissolved 1 June 2021) Dormant England and Wales 100%
Redcentric Managed Solutions Limited (dissolved 1 June 2021) Dormant England and Wales 100%
Redcentric Communications Limited (dissolved 1 June 2021) Dormant England and Wales 100%
Hotchilli Internet Limited Dormant England and Wales 100%
Calyx Managed Services Limited (dissolved 1 June 2021) Dormant  England and Wales 100%
City Lifeline Limited (dissolved 1 June 2021) Dormant England and Wales 100%

All companies have a registered office of Central House, Beckwith Knowle, Harrogate HG3 1UG, except Redcentric Solutions Private Limited and
Redcentric Support Services Private Limited which have a registered office at-# 606-611, 6th Floor, Manjeera Trinity Corporate, JNTU — Hitech
City Road, Kukatpally, Hyderabad — 72. )
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

30 Related parties

The Group has taken exemption not to disclose transactions with entities wholly owned by the Group.

Directors' emoluments are-disclosed in the Remuneration Report on page 36 and compensation of key management personnel is disclosed in
note 11. .

There were no other transactions with related parties in the year to 31 March 2021.

31 Subsequent events
Subsequent to 31 March 2021, a corporate simplification exercise was completed which resulted in the dissolution of 6 dor'ma_nt companies
within the Group, being Redcentric Holdings Limited, Redcentric MS Limited, Redcentric Managed Solutions Limited, Redcentric Communications
Limited, Calyx Managed Services Limited and City Lifelirje Limited. ;
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Redcentric plc

Company Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2021

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
Note £'000 £'000
Fixed Assets ’
Investments 2 102,983 102,402
Current liabilities
Creditors —amounts falling due within one year 3 (21,633) (15,726)
Provisions . 4 (554) (11,429)
Net current liabilities (22,187) (27,155)
Net assets 80,796 75,247
Capital and reserves 1
Called up share capital 156 149
Share premium account 73,267 65,734
Share option reserve 6,776 6,194
Own shares held in treasury (32) (724)
Retained earnings 629 3,894
Total shareholders’ funds 80,796 75,247

The Hotes on pages 88 to 90 are an integral p.

The financial statements of Redcentric Plc (Registration Number 08397584) on pages 87 to 88 were approved by the Boarg

are signed on its behalf by:

David Senior

rt of these financial statements.

on 15 July 2021 and

Chief Financial Officer
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021

Own shares
Called up Share Share Share option held in Retained |
Capital Premium reserve treasury earnings  Total Equity
£'000 £°000 £°000 £'000 £000 £°000
Balance at 1 April 2019 149 65,588 5,856 - 18,054 89,647
Loss for the period - - - - (11,429) (11,429)
Transactions with owners
Dividend paid to shareholders - - - - (2,731) (2,731)
Issue of new shares - 146 (146) - - -
Share buy-back - - - (724) - (724)
Share-based payments ' - - 484 - - 484
At 31 March 2020 149 65,734 6,194 (724) 3,894 75,247
Loss for the period - - - - (1,199) (1,199)
Transactions with c’;wners ! .
Dividend paid to shireholders - - - (1,868) (1,868)
Issue of new shares 7 7,533 - - - 7,540
Share option exercises - - E 692 (198) 494
Share-based payments - - -582 - - 582
At 31 March 2021 156 73,267 6,776 (32) 629 80,796

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

1 Account

These financial statements-were prepared in accordance with Financial Reborting Standard 101 R
ncial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of international
pted IFRSs”), but makes amendments where

preparing these fina

accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 (“Ado

necessary in order to
In these financial sta

e acash flow

ng policies

comply with Companies Act 2006.

statement and related notes;

. comparatwe period reconciliations for share capital, tangible fixed assets, mtanglble assets and investments;
e disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;
disclosures-in-respect-of-capital-managements

e the effects

ements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 i

educed Disclosure Framework (“FRS 101”). In

h respect of the following disclosures:

of new but not yet effective IFRS;

e disclosures in respect of the compensation of key mafagement personnel; and

e disclosures of transactions with a management entity that provides key management personnel services to the Company.

As the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent undertaking include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken the
. exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of the following disclosures:

e IFRS 2 Share’based payments in respect of group settled share-based payments
e  Certain disclosures required by IAS 36 Impairment of assets in respect of the impairment of goodwill and indefinite life intangible

assets;

e  Certain disclosures required by IFRS 3 Business Combinations in respect of business combinations undertaken by the Company in the

current and prior periods including the comparative period reconciliation for goodwill; and

e  Certaindisclosures required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and the disclosures required by IFRS 7 Financial Instrument Disclosures.

The accounting policies set, unless otherwise stated, been applled consnstently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

1.1 Basis

of preparation

For details of the parent company basis of preparation, please refer to note 1.1 of the Group accounting policies on page 55.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)

2 Investments
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Investments in subsidiaries 96,062 96,062
Capital contribution related to-share-based payments for subsidiaries 6,921 6,340
) 102,983 102,402

The Company has assessed that the trading operations of the business constitute only one cash generating unit.

Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at least annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may|be impaired. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and, to confirm |whether an impairment of the goodwill is necessary,

managemént compares the carrying value to the value in use.

The value in use has been calculated using budgeted cash flow projections to the period of 31 March 2023, extrapolated for a further three years
by an average annual revenue growth rate of 1.5% (FY20: 2.0%). A terminal value based on a perpetuity calculation using a 0.0% rea| growth rate

was then added (FY20: 0.0% growth).

In additionto revenue growth, the key assumptions used in the impairment testing were as follows:

Gross margin percentage reducing to 60.5% (FY20: §0.5%)
Operating costs increasing by 1.5% (FY20: 1.0%)

Pre-tax discount rate of 8.3% (FY20: 9.2%) {post tax rate of 7.0% (FY20: 8.6%) estimated using a weighted average cost of capital, adjusted
to retlect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the Group; and

Terminal growth rate percentage of 0.0% (FY20: 0.0%).

A reasonably possible adverse movement in any of the above key assumptions made w¢

uld not give rise to impairment.

The subsidiary undertakings of the Company are disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

3 Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

s "
redrenaea

“Yearended—>

) 31 March 31 March
R 2021 2020 =
£000° £'000
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 21,633 15,726

Amounts due to Group undertakings are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed payment terms.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)

4 Provisions

Restitution

Scheme Fees Scheme

provision provision

£000 £000
Additional provision created during the period - -11,429
At 1 April 2019 - - -
Additional provision created during the period - 11,429
At 31 March 2020 - 11,429
Additional provisions created during the period 554 130
Utilised during the period ) i - ) (9,387) |
Released during the period ' : - (2,172) ‘

At 31 March 2021

554 -

\

The Restitution Scheme provision related to the settlement agreed with the FCA settlement in respect of certain historical accounting

misstatements that were uncovered by the Company in Nov
Restitution Scheme to compensate net purchasers of ordinary]
amount represented management’s best estimate of the cost tg
have the option to opt for a cash payment, a share payment or
by January 2021 with the remaining balance released.

‘The Scheme fees provision represents costs repayable on advis|

5 Share capital

Details of the share capital of the company are disclosed in not
purchased, and held in treasury, 822,427 of its ordinary share
remained representing 0.0% of the Company’s issued share cag

6 Auditor remuneration

—The Cunnnpany'audit'fee-is-f-.Z_ﬁ:ééﬁ-(FY—ZOrﬁZS;GﬂO}rThis*fee'was-bornebvanotherGroup'company.

7 Related parties

omber 2016. As part of this settlement, the Company agreed to impleme
shares in the Company between 9 November 2015 and 6 November 2016.
the Group. The uncertainty in the value arose as a result of the fact that claim
a split payment. All outflows associated with the Restitution Scheme were m

er fees in relation to the FCA investigation.

apital for total proceeds of £724,000. At 31 March 2021, 33,284 treasury sh,
ital.

nt a
The
ants
ade

2 25 to the consolidated financial statements. During the prior year the Company

ares

The Group has taken exemption not to disclose transactions with entities wholly owned by the Group.

Directors' emoluments are disclosed in the Remuneration Report of the consolidated financial statements on page 36.

There were no other transactions with related parties in the year to 31 March 2021.
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